
Canal Winchester 

 

 

 

Town Hall 

10 North High Street 

Canal Winchester, OH 43110 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Agenda 

October 30, 2017 

6:00 PM 

 

 

Committee of the Whole 

Steve Donahue - President 

Will Bennett – Vice-President  

Bob Clark 

Bruce Jarvis 

Bobbie Mershon 

Mike Walker 

  



Committee of the Whole                                   Meeting Agenda                                            October 30, 2017 

~ 2 ~ 

 

Call To Order  

Roll Call 

Also In Attendance  

Mayor Ebert, Matt Peoples, Lucas Haire, Amanda Jackson, 

Andrew Moore 

Items for Discussion 

17-178  Urban Livestock Draft Ordinance 

Attachments: Chap 1181.06 Amendment Ordinance 

17-251  Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan 

Attachments: 2017 CIP Forms 10-25-17 

  10002 Gender IV 10-17 

  10014 High St II 10-17   

17-247  2018 Budget 

Attachments: 2018 Budget – Draft  

17-252  Personnel Practices Handbook Update 

Attachments: Personnel Handbook Recap of Changes 

  Personnel Handbook Updated 10.17 

17-253  2018 Council Committees 

Attachments: Council Rules_Pages 4-7 

Adjournment 

    



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 17-___ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 

1181.06 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES REGARDING 

KEEPING OF AGRICULTURAL ANIMALS IN NON-AGRICULTURAL DISTRICTS 

 

 WHEREAS, some residents of the City have inquired regarding the ability to keep 

chickens (hens) for purposes of harvesting eggs, in non-agricultural residential districts; and 

 WHEREAS, some residents have also inquired about the ability to keep other small fowl 

and small animals, such as rabbits, in non-agricultural residential districts; and 

WHEREAS, some residents have also inquired regarding the ability to keep goats, in 

non-agricultural residential districts; and 

WHEREAS, some residents have also inquired regarding the ability to keep bees, in 

non-agricultural residential districts; and 

 WHEREAS, having examined practices and procedures of several other municipalities 

that authorize and regulate such activities, the Council of the City of Canal Winchester has 

determined that such activities may be permitted if appropriate regulations are observed; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CANAL WINCHESTER, OHIO: 

 Section 1. That Section 1181.06, Keeping of Horses, in the Planning and Zoning Code, 

shall hereby be amended to read as follows: 

Chapter 1181.06 Keeping of Agricultural Animals in Non-Agricultural Districts. 

(a) Keeping of Horses and Goats. Horses and goats may be kept in single family residential 

districts provided that: 

(1)  Minimum Acres Required. The minimum acreage on which horses or goats 

may be kept shall be five (5) acres.  

(2)  Number Limited Based on Acreage Available. There shall not be more than 

one (1) horse or four (4) goats per two and one-half (2.5) acres of land. 

(3)  Only Mares or Geldings. Only mares or geldings may be kept on lots less 

than ten (10) acres. 

(4)  Prohibited Animals. Nothing in this Section shall be construed or 

interpreted to permit the keeping of cattle, sheep, swine, or other 

agricultural animals, except as otherwise done in conformance with the 

Zoning Code.  

(5)  Fencing Required. Such land shall be fenced so as to securely confine said 

animals. Such fencing shall not be located closer to any public right-of-way or 

ajackson
Typewritten text
17-178



 

 

private street than the minimum setback in the district and shall not be located 

closer than fifteen (15) feet from any other property line. 

(6)  No Storage of Manure. No storage of manure or dust producing substances 

shall be permitted. 

(7)  Control of Odors Required. No odors may be detectable beyond the property 

on which such use exists.  

(8)  Building Setback Requirements. Any building used in connection with the 

keeping of horses or goats shall be located at least fifty (50) feet from any 

property line. 

(9.)  Use Permit Required. A use permit shall be issued by the Planning and 

Zoning Administrator to any applicant meeting the requirements of this 

section prior to the commencement of the keeping of horses and shall include 

the following information: 

(A.) Address where the horses or goats will be kept; 

(B.)  Name of the owner; 

(C.)  Phone number for the owner; 

(D.) Email Address for the owner; 

(E.)  A description of the type and number of animals to be kept; 

(F.)  A diagram of the property, drawn to scale, showing the 

proposed location and configuration of the structures housing 

the horses or goats as well as the relation of these structures to 

adjacent properties; 

(G.) A diagram of the shelter; 

(H.) A description of the feed storage containers and its location; 

(I.) Written consent from the applicant, valid for the duration of the 

permit, for a representative of the City, or of the county health 

department, to enter the applicant’s property for purposes of 

inspecting the premises for compliance with health, sanitation, 

and zoning laws and ordinances; 

(J.) Such other information as the Planning and Zoning 

Administrator determines is necessary to evaluate the suitability 

of the applicant or property.  

 

(b) Keeping of Chickens, Ducks, and Rabbits. Chickens, Ducks, or Rabbits may be kept 

in single family residential districts provided that: 

(1)  Minimum Acres Required. The minimum acreage on which chickens, 

ducks, and rabbits may be kept shall be two (2) acres. 

(2)  Number Limited Based on Acreage Available. There shall not be more 

than six (6) chickens, ducks, or rabbits per two (2) acres of land.  



 

 

(3)  Prohibited Animals. Nothing in this Section shall be construed or 

interpreted to permit the keeping of roosters, geese, peafowl, or turkeys, 

except as otherwise done in conformance with the Zoning Code.  

(A) No Commercial Use: Chickens, ducks, or rabbits shall be kept 

only for the personal use of persons residing in the principal structure 

on the lot where the chickens, ducks, or rabbits are kept.  

(B) This section does not permit the slaughter of chickens, ducks, 

or rabbits in residential districts of the City.  

(4)  Fencing Required. Such land shall be fenced so as to securely confine 

said animals. Such fending shall not be located closer to any public right-

of-way or private street than the minimum setback in the district. Such 

fence shall be at least six (6) feet tall and opaque such that it screens the 

sheltering structure and animal area from view of adjacent properties 

and public right-of-way.  

(5)  No Storage of Manure. No storage of manure or dust producing 

substances shall be permitted. 

(6)  Control of Odors Required. No odors may be detectable beyond the 

property on which such use exists. 

(7)  Building Setback Requirements. Any building used in connection with 

the keeping of chickens, ducks, or rabbits shall be located completely to 

the rear of the principal structure and shall be located to meet the rear 

and side yard setback requirements of the applicable residential zoning 

district. These structures shall not be located within a recorded easement.  

(8)  Use Permit Required.  A use permit shall be issued by the Planning and 

Zoning Administrator to any applicant meeting the requirements of this 

section prior to the commencement of the keeping of chickens, ducks, or 

rabbits and shall include the following information: 

(A) Address where the chickens, ducks, or rabbits will be kept; 

(B) Name of the owner; 

(C) Phone number for the owner; 

(D) Email Address for the owner; 

(E) A description of the type and number of animals to be kept; 

(F) A diagram of the property, drawn to scale, showing the proposed 

location and configuration of the structures housing the 

chickens, ducks, or rabbits as well as the relation of these 

structures to adjacent properties; 

(G) A diagram of the proposed coop or shelter; 

(H) A description of the feed storage containers and their locations; 

(I) A certificate, transcript, or receipt showing that the applicant 

has completed  a class on keeping backyard chickens, ducks, or 



 

 

rabbits from the Ohio State University Extension Office or other 

source approved by the Planning and Zoning Administrator; 

(J) If the applicant is a tenant on the property, written permission 

from the property owner; 

(K)  Written consent from the applicant, valid for the duration of the 

permit, for a representative of the City, or of the county health 

department, to enter the applicant’s property for purposes of 

inspecting the premises for compliance with health, sanitation, 

and zoning laws and ordinances; 

(L) Such other information as the Planning and Zoning 

Administrator determines is necessary to evaluate the suitability 

of the applicant or property.  

 

(c) Keeping of Bees. Bees and associated bee hives may be kept in single family 

residential districts provided that: 

(1) Minimum Acres Required. The minimum acreage on which bees and 

associated bee hives may be kept shall be two (2) acres. 

(2) Number. There shall not be more than one (1) beehive per (2) acres of 

land. 

(3) Prohibitions. No Africanized bees may be kept on a property under the 

regulations of this Section.  

(4) Fencing and Shrubs. A solid fence or dense hedge, known as a “flyway 

barrier,” at least six (6) feet in height, shall be placed along the side of the 

beehive that contains the entrance to the hive, and shall be located within 

five (5) feet of the hive and shall extend at least two (2) feet on either side 

of the hive. No such flyway barrier shall be required if all beehives are 

located at least forty (40) feet from all property lines. 

(5) Water Supply. A supply of fresh water shall be maintained in a location 

readily accessible to all bee colonies on the site throughout the day to 

prevent bees from congregating at neighboring swimming pools or other 

sources of water on nearby properties.  

(6) Building Setback Requirements. No beehive shall be kept closer than 

twenty five (25) feet to any lot line and ten (10) feet to a dwelling or the 

permitted placement of a dwelling on another parcel, and no beehive shall 

be kept in a required front yard or side yard. The front of any beehive 

shall face away from the property line of the Residential property closest 

to the beehive. 

(7) Use Permit Required.  A use permit shall be issued by the Planning and 

Zoning Administrator to any applicant meeting the requirements of this 



 

 

section prior to the commencement of the keeping of bees and shall 

include the following information: 

(M) Address where the bees will be kept; 

(N) Name of the owner; 

(O) Phone number for the owner; 

(P) Email Address for the owner; 

(Q) A description of the type and number of hives to be kept; 

(R) A diagram of the property, drawn to scale, showing the proposed 

location and configuration of the structures housing the bees as 

well as the relation of these structures to adjacent properties; 

(S) A diagram of the proposed hive or shelter; 

(T) A description of the water source and their locations; 

(U) If the applicant is a tenant on the property, written permission 

from the property owner; 

(V) Written consent from the applicant, valid for the duration of the 

permit, for a representative of the City, or of the county health 

department, to enter the applicant’s property for purposes of 

inspecting the premises for compliance with health, sanitation, 

and zoning laws and ordinances; 

(W) Such other information as the Planning and Zoning 

Administrator determines is necessary to evaluate the suitability 

of the applicant or property.  

 

Section 2.  The Council hereby determines that all deliberations and votes of a public body 

regarding this Ordinance were conducted in an open meeting in compliance with Section 121.22 

of the Ohio Revised Code. 

 

Section 3. This Ordinance shall take effect at the earliest date allowed by law.  

 

DATE PASSED ________________________ _________________________________ 

       PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 

 

ATTEST______________________________ _________________________________ 

    CLERK OF COUNCIL   MAYOR 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

______________________________________ 

LEGAL COUNSEL 

 

 I hereby certify that the ordinance as set forth above was published for a period of not 

less than fifteen days after passage by the Council, by posting a copy thereof in not less than 



 

 

three (3) public places in the municipal corporation, as determined by Council and as set forth in 

the Canal Winchester Charter. 

 

       ________________________________ 

       CLERK OF COUNCIL 

0128850.0615530   4848-8688-8008v4 



Ohio Public Works Commission
Capital Improvements Plan

Summary Form
 04911332  Franklin

Subdivision Code   County  Date  

Prepared by: Matthew C. Peoples     614-834-5111     mpeoples@canalwinchesterohio.gov

Infrastructure Replacement Repair Units/Physical Condition

Component Cost Cost Total Units Excellent Good Fair Poor Critical Unknown

Center Line Miles

Roads $24,453,000 $2,445,300 48.91 6.425 36.469 5.773 0.239   
Number of Bridges

Bridges $2,250,000 $562,500 9 5 4   
Number of Culverts

Culverts $1,600,000 $400,000 8  4 2 2  
Number of Facilities

Water Supply $10,000,000 $2,500,000 6
Linear Feet (Thousands)

Water Distribution $22,268,600 $5,567,150 222.686 37.557 118.753 55.275 11.101  
Number of Facilities

Wastewater Systems $17,500,000 $4,375,000 12 LS - 2   
Linear Feet (Thousands)

Wastewater Collection $32,081,200 $8,020,300 320.812 166.023 104.04 27.549 23.2  
Linear Feet (Thousands)

Stormwater Collection $20,646,200 $5,161,550 206.462 97.842 79.889 16.562 12.169   
Capacity (Tons per Day)

Solid Waste Disposal           

Totals $130,799,000 $29,031,800

Subdivision Socio-Economic Characteristics

Current

Population 7,919 Population 7,101 % LMI  

Total Households 2,905
Total 

Households 2,893 % Poverty 1.8%

% Unemployment 4.1% MHI $74,403 % Unemploy 8.0%

2010 Census Information

LS - 5

Plant-1  

Well Site-1

City of Canal Winchester 10/25/17

 

LS - 4   

Plant -1

 

Tower -3  

Well Site-1

ajackson
Typewritten text
17-251



Subdivision Name:  City of Canal Winchester

Project Name/Description Funding Status Total

Code (A)ctive Cost

(C)omplete 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

1 Westchester Section 2 Rehabilitations LO C $400,000 X   

2 N Gender Forcemain Reconstruction LO C $175,000 X  

3 Westchester Trunk Main/Manhole Rehabilitations LO C $575,000 X X

4 Winchester Trace Rehabilitation LO C $300,000 X   

5 Oregon/Lithopolis Rehabilitations & Cuvert Repair LO C $60,000 X  

6 Grit Classifier Replacement LO C $100,000 X  

7 High St. Rehabilitation Ph. I LO C $200,000 X   

8 W. Waterloo Waterline replacement LO C $175,000 X  

9 Groveport Pike Force Main Replacement LO C $250,000  X   

10 10001 Miscellaneous Pavement Repairs LO A $50,000 X X X X X X X

11 10002 Sidewalk Repairs/Replacements LO A $25,000 X X X X X X X

12 10003 Gender Road Improvements - Phase IV LO/OPWC A $2,423,406 X X X     

13 10004 Towing Path Parking Lot LO A $100,000 X X

14 10005 AMI Metering LO A $450,000 X X X    

15 10006 McGill Park Development LO, PR, GRANTS A $7,000,000 X X X

16 10007 Greengate Blvd Extension LO/PR A $1,000,000 X X X  

17 10008 Westchester Section 7 Rehabilitation LO A $100,000 X  

18 10009 Ashbrook Mains Phase 1 LO A $175,000  X    

19 10011 Ashbrook Cul-de-sacs - Phase 1 LO A $95,000  X    

20 10012 Ashbrook Cul-de-sacs - Phase 2 LO A $80,000  X    

21 10013 Canal & Prentiss Rehabilitations LO A $110,000 X

22 10014 High St. Rehabilitation Phase II LO A $250,000 X   

23 10015 N. Gender LS Odor Control LO A $50,000 X

24 10016 Canal Pointe Manhole Linings LO A $150,000  X

25 10017 WRF Upgrades for PO4 Removal LO A $400,000 X X  

26 10018 WTP Rehabilitations/Improvements LO A $225,000 X X  

27 10019 Groveport/Dye/Manor Waterline Replacement LO/OPWC/OEPA A $750,000 X X X   

Project 

Number

Funded Planned

Page 1 of 2

Five Year Capital Improvements Plan/Maintenance of Effort

10/25/2017

Five Year Plan

Effort

Two Year

Ohio Public Works Commission

 

 



Project Name/Description Funding Status Total

Code (A)ctive Cost

(C)omplete 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

28 10020 Trine St. Rehabilitation Phase I LO A $150,000 X

29 10021 Pool Paintings LO A $50,000 X

30 10022 Westchester Section 3 LO A $250,000  X   

31 10023 Groveport Rd. Path Trailhead Park LO A $100,000 X

32 10024 Dietz/Burgstresser Bridge Rehabilitation LO A $100,000   X

33 10025 Ashbrook Cul-de-sacs - Phase 3 LO A $50,000   X   

34 10026 Tussing Ditch Path LO/PR A $150,000    X

35 10027 Bowen Rd. Culvert LO A $250,000   X  

36 10028 Emmas Meadow Storm LO/PR A $250,000 X

37 10029 Howe Pond Pier LO A $75,000   X

38 10030 Groveport Bikepath Extension East LO A $250,000 X

39 10031 Walnut Creek Park Drainage Improvements LO A $75,000   X X

40 10032 Groveport-MetroParks Path Connection LO/ODNR/MP A $500,000  X X   

41 10033 Groveport Rd. Improvements LO/OPWC A $2,000,000 X X X

42 10034 Ashbrook Mains Phase 2 LO A $200,000    X  

43 10035 Westchester Section 3 Mains LO A $200,000    X   

44 10036 W. Waterloo Rehabilitation Phase II LO A $200,000    X  

45 10037 E. Waterloo Rehabilitation & Sewer Improvements LO A $250,000   X

46 10038 Old W. Waterloo Rehabilitation LO A $100,000 X

47 10039 Pfeifer Dr. Rehabilitation LO A $150,000 X  

48 10040 Winchester Village Section II Rehabilitation LO A $250,000 X  

49 10041 Busey Rd. Widening LO/VT/PICK A $1,000,000 X

50 10042 Hill Rd./Kings Crossing Roundabout LO/PR/FC/ODOT A $2,600,000 X

51 10043 Municipal Building Construction LO A $6,000,000  X X  

52 10044 W. Waterloo Rehabilitation Phase III LO A $150,000    X

53 10045 Dietz Rd Rehabilitation Phase II LO A $150,000  X

54 10046 Historical Complex Improvements LO/GRANT A $250,000  X

55 10047 Westchester Section 4 Rehabilitations LO A $200,000 X

56 10048 Gender Rd. Path Extension LO A $300,000 X

57 10049 E. Waterloo Rehabilitation LO A $200,000 X

58 10050 WTP Garage LO A $100,000 X

59 10051 Dove Parkway Extension LO/PR A $1,000,000  X

60 10052 High St. Soundwall ODOT A $1,000,000 X

Project 

Number

Two Year Five Year Plan

Effort

Funded Planned



Project Name/Description Funding Status Total

Code (A)ctive Cost

(C)omplete 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

61 10053 Winchester Boulevard Extension LO/ODOT A $15,500,000      X

62 10054 W. Waterloo Rehabilitation Phase IV LO A $200,000   X

63 10055 Amanda Northern Rehabilitation LO A $50,000    X

64 10056 Trine St. Rehabilitation Phase II LO A $150,000   X

65 10057 Ashbrook Mains Phase 2 LO A $200,000      X

66 10058 Washington St. Path LO A $100,000    X

67 10059 Busey-Winchester Pike Connector LO/PR A $1,000,000  X

68 10060 WTP SCADA Upgrades LO A $75,000 X

69 10061 Gender Rd. Rehabilitation LO/ODOT A $500,000 X

70 10062 Columbus St. Pervious Pavement LO A $100,000 X

71 10063 Downtown Paver/Streetscape Rehabilitation LO A $200,000 X

72 10064 WRF Screener Building Roof Replacement LO A $25,000 X

73 10065 WRF Headworks Replacement LO/WPCLF A $4,000,000 X

74 10066 High Street Overpass LO/PR/ODOT A $20,000,000    X

Project 

Number

Five Year Plan

PlannedFunded

Effort

Two Year



 
 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FACT SHEET:  
 

 Project # 10002    Gender Rd. Improvements, Phase IV 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Project Description 

 

This project consists realigning the Groveport Rd./Gender Rd. intersection, adding a second left turn land from 

eastbound Groveport Rd. to northbound Gender Rd, a right turn lane from westbound Groveport Rd. to 

northbound Gender Rd., mast arm signals for Groveport Rd. and Walnut St. intersections, reconstructed railroad 

crossing, waterline improvements and extending the Groveport multi-use path west approximately 2,500 feet. 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Project Estimate/Funding Project Preliminary Timeline

Funding Source: General/Water Fund/ OPWC 

 

 

Engineering:  2017

Cost: $2,423,406 

 

Project Inception: 2011 

 

Construction: 2018 

                

 
  



 
 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FACT SHEET:  
 

 Project # 10014    High St. Rehabilitations, Phase II 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Project Description 

 

This project involves the rehabilitation of High St. from the 

RR tracks on the south side to U.S. Route 33 on the north 

side.  Project will include milling of existing asphalt 

surface; partial and full depth pavement repairs, where 

needed; possible installation of pavement fabric; a new 

layer of asphalt wearing course; sidewalk connectivity to 

the south; curb and gutter spot repairs, if needed; re-set 

storm grates; new/repaired concrete collars for manholes 

and water boxes; and new striping. 

 

______________________________________________ 

 

Project Estimate/Funding 

 

Cost: $250,000 

 

Funding Source: General Fund 

 

Project Inception: 2013 

______________________________________________ 

 

Project Preliminary Timeline 

 

Engineering:  2017 

 

Construction: 2018 

 

   



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 1/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 100 GENERAL FUND

Dept 100-SHERIFF
Expenditure

1,097,000.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
6,500.00 JAILING SERVICES
5,000.00 LABOR DAY SECURITY

1,085,500.00 FAIRFIELD COUNTY SHERIFF
1,097,000.00 743,572.25 1,069,425.61 PAYMENT TO POLITICAL SUBDIVISION100-100-5347-00

1,000.00 432.81 2,522.82 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS100-100-5400-00

24,000.00 SHERIFF'S VEHICLE
24,000.00 21,891.00 24,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-100-5500-00

1,122,000.00 765,896.06 1,095,948.43   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

1,122,000.00 765,896.06 1,095,948.43 Totals for dept 100-SHERIFF

Dept 200-PUBLIC HEALTH - COUNTY HEALTH DEPT
Expenditure

72,600.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
7,000.00 MOSQUITO CONTROL

65,600.00 PUBLIC HEALTH CONTRACT
72,600.00 66,223.39 68,000.00 PAYMENT TO POLITICAL SUBDIVISION100-200-5347-00

72,600.00 66,223.39 68,000.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

72,600.00 66,223.39 68,000.00 Totals for dept 200-PUBLIC HEALTH - COUNTY HEALTH DEPT

Dept 201-PUBLIC HEALTH - HUMAN SERVICES
Expenditure

63,100.00 61,256.00 78,058.00 HUMAN SERVICES CONTRACT100-201-5342-00

63,100.00 61,256.00 78,058.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

63,100.00 61,256.00 78,058.00 Totals for dept 201-PUBLIC HEALTH - HUMAN SERVICES

Dept 202-PUBLIC HEALTH - CEMETERY
Expenditure

1,000.00 1,000.00 CEMETERY/INDIGENT BURIAL100-202-5341-00

1,000.00 1,000.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

1,000.00 1,000.00 Totals for dept 202-PUBLIC HEALTH - CEMETERY

Dept 300-RECREATION - COMMUNITY CENTER
Expenditure

44,000.00 33,852.00 43,000.00 REGULAR SALARIES100-300-5100-00
800.00 500.00 OVERTIME SALARIES100-300-5110-00

6,500.00 4,739.28 6,160.00 PERS100-300-5200-00
660.00 456.90 640.00 MEDICARE100-300-5210-00

1,130.00 130.18 1,100.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION100-300-5220-00
24,500.00 18,830.79 22,107.65 INSURANCE PREMIUMS100-300-5230-00

100.00 100.00 TRAVEL/TRANSPORTATION100-300-5240-00
100.00 100.00 UNIFORMS/LICENSES100-300-5250-00
250.00 250.00 TRAINING/EDUCATION100-300-5325-00

13,000.00 6,466.25 11,201.89 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES100-300-5340-00
1,000.00 201.04 750.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS100-300-5400-00
4,000.00 1,062.31 3,134.12 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE100-300-5410-00

1,500.00 COMPUTER REPLACEMENT
3,000.00 607.27 3,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-300-5500-00

99,040.00 66,346.02 92,043.66   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

99,040.00 66,346.02 92,043.66 Totals for dept 300-RECREATION - COMMUNITY CENTER

Dept 301-RECREATION - PARKS
Expenditure

126,000.00 95,978.45 120,000.00 REGULAR SALARIES100-301-5100-00
14,800.00 6,396.49 13,700.00 OVERTIME SALARIES100-301-5110-00
21,000.00 14,332.53 18,810.00 PERS100-301-5200-00
2,060.00 1,468.34 1,940.00 MEDICARE100-301-5210-00
3,540.00 668.81 3,350.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION100-301-5220-00

60,000.00 46,211.97 54,415.30 INSURANCE PREMIUMS100-301-5230-00
2,400.00 1,200.00 1,800.00 UNIFORMS/LICENSES100-301-5250-00

400.00 126.92 400.00 TRAINING/EDUCATION100-301-5325-00
5,000.00 2,831.50 5,148.50 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES100-301-5340-00

20,000.00 4,102.51 20,000.00 MISCELLANEOUS CONTRACT SERVICES100-301-5349-00
18,000.00 9,089.22 18,007.22 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE100-301-5410-00

50,000.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
20,000.00 POOL PUMPS
5,000.00 PARK SIGNAGE

25,000.00 WESTCHESTER SHELTER HOUSE
60,000.00 1,353.46 10,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-301-5500-00

ajackson
Typewritten text
17-247



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 2/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 100 GENERAL FUND

Dept 301-RECREATION - PARKS
Expenditure

333,200.00 183,760.20 267,571.02   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

333,200.00 183,760.20 267,571.02 Totals for dept 301-RECREATION - PARKS

Dept 302-RECREATION - SWIMMING POOL
Expenditure

130,000.00 120,310.00 125,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES100-302-5320-00
3,000.00 1,472.64 5,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS100-302-5400-00
5,000.00 1,994.56 12,442.77 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE100-302-5410-00

15,000.00 10,557.23 10,557.23 CONCESSIONS OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE100-302-5410-03
10,000.00 7,104.73 7,500.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-302-5500-00

163,000.00 141,439.16 160,500.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

163,000.00 141,439.16 160,500.00 Totals for dept 302-RECREATION - SWIMMING POOL

Dept 400-DEVELOPMENT
Expenditure

205,000.00 153,005.85 202,000.00 REGULAR SALARIES100-400-5100-00
29,500.00 20,772.92 28,860.00 PERS100-400-5200-00
3,040.00 2,200.58 2,990.00 MEDICARE100-400-5210-00
5,240.00 914.54 5,140.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION100-400-5220-00

60,000.00 46,211.97 54,422.95 INSURANCE PREMIUMS100-400-5230-00
2,000.00 735.92 2,000.00 TRAVEL/TRANSPORTATION100-400-5240-00

300.00 300.00 UNIFORMS/LICENSES100-400-5250-00

20,000.00 MARKETING PROGRAM
165,000.00 85,486.61 147,828.44 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES100-400-5320-00

2,500.00 2,848.00 3,225.00 TRAINING/EDUCATION100-400-5325-00

14,500.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
2,000.00 FAIRFIELD PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERSHIP
7,500.00 FAIRFIELD 33 MEMBERSHIP
5,000.00 MODE MEMBERSHIP

16,000.00 14,438.25 15,000.00 MEMBERSHIPS/SUBSCRIPTIONS100-400-5345-00

55,000.00 30,209.67 60,348.27 MISCELLANEOUS CONTRACT SERVICES100-400-5349-00
3,500.00 2,024.00 2,500.00 GIS100-400-5352-00
2,200.00 844.85 2,200.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS100-400-5400-00

3,500.00 COMPUTER REPLACEMENTS
3,500.00 1,569.00 3,500.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-400-5500-00

552,780.00 361,262.16 530,314.66   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

552,780.00 361,262.16 530,314.66 Totals for dept 400-DEVELOPMENT

Dept 401-DEVELOPMENT - CWICC GRANT
Expenditure

45,000.00 CWICC GRANT/DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES100-401-5350-00

45,000.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

45,000.00 Totals for dept 401-DEVELOPMENT - CWICC GRANT

Dept 410-URBAN FORESTER
Expenditure

117,000.00 70,627.36 78,000.00 REGULAR SALARIES100-410-5100-00
5,000.00 91.90 1,300.00 OVERTIME SALARIES100-410-5110-00

17,600.00 9,460.60 11,480.00 PERS100-410-5200-00
1,900.00 1,027.73 1,180.00 MEDICARE100-410-5210-00
3,200.00 428.44 2,040.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION100-410-5220-00

30,000.00 12,516.69 22,107.65 INSURANCE PREMIUMS100-410-5230-00
500.00 34.64 500.00 TRAVEL/TRANSPORTATION100-410-5240-00

1,300.00 235.00 600.00 UNIFORMS/LICENSES100-410-5250-00
750.00 390.00 1,000.00 TRAINING/EDUCATION100-410-5325-00

17,500.00 8,249.59 21,263.46 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES100-410-5340-00
5,000.00 3,082.79 3,537.34 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE100-410-5410-00

15,000.00 10,698.19 12,492.26 FLOWERS/MULCH/STAB OPERATION AND MAINTEN100-410-5410-02

41,000.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
1,000.00 COMPUTER REPLACEMENT

40,000.00 STREET TREES
41,000.00 16,186.10 30,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-410-5500-00

255,750.00 133,029.03 185,500.71   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

255,750.00 133,029.03 185,500.71 Totals for dept 410-URBAN FORESTER

Dept 500-MAYOR
Expenditure

141,000.00 77,793.35 97,000.00 REGULAR SALARIES100-500-5100-00
300.00 OVERTIME SALARIES100-500-5110-00

20,500.00 10,191.09 13,880.00 PERS100-500-5200-00



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 3/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 100 GENERAL FUND

Dept 500-MAYOR
Expenditure

1,560.00 1,108.21 1,440.00 MEDICARE100-500-5210-00
2,690.00 388.38 2,480.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION100-500-5220-00

42,875.00 18,830.79 22,107.65 INSURANCE PREMIUMS100-500-5230-00
100.00 100.00 TRAVEL/TRANSPORTATION100-500-5240-00
100.00 100.00 UNIFORMS/LICENSES100-500-5250-00

62,000.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
60,000.00 FUNDRAISING CONTRACT
2,000.00 ICE MILLER - SB331 LITIGATION COST SHARE

64,500.00 2,220.00 2,500.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES100-500-5320-00

2,000.00 1,516.50 2,000.00 TRAINING/EDUCATION100-500-5325-00
48,000.00 44,002.12 48,000.00 INSURANCE/BONDING100-500-5330-00

700.00 LABOR DAY TRASH
1,000.00 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES100-500-5340-00

6,350.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
1,250.00 OML MEMBERSHIP

500.00 COMMA
4,600.00 MORPC DUES
7,000.00 4,920.46 5,500.00 MEMBERSHIPS/SUBSCRIPTIONS100-500-5345-00

500.00 677.15 1,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS100-500-5400-00
2,500.00 1,358.94 1,700.00 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE100-500-5410-00
1,000.00 1,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-500-5500-00

335,625.00 163,006.99 198,807.65   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

335,625.00 163,006.99 198,807.65 Totals for dept 500-MAYOR

Dept 501-COUNCIL
Expenditure

50,000.00 57,164.29 95,000.00 REGULAR SALARIES100-501-5100-00
12,300.00 10,475.15 18,590.00 PERS100-501-5200-00

720.00 866.44 1,380.00 MEDICARE100-501-5210-00
1,290.00 427.38 2,430.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION100-501-5220-00

77,000.00 46,256.77 93,507.65 INSURANCE PREMIUMS100-501-5230-00
250.00 1,000.00 TRAVEL/TRANSPORTATION100-501-5240-00

1,100.00 800.00 UNIFORMS/LICENSES100-501-5250-00

5,360.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
360.00 ONLINE HOSTING

5,000.00 WALTER DRANE
6,000.00 5,164.81 12,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES100-501-5320-00

500.00 685.00 800.00 TRAINING/EDUCATION100-501-5325-00
22,000.00 15,653.84 22,000.00 DESTINATION: CANAL WINCHESTER100-501-5344-00

250.00 500.00 MEMBERSHIPS/SUBSCRIPTIONS100-501-5345-00
250.00 30.99 250.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS100-501-5400-00

1,000.00 TOWN HALL COMPUTER REPLACEMENT
1,500.00 99.68 500.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-501-5500-00

173,160.00 136,824.35 248,757.65   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

173,160.00 136,824.35 248,757.65 Totals for dept 501-COUNCIL

Dept 510-MAYOR'S COURT
Expenditure

47,000.00 35,966.76 45,000.00 REGULAR SALARIES100-510-5100-00
2,500.00 176.06 2,200.00 OVERTIME SALARIES100-510-5110-00
7,200.00 5,060.04 6,710.00 PERS100-510-5200-00

730.00 504.83 690.00 MEDICARE100-510-5210-00
1,240.00 236.61 1,200.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION100-510-5220-00

24,500.00 18,880.79 22,107.65 INSURANCE PREMIUMS100-510-5230-00
500.00 273.48 500.00 TRAVEL/TRANSPORTATION100-510-5240-00
100.00 100.00 UNIFORMS/LICENSES100-510-5250-00

13,900.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
500.00 INTAKE SERVICES

4,000.00 COLUMBUS PROPORTIONAL SHARE
4,000.00 PUBLIC DEFENDER
5,400.00 MAGISTRATE SERVICES

13,500.00 7,377.12 10,201.12 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES100-510-5320-00

750.00 110.00 750.00 TRAINING/EDUCATION100-510-5325-00

900.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
250.00 AMCCO/COAMCC
650.00 LEADS RENEWAL

1,000.00 685.00 1,000.00 MEMBERSHIPS/SUBSCRIPTIONS100-510-5345-00

3,000.00 1,323.48 3,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS100-510-5400-00
1,000.00 1,500.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-510-5500-00

103,020.00 70,594.17 94,958.77   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

103,020.00 70,594.17 94,958.77 Totals for dept 510-MAYOR'S COURT



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 4/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 100 GENERAL FUND

Dept 520-FINANCE
Expenditure

148,000.00 113,675.75 141,000.00 REGULAR SALARIES100-520-5100-00
21,300.00 15,775.08 20,120.00 PERS100-520-5200-00
2,200.00 1,602.60 2,090.00 MEDICARE100-520-5210-00
3,790.00 428.77 3,590.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION100-520-5220-00

49,000.00 37,761.58 44,215.30 INSURANCE PREMIUMS100-520-5230-00

1,200.00 OHIO GFOA CONF IN CINCI
1,200.00 1,000.00 TRAVEL/TRANSPORTATION100-520-5240-00

200.00 200.00 UNIFORMS/LICENSES100-520-5250-00

7,600.00 FINANCIAL STATEMENT COMPILATION
10,000.00 9,869.00 10,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES100-520-5320-00

1,500.00 940.00 1,400.00 TRAINING/EDUCATION100-520-5325-00
750.00 380.00 500.00 MEMBERSHIPS/SUBSCRIPTIONS100-520-5345-00

12,500.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
8,000.00 CREDIT CARD FEES
4,500.00 BANK FEES

40,000.00 27,413.16 50,469.22 MISCELLANEOUS CONTRACT SERVICES100-520-5349-00

1,500.00 674.85 1,717.08 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS100-520-5400-00

4,500.00 COMPUTER AND PRINTER REPLACEMENTS
4,500.00 138.89 1,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-520-5500-00

283,940.00 208,659.68 277,301.60   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

283,940.00 208,659.68 277,301.60 Totals for dept 520-FINANCE

Dept 521-HUMAN RESOURCES
Expenditure

46,000.00 34,356.60 43,000.00 REGULAR SALARIES100-521-5100-00
6,630.00 4,809.92 6,160.00 PERS100-521-5200-00

690.00 495.88 640.00 MEDICARE100-521-5210-00
1,180.00 131.07 1,100.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION100-521-5220-00

150.00 170.00 500.00 INSURANCE PREMIUMS100-521-5230-00
1,750.00 388.37 1,750.00 TRAVEL/TRANSPORTATION100-521-5240-00

100.00 100.00 UNIFORMS/LICENSES100-521-5250-00
1,000.00 477.50 500.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES100-521-5320-00
1,250.00 724.00 1,350.00 TRAINING/EDUCATION100-521-5325-00
1,000.00 50.00 650.00 MEMBERSHIPS/SUBSCRIPTIONS100-521-5345-00

3,200.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
500.00 BACKGROUND CHECKS

1,200.00 HELPNET
1,500.00 DRUG TESTING
4,000.00 2,176.11 2,500.00 MISCELLANEOUS CONTRACT SERVICES100-521-5349-00

300.00 50.51 300.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS100-521-5400-00

1,000.00 COMPUTER REPLACEMENT
1,000.00 500.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-521-5500-00

65,050.00 43,829.96 59,050.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

65,050.00 43,829.96 59,050.00 Totals for dept 521-HUMAN RESOURCES

Dept 530-PUBLIC SERVICE
Expenditure

51,000.00 38,287.22 48,000.00 REGULAR SALARIES100-530-5100-00
4,500.00 974.43 2,800.00 OVERTIME SALARIES100-530-5110-00
8,000.00 5,496.66 7,410.00 PERS100-530-5200-00

800.00 561.66 770.00 MEDICARE100-530-5210-00
1,370.00 203.14 1,320.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION100-530-5220-00

24,500.00 18,830.79 22,107.65 INSURANCE PREMIUMS100-530-5230-00
100.00 100.00 TRAVEL/TRANSPORTATION100-530-5240-00
600.00 400.00 600.00 UNIFORMS/LICENSES100-530-5250-00
500.00 500.00 TRAINING/EDUCATION100-530-5325-00

7,500.00 1,292.30 7,797.50 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES100-530-5340-00
500.00 325.00 500.00 MEMBERSHIPS/SUBSCRIPTIONS100-530-5345-00

7,500.00 2,568.43 3,391.76 MISCELLANEOUS CONTRACT SERVICES100-530-5349-00
1,000.00 253.35 1,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS100-530-5400-00
5,000.00 2,252.37 5,892.22 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE100-530-5410-00

10,000.00 SPEED CONTROL DEVICE(S)
20,000.00 9,879.00 14,500.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-530-5500-00

132,870.00 81,324.35 116,689.13   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

132,870.00 81,324.35 116,689.13 Totals for dept 530-PUBLIC SERVICE

Dept 531-PUBLIC SERVICE - FLEET
Expenditure

13,000.00 10,807.42 21,177.28 FUEL100-531-5411-00
15,000.00 9,268.32 27,097.28 FLEET OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE100-531-5420-00
5,000.00 6,422.90 12,500.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-531-5500-00

33,000.00 26,498.64 60,774.56   TOTAL EXPENDITURE



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 5/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 100 GENERAL FUND

Dept 531-PUBLIC SERVICE - FLEET

33,000.00 26,498.64 60,774.56 Totals for dept 531-PUBLIC SERVICE - FLEET

Dept 540-LANDS AND BUILDINGS
Expenditure

87,000.00 86,211.80 106,000.00 REGULAR SALARIES100-540-5100-00
7,100.00 252.50 5,100.00 OVERTIME SALARIES100-540-5110-00

13,600.00 11,111.61 15,850.00 PERS100-540-5200-00
1,350.00 1,220.32 1,640.00 MEDICARE100-540-5210-00
2,350.00 315.44 2,830.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION100-540-5220-00

30,000.00 25,319.86 32,315.30 INSURANCE PREMIUMS100-540-5230-00
200.00 200.00 TRAVEL/TRANSPORTATION100-540-5240-00

1,200.00 845.75 1,200.00 UNIFORMS/LICENSES100-540-5250-00
255,000.00 213,048.98 262,564.59 UTILITIES100-540-5300-00

500.00 106.15 500.00 TRAINING/EDUCATION100-540-5325-00

13,100.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
5,600.00 ELEVATOR MAINTENANCE
2,500.00 FIRE ALARM AND EXTINGUISHER TESTING - ALL BUILDINGS
5,000.00 HVAC YEARLY MAINTENANCE - ALL BUILDINGS

35,000.00 22,594.81 34,457.67 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES100-540-5340-00

15,000.00 CLEANING SERVICES - ALL GENERAL FUND BUILDINGS
37,000.00 22,694.05 38,961.90 MISCELLANEOUS CONTRACT SERVICES100-540-5349-00

32,400.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
4,400.00 TWO FACTOR AUTHENTICATION/VM SUPPORT

10,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES
1,000.00 SHREDDING SERVICES

17,000.00 MICROSOFT SERVICES
32,400.00 18,281.89 28,733.03 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS100-540-5400-00

32,000.00 9,819.97 12,939.22 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE100-540-5410-00
10,000.00 6,931.06 17,500.00 FLAGS/BANNERS/SIGNS100-540-5431-00

25,000.00 PERMANENT MESSAGE BOARD
60,000.00 222,865.66 285,801.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-540-5500-00

36,000.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
10,000.00 CAMERAS/SECURITY ASSESSMENT
26,000.00 SERVER PROJECT
40,000.00 6,069.81 30,000.00 TECHNOLOGY CAPITAL OUTLAY100-540-5510-00

644,700.00 647,689.66 876,592.71   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

644,700.00 647,689.66 876,592.71 Totals for dept 540-LANDS AND BUILDINGS

Dept 550-COMMUNITY AFFAIRS
Expenditure

44,000.00 33,852.00 43,000.00 REGULAR SALARIES100-550-5100-00
1,600.00 120.92 1,500.00 OVERTIME SALARIES100-550-5110-00
6,600.00 4,756.21 6,010.00 PERS100-550-5200-00

670.00 479.14 620.00 MEDICARE100-550-5210-00
1,150.00 250.87 1,070.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION100-550-5220-00

24,500.00 18,830.79 22,107.65 INSURANCE PREMIUMS100-550-5230-00
750.00 500.00 TRAVEL/TRANSPORTATION100-550-5240-00
100.00 100.00 UNIFORMS/LICENSES100-550-5250-00

3,000.00 3,000.00 TRAINING/EDUCATION100-550-5325-00
5,000.00 1,695.59 6,793.12 COMMUNITY NEWSLETTER100-550-5327-00

500.00 750.00 MEMBERSHIPS/SUBSCRIPTIONS100-550-5345-00
1,200.00 489.37 785.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS100-550-5400-00
1,000.00 789.70 1,300.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-550-5500-00

90,070.00 61,264.59 87,535.77   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

90,070.00 61,264.59 87,535.77 Totals for dept 550-COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

Dept 551-COMMUNITY AFFAIRS - EVENTS
Expenditure

20,000.00 8,418.00 18,000.00 MISCELLANEOUS CONTRACT SERVICES100-551-5349-00
1,250.00 290.76 1,240.26 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS100-551-5400-00
1,300.00 1,097.84 1,300.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-551-5500-00

22,550.00 9,806.60 20,540.26   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

22,550.00 9,806.60 20,540.26 Totals for dept 551-COMMUNITY AFFAIRS - EVENTS

Dept 560-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
Expenditure

91,000.00 70,556.81 88,000.00 REGULAR SALARIES100-560-5100-00
13,100.00 9,382.17 12,560.00 PERS100-560-5200-00
1,350.00 987.91 1,300.00 MEDICARE100-560-5210-00
2,330.00 403.32 2,240.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION100-560-5220-00

24,500.00 18,830.79 22,107.65 INSURANCE PREMIUMS100-560-5230-00
1,000.00 2,500.00 TRAVEL/TRANSPORTATION100-560-5240-00

350.00 200.00 600.00 UNIFORMS/LICENSES100-560-5250-00



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 6/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 100 GENERAL FUND

Dept 560-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
Expenditure

15,000.00 NETWORK CONSULTING SERVICES
15,000.00 5,800.01 7,500.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES100-560-5320-00

5,000.00 3,625.00 7,000.00 TRAINING/EDUCATION100-560-5325-00
4,000.00 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES100-560-5340-00

5,000.00 5,012.66 15,732.15 MEMBERSHIPS/SUBSCRIPTIONS100-560-5345-00
1,500.00 1,125.01 1,500.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS100-560-5400-00
2,500.00 1,268.02 2,500.00 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE100-560-5410-00

2,500.00 COMPUTER REPLACEMENT
3,000.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-560-5500-00

165,630.00 118,691.70 169,039.80   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

165,630.00 118,691.70 169,039.80 Totals for dept 560-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Dept 570-ADMINISTRATION
Expenditure

20,100.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
2,000.00 LEGAL ADVERTISING
3,000.00 POSTAGE
2,500.00 POSTAGE METER
3,000.00 COPY CHARGES
9,600.00 COPIER LEASES

24,000.00 13,413.53 23,854.61 COMMUNICATIONS/PRINTING/ADVERTISING100-570-5310-00

224,100.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
4,100.00 COMP MANAGEMENT

20,000.00 METZ BAILEY
200,000.00 FROST BROWN TODD
225,000.00 164,497.62 242,641.18 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES100-570-5320-00

186,000.00 150,117.15 170,000.00 INCOME TAX COLLECTION FEES100-570-5322-00
16,000.00 11,242.87 16,000.00 COUNTY AUDITOR/TREASURER FEES100-570-5323-00
3,000.00 3,000.00 ELECTION EXPENSES100-570-5324-00
8,000.00 8,000.00 CANAL WINCHESTER HISTORICAL SOCIETY100-570-5343-00
3,600.00 NATIONAL BARBER MUSEUM100-570-5343-01

14,000.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
6,000.00 MAXGALAXY SUPPORT
8,000.00 BS&A SUPPORT

14,000.00 7,314.90 7,500.00 MEMBERSHIPS/SUBSCRIPTIONS100-570-5345-00

685,600.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
10,600.00 FCEMA

235,000.00 CANAL MOB
10,000.00 PROPERTY TAXES

430,000.00 VIOLET TOWNSHIP CEDA
500,000.00 589,031.69 672,000.00 PAYMENT TO POLITICAL SUBDIVISION100-570-5347-00

104,300.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
69,000.00 MCGILL PARK
16,000.00 2018 LEASES
19,300.00 2016 EQUIPMENT LEASE

104,300.00 18,818.92 28,500.00 LEASE PRINCIPAL100-570-5601-00

23,500.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
21,000.00 MCGILL PARK
1,600.00 2018 LEASES

900.00 2016 EQUIPMENT PURCHASE
23,500.00 1,300.27 2,250.00 LEASE INTEREST100-570-5611-00

1,240,000.00 1,333,060.00 1,342,000.00 TRANSFER OUT100-570-5700-00

2,347,400.00 2,288,796.95 2,515,745.79   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

2,347,400.00 2,288,796.95 2,515,745.79 Totals for dept 570-ADMINISTRATION

Dept 600-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
Expenditure

126,000.00 97,495.44 120,000.00 REGULAR SALARIES100-600-5100-00
200.00 300.00 OVERTIME SALARIES100-600-5110-00

18,100.00 13,167.67 17,160.00 PERS100-600-5200-00
1,870.00 1,390.83 1,780.00 MEDICARE100-600-5210-00
3,220.00 9.52 3,060.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION100-600-5220-00

27,000.00 18,890.79 27,480.90 INSURANCE PREMIUMS100-600-5230-00
100.00 100.00 TRAVEL/TRANSPORTATION100-600-5240-00
650.00 350.00 UNIFORMS/LICENSES100-600-5250-00

100,000.00 88,548.00 148,064.39 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES100-600-5320-00
215,000.00 221,622.47 522,551.25 CONSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL SERVICES100-600-5320-01

1,200.00 365.00 1,200.00 TRAINING/EDUCATION100-600-5325-00
1,000.00 466.86 1,357.28 MISCELLANEOUS CONTRACT SERVICES100-600-5349-00
1,000.00 341.11 1,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS100-600-5400-00
2,000.00 22,669.15 25,500.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-600-5500-00

730,000.00 614,445.15 806,992.50 CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL OUTLAY100-600-5501-00

1,227,340.00 1,079,411.99 1,676,896.32   TOTAL EXPENDITURE



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 7/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 100 GENERAL FUND

Dept 600-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

1,227,340.00 1,079,411.99 1,676,896.32 Totals for dept 600-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

Dept 603-STREETS - MAINTENANCE
Expenditure

10,000.00 STREET LIGHT PAINTING
20,000.00 17,376.18 21,410.21 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES100-603-5340-00

5,000.00 1,527.85 5,000.00 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE100-603-5410-00

STREET LIGHTS
35,000.00 25,000.00 63,250.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY100-603-5500-00

60,000.00 43,904.03 89,660.21   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

60,000.00 43,904.03 89,660.21 Totals for dept 603-STREETS - MAINTENANCE

(9,970,558.26)(1,623,733.26)(3,880,504.28)ENDING FUND BALANCE
(1,623,733.26)5,135,782.42 5,135,782.42 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

8,346,825.00 6,759,515.68 9,016,286.70 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 100



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 8/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 200 STREET MAINTENANCE

Dept 601-STREET OFFICE
Expenditure

154,000.00 113,620.41 146,000.00 REGULAR SALARIES200-601-5100-00
4,500.00 515.28 6,100.00 OVERTIME SALARIES200-601-5110-00

23,000.00 15,612.75 21,450.00 PERS200-601-5200-00
2,400.00 1,631.82 2,220.00 MEDICARE200-601-5210-00
4,100.00 703.56 3,820.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION200-601-5220-00

49,000.00 37,661.58 44,215.30 INSURANCE PREMIUMS200-601-5230-00
50.00 100.00 TRAVEL/TRANSPORTATION200-601-5240-00

1,300.00 644.75 1,300.00 UNIFORMS/LICENSES200-601-5250-00
500.00 180.78 750.00 TRAINING/EDUCATION200-601-5325-00
750.00 682.72 700.00 MEMBERSHIPS/SUBSCRIPTIONS200-601-5345-00

2,000.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
500.00 TWO FACTOR AUTHENTICATION/VM SUPPORT

1,500.00 MICROSOFT SERVICES
3,000.00 1,857.69 3,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS200-601-5400-00

4,000.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
2,000.00 SERVER PROJECT
2,000.00 COMPUTER REPLACEMENTS
4,000.00 675.00 1,500.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY200-601-5500-00

246,600.00 173,786.34 231,155.30   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

246,600.00 173,786.34 231,155.30 Totals for dept 601-STREET OFFICE

Dept 602-STREETS - FLEET
Expenditure

8,000.00 764.88 8,539.29 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE200-602-5410-00
12,000.00 8,728.31 21,423.39 FUEL200-602-5411-00
12,000.00 6,727.93 12,070.00 FLEET OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE200-602-5420-00
7,000.00 3,211.45 21,250.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY200-602-5500-00

15,750.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
4,750.00 2018 LEASES

11,000.00 2016 EQUIPMENT LEASE
15,750.00 10,645.51 10,750.00 LEASE PRINCIPAL200-602-5601-00

900.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
400.00 2018 LEASES
500.00 2016 EQUIPMENT LEASE
900.00 700.00 700.00 LEASE INTEREST200-602-5611-00

55,650.00 30,778.08 74,732.68   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

55,650.00 30,778.08 74,732.68 Totals for dept 602-STREETS - FLEET

Dept 603-STREETS - MAINTENANCE
Expenditure

4,500.00 GIS200-603-5352-00

15,000.00 SIGNS AND POSTS
35,000.00 19,132.58 29,080.98 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE200-603-5410-00

10,000.00 8,047.04 17,446.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY200-603-5500-00

49,500.00 27,179.62 46,526.98   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

49,500.00 27,179.62 46,526.98 Totals for dept 603-STREETS - MAINTENANCE

Dept 604-STREETS - SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL
Expenditure

25,000.00 SALT
35,000.00 5,645.16 13,848.18 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE200-604-5410-00

35,000.00 5,645.16 13,848.18   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

35,000.00 5,645.16 13,848.18 Totals for dept 604-STREETS - SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL

(174,164.65)212,585.35 83,711.41 ENDING FUND BALANCE
212,585.35 449,974.55 449,974.55 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

386,750.00 237,389.20 366,263.14 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 200



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 9/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 201 STATE HIGHWAY

Dept 603-STREETS - MAINTENANCE
Expenditure

5,000.00 2,370.61 2,898.15 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES201-603-5340-00
13,350.00 9,989.83 12,000.00 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE201-603-5410-00
5,000.00 1,605.72 3,125.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY201-603-5500-00

3,700.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
1,100.00 2018 LEASES
2,600.00 2016 EQUIPMENT LEASE
3,700.00 15,870.20 16,000.00 LEASE PRINCIPAL201-603-5601-00

300.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
175.00 2018 LEASES
125.00 2016 EQUIPMENT LEASE
300.00 424.78 425.00 LEASE INTEREST201-603-5611-00

27,350.00 30,261.14 34,448.15   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

27,350.00 30,261.14 34,448.15 Totals for dept 603-STREETS - MAINTENANCE

7,926.26 35,276.26 31,089.25 ENDING FUND BALANCE
35,276.26 65,537.40 65,537.40 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

27,350.00 30,261.14 34,448.15 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 201



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 10/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 202 COURT TECH FUND A

Dept 510-MAYOR'S COURT
Expenditure

1/2 BALDWIN PAYMENTS
1,200.00 994.50 1,400.00 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES202-510-5340-00

600.00 338.91 600.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS202-510-5400-00
500.00 89.32 1,500.00 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE202-510-5410-00

2,300.00 1,422.73 3,500.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

2,300.00 1,422.73 3,500.00 Totals for dept 510-MAYOR'S COURT

16,954.92 19,254.92 17,177.65 ENDING FUND BALANCE
19,254.92 20,677.65 20,677.65 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

2,300.00 1,422.73 3,500.00 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 202



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 11/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 203 COURT TECH FUND B

Dept 510-MAYOR'S COURT
Expenditure

1/2 BALDWIN PAYMENTS
1,400.00 994.50 1,400.00 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES203-510-5340-00

DELL PAYMENT - 1 COMPUTER
600.00 338.91 600.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS203-510-5400-00

1,000.00 89.32 1,500.00 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE203-510-5410-00

3,000.00 1,422.73 3,500.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

3,000.00 1,422.73 3,500.00 Totals for dept 510-MAYOR'S COURT

(1,103.73)1,896.27 (181.00)ENDING FUND BALANCE
1,896.27 3,319.00 3,319.00 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

3,000.00 1,422.73 3,500.00 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 203



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 12/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 204 PERMISSIVE TAX

Dept 603-STREETS - MAINTENANCE
Expenditure

7,900.00 5,680.41 7,898.15 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES204-603-5340-00

MP DOREY - $1,250 PER QUARTER
6,800.00 6,500.00 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE204-603-5410-00

SKAGS (12.5%)
1,605.73 3,125.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY204-603-5500-00

47,000.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
20,500.00 2018 LEASES
5,000.00 2016 EQUIPMENT LEASE

21,500.00 SNOWPLOW LEASE
47,000.00 47,040.20 47,200.00 LEASE PRINCIPAL204-603-5601-00

2,300.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
1,800.00 2018 LEASES

250.00 2016 EQUIPMENT LEASE
250.00 SNOWPLOW LEASE

2,300.00 1,523.22 1,525.00 LEASE INTEREST204-603-5611-00

64,000.00 55,849.56 66,248.15   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

64,000.00 55,849.56 66,248.15 Totals for dept 603-STREETS - MAINTENANCE

(13,158.12)50,841.88 40,443.29 ENDING FUND BALANCE
50,841.88 106,691.44 106,691.44 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

64,000.00 55,849.56 66,248.15 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 204



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 13/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 205 BED TAX FUND

Dept 501-COUNCIL
Expenditure

22,000.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
2,000.00 CW HISTORICAL SOCIETY AGREEMENT - PER COUNCIL

20,000.00 BED TAX GRANTS
22,000.00 48,000.00 50,000.00 BED TAX GRANT205-501-5351-00

22,000.00 48,000.00 50,000.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

22,000.00 48,000.00 50,000.00 Totals for dept 501-COUNCIL

Dept 570-ADMINISTRATION
Expenditure

30,000.00 21,346.16 30,000.00 DESTINATION: CANAL WINCHESTER205-570-5344-00

30,000.00 21,346.16 30,000.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

30,000.00 21,346.16 30,000.00 Totals for dept 570-ADMINISTRATION

(12,059.17)39,940.83 29,286.99 ENDING FUND BALANCE
39,940.83 109,286.99 109,286.99 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

52,000.00 69,346.16 80,000.00 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 205



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 14/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 207 BWC GRANT

Dept 521-HUMAN RESOURCES
Expenditure

2,500.00 1,049.50 2,175.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES207-521-5320-00

2,500.00 1,049.50 2,175.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

2,500.00 1,049.50 2,175.00 Totals for dept 521-HUMAN RESOURCES

(3,549.50)(1,049.50)(2,175.00)ENDING FUND BALANCE
(1,049.50)BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

2,500.00 1,049.50 2,175.00 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 207



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 15/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 209 DILEY ROAD PITIE FUND

Dept 570-ADMINISTRATION
Expenditure

4,500.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 COUNTY AUDITOR/TREASURER FEES209-570-5323-00

4,500.00 3,000.00 3,000.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

4,500.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Totals for dept 570-ADMINISTRATION

919,644.34 924,144.34 924,144.34 ENDING FUND BALANCE
924,144.34 927,144.34 927,144.34 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

4,500.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 209



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 16/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 210 GENDER ROAD TIF

Dept 570-ADMINISTRATION
Expenditure

4,000.00 1,434.03 2,500.00 COUNTY AUDITOR/TREASURER FEES210-570-5323-00
40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE210-570-5410-00
40,000.00 40,000.00 ADVANCES OUT210-570-5800-00

84,000.00 41,434.03 82,500.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

84,000.00 41,434.03 82,500.00 Totals for dept 570-ADMINISTRATION

(40,660.56)43,339.44 2,273.47 ENDING FUND BALANCE
43,339.44 84,773.47 84,773.47 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

84,000.00 41,434.03 82,500.00 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 210



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 17/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 211 CEMETERY FUND

Dept 202-PUBLIC HEALTH - CEMETERY
Expenditure

55,000.00 55,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES211-202-5320-00
110.79 10,000.00 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE211-202-5410-00

55,110.79 65,000.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

55,110.79 65,000.00 Totals for dept 202-PUBLIC HEALTH - CEMETERY

(55,110.79)(55,110.79)(65,000.00)ENDING FUND BALANCE
(55,110.79)BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

55,110.79 65,000.00 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 211



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 18/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 300 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Dept 571-DEBT SERVICE
Expenditure

1,080,000.00 675,827.72 1,177,000.00 DEBT PRINCIPAL300-571-5600-00
195,000.00 103,463.26 215,750.00 DEBT INTEREST300-571-5610-00

1,275,000.00 779,290.98 1,392,750.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

1,275,000.00 779,290.98 1,392,750.00 Totals for dept 571-DEBT SERVICE

(2,009,124.21)(734,124.21)(1,347,583.23)ENDING FUND BALANCE
(734,124.21)45,166.77 45,166.77 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

1,275,000.00 779,290.98 1,392,750.00 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 300



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 19/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 400 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

Dept 700-CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
Expenditure

178,506.00 51,172.94 177,189.66 CAPITAL OUTLAY400-700-5500-00

178,506.00 51,172.94 177,189.66   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

178,506.00 51,172.94 177,189.66 Totals for dept 700-CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

(1,462.35)177,043.65 51,026.93 ENDING FUND BALANCE
177,043.65 228,216.59 228,216.59 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

178,506.00 51,172.94 177,189.66 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 400



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 20/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 401 ISSUE 2 / CDBG GRANTS

Dept 600-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
Expenditure

2,500.00 MORPC ADMIN FEE
2,496,628.00 CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL OUTLAY401-600-5501-00

2,496,628.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

2,496,628.00 Totals for dept 600-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

(2,423,405.99)73,222.01 73,222.01 ENDING FUND BALANCE
73,222.01 73,222.01 73,222.01 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

2,496,628.00 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 401



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 21/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 500 WATER

Dept 800-WATER - ADMINISTRATION
Expenditure

315,000.00 247,758.28 312,000.00 REGULAR SALARIES500-800-5100-00
7,600.00 3,332.03 7,900.00 OVERTIME SALARIES500-800-5110-00

46,350.00 33,220.30 45,480.00 PERS500-800-5200-00
4,800.00 3,629.99 4,710.00 MEDICARE500-800-5210-00
8,250.00 1,314.69 8,100.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION500-800-5220-00

103,000.00 80,768.27 102,636.50 INSURANCE PREMIUMS500-800-5230-00
200.00 200.00 TRAVEL/TRANSPORTATION500-800-5240-00

2,900.00 1,400.00 3,200.00 UNIFORMS/LICENSES500-800-5250-00

FROST BROWN TODD
10,000.00 7,941.45 10,845.52 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES500-800-5320-00

2,000.00 469.70 2,000.00 TRAINING/EDUCATION500-800-5325-00

HUNTINGTON FEES
4,000.00 2,985.46 4,306.59 BILL PRINTING/MAILING SERVICES500-800-5326-00

PROPERTY & LIABILITY INSURANCE
14,000.00 10,987.29 12,000.00 INSURANCE/BONDING500-800-5330-00

AMI ANNUAL SUPPORT - 50%
MISC
BS&A ANNUAL PAYMENT

5,000.00 4,982.51 9,600.00 MEMBERSHIPS/SUBSCRIPTIONS500-800-5345-00

5,000.00 5,000.00 STATE OPERATING FEES500-800-5348-00

2,200.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
1,000.00 TWO FACTOR AUTHENTICATION/VM SUPPORT
1,200.00 MICROSOFT SERVICES
4,500.00 2,480.97 3,565.15 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS500-800-5400-00

6,600.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
600.00 WIRELESS ACCESS POINT

1,000.00 COMPUTER REPLACEMENT
5,000.00 SERVER PROJECT
7,000.00 53,253.84 56,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY500-800-5500-00

180,000.00 215,632.22 216,000.00 DEBT PRINCIPAL500-800-5600-00

3,250.00 2016 EQUIPMENT LEASE
3,250.00 13,599.39 17,750.00 LEASE PRINCIPAL500-800-5601-00

55,000.00 73,580.36 73,600.00 DEBT INTEREST500-800-5610-00

150.00 2016 EQUIPMENT LEASE
150.00 374.83 875.00 LEASE INTEREST500-800-5611-00

778,000.00 757,711.58 895,768.76   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

778,000.00 757,711.58 895,768.76 Totals for dept 800-WATER - ADMINISTRATION

Dept 801-WATER - PLANT
Expenditure

MISC
12,500.00 7,990.78 12,500.00 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES500-801-5340-00

30,000.00 15,782.48 26,172.30 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE500-801-5410-00
225,000.00 186,451.35 225,000.00 CHEMICALS500-801-5410-01

25,000.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
5,000.00 SCADA TAGS

20,000.00 PARKING LOT RESEALING
35,000.00 150.00 10,150.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY500-801-5500-00

302,500.00 210,374.61 273,822.30   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

302,500.00 210,374.61 273,822.30 Totals for dept 801-WATER - PLANT

Dept 802-WATER - DISTRIBUTION
Expenditure

85,000.00 65,460.22 92,100.67 UTILITIES500-802-5300-00

HYDRANT PAINTING
TOWER MAINTENANCE

102,500.00 66,226.06 102,500.00 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES500-802-5340-00

120,000.00 82,244.70 136,701.10 PAYMENT TO POLITICAL SUBDIVISION500-802-5347-00
9,000.00 GIS500-802-5352-00

30,000.00 20,080.71 26,831.57 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE500-802-5410-00
55,000.00 3,329.26 8,959.03 FUEL500-802-5411-00
2,000.00 545.42 2,000.00 FLEET OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE500-802-5420-00

100,000.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
25,000.00 VALVE BOLT REPLACEMENTS
75,000.00 AMI AND RELATED

110,000.00 60,479.58 70,777.50 CAPITAL OUTLAY500-802-5500-00

513,500.00 298,365.95 439,869.87   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

513,500.00 298,365.95 439,869.87 Totals for dept 802-WATER - DISTRIBUTION

1,594,000.00 1,266,452.14 1,609,460.93 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 500



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 22/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 500 WATER

(1,635,916.09)(41,916.09)(384,924.88)ENDING FUND BALANCE
(41,916.09)1,224,536.05 1,224,536.05 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 23/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 501 WATER CONNECTIONS

Dept 800-WATER - ADMINISTRATION
Expenditure

TANKTOWN DEBT
72,000.00 29,077.80 30,000.00 DEBT PRINCIPAL501-800-5600-00

13,000.00 DEBT INTEREST501-800-5610-00

85,000.00 29,077.80 30,000.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

85,000.00 29,077.80 30,000.00 Totals for dept 800-WATER - ADMINISTRATION

Dept 803-WATER - CONNECTIONS
Expenditure

75,000.00 GROVEPORT/DYE/MANOR ENGINEERING
75,000.00 7,705.69 10,536.34 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES501-803-5320-00

15,000.00 WELL REHAB
95,000.00 31,615.69 115,474.66 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES501-803-5340-00

150,000.00 GENDER RD PH IV
250,000.00 144,954.80 200,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY501-803-5500-00

420,000.00 184,276.18 326,011.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

420,000.00 184,276.18 326,011.00 Totals for dept 803-WATER - CONNECTIONS

845,032.61 1,350,032.61 1,207,375.59 ENDING FUND BALANCE
1,350,032.61 1,563,386.59 1,563,386.59 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

505,000.00 213,353.98 356,011.00 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 501



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 24/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 510 SEWER

Dept 810-SEWER - ADMINISTRATION
Expenditure

310,000.00 248,528.74 308,000.00 REGULAR SALARIES510-810-5100-00
8,400.00 7,363.35 8,200.00 OVERTIME SALARIES510-810-5110-00

45,720.00 33,361.88 45,100.00 PERS510-810-5200-00
4,730.00 3,649.87 4,670.00 MEDICARE510-810-5210-00
8,150.00 1,283.77 8,060.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION510-810-5220-00

123,500.00 97,384.26 114,536.50 INSURANCE PREMIUMS510-810-5230-00
250.00 TRAVEL/TRANSPORTATION510-810-5240-00

2,575.00 1,400.00 2,700.00 UNIFORMS/LICENSES510-810-5250-00

FROST BROWN TODD
88,000.00 8,478.94 25,845.51 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES510-810-5320-00

2,000.00 620.00 2,000.00 TRAINING/EDUCATION510-810-5325-00

HUNTINGTON FEES
4,000.00 2,985.46 4,306.59 BILL PRINTING/MAILING SERVICES510-810-5326-00

PROPERTY & LIABILITY INSURANCE
14,000.00 10,987.29 12,000.00 INSURANCE/BONDING510-810-5330-00

AMI SUPPORT
BS&A ANNUAL PAYMENT

9,600.00 4,505.11 9,600.00 MEMBERSHIPS/SUBSCRIPTIONS510-810-5345-00

8,000.00 6,351.70 8,000.00 STATE OPERATING FEES510-810-5348-00

CLEANING SERVICES
5,500.00 3,528.28 5,797.50 MISCELLANEOUS CONTRACT SERVICES510-810-5349-00

2,200.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
1,000.00 TWO FACTOR AUTHENTICATION/VM SUPPORT
1,200.00 MICROSOFT SERVICES
4,000.00 2,497.07 6,064.78 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS510-810-5400-00

2,000.00 1.48 2,000.00 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE510-810-5410-00

6,600.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
5,000.00 SERVER PROJECT

600.00 WIRELESS ACCESS POINT
1,000.00 COMPUTER REPLACEMENT
7,000.00 32,084.69 37,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY510-810-5500-00

INCLUDES BAN PRINCIPAL
351,000.00 320,001.13 574,000.00 DEBT PRINCIPAL510-810-5600-00

5,250.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
3,100.00 2018 LEASES
2,150.00 2016 EQUIPMENT LEASE
5,250.00 2,093.23 2,250.00 LEASE PRINCIPAL510-810-5601-00

74,000.00 25,213.79 88,000.00 DEBT INTEREST510-810-5610-00

400.00 GL # FOOTNOTE TOTAL:
300.00 2018 LEASES
100.00 2016 EQUIPMENT LEASE
400.00 150.00 150.00 LEASE INTEREST510-810-5611-00

1,077,825.00 812,470.04 1,268,530.88   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

1,077,825.00 812,470.04 1,268,530.88 Totals for dept 810-SEWER - ADMINISTRATION

Dept 811-SEWER - PLANT
Expenditure

175,000.00 142,486.73 206,782.95 UTILITIES510-811-5300-00

COPIER LEASE
4,800.00 3,661.30 4,800.00 COMMUNICATIONS/PRINTING/ADVERTISING510-811-5310-00

140,000.00 74,336.04 149,286.93 SLUDGE REMOVAL510-811-5346-00
25,000.00 13,722.00 26,807.76 MISCELLANEOUS CONTRACT SERVICES510-811-5349-00
25,000.00 15,528.82 25,688.47 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE510-811-5410-00
7,000.00 2,740.48 11,413.04 FUEL510-811-5411-00
2,000.00 919.45 2,350.00 FLEET OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE510-811-5420-00

5,000.00 SCADA TAGS
51,000.00 27,746.77 40,950.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY510-811-5500-00

429,800.00 281,141.59 468,079.15   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

429,800.00 281,141.59 468,079.15 Totals for dept 811-SEWER - PLANT

Dept 812-SEWER - COLLECTION
Expenditure

5,000.00 115.00 5,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES510-812-5320-00
50,000.00 15,636.67 40,000.00 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES510-812-5340-00
9,000.00 GIS510-812-5352-00

75,000.00 ODOR CHEMICAL FEED
100,000.00 21,027.67 42,838.59 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE510-812-5410-00

75,000.00 AMI AND RELATED
100,000.00 64,412.05 106,877.50 CAPITAL OUTLAY510-812-5500-00

264,000.00 101,191.39 194,716.09   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

264,000.00 101,191.39 194,716.09 Totals for dept 812-SEWER - COLLECTION



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 25/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 510 SEWER

(1,718,779.47)52,845.53 (683,677.57)ENDING FUND BALANCE
52,845.53 1,247,648.55 1,247,648.55 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

1,771,625.00 1,194,803.02 1,931,326.12 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 510



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 26/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 511 SEWER CONNECTIONS

Dept 810-SEWER - ADMINISTRATION
Expenditure

167,500.00 DEBT PRINCIPAL511-810-5600-00
7,000.00 DEBT INTEREST511-810-5610-00

174,500.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

174,500.00 Totals for dept 810-SEWER - ADMINISTRATION

Dept 813-SEWER - CONNECTIONS
Expenditure

50,000.00 17,144.88 51,061.50 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES511-813-5320-00

250,000.00 MANHOLE LINING
350,000.00 108,813.98 450,000.00 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES511-813-5340-00

150,000.00 69,457.14 207,809.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY511-813-5500-00

550,000.00 195,416.00 708,870.50   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

550,000.00 195,416.00 708,870.50 Totals for dept 813-SEWER - CONNECTIONS

1,196,004.86 1,920,504.86 1,407,050.36 ENDING FUND BALANCE
1,920,504.86 2,115,920.86 2,115,920.86 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

724,500.00 195,416.00 708,870.50 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 511



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 27/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 520 STORM WATER FUND

Dept 820-STORM WATER - ADMINISTRATION
Expenditure

68,000.00 50,337.60 64,000.00 REGULAR SALARIES520-820-5100-00
2,700.00 825.99 2,600.00 OVERTIME SALARIES520-820-5110-00

10,220.00 7,061.98 9,370.00 PERS520-820-5200-00
1,060.00 729.12 970.00 MEDICARE520-820-5210-00
1,820.00 222.71 1,670.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION520-820-5220-00

26,000.00 17,010.79 24,930.90 INSURANCE PREMIUMS520-820-5230-00

CDL RENEWAL - S.THOMAS
UNIFORM - UTILITY LOCATE 1/4
UNIFORM - S.THOMAS

675.00 400.00 700.00 UNIFORMS/LICENSES520-820-5250-00

ENGINEERING
FROST BROWN TODD

5,000.00 1,191.19 4,126.83 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES520-820-5320-00

400.00 106.15 400.00 TRAINING/EDUCATION520-820-5325-00

HUNTINGTON FEES
3,000.00 2,896.33 3,229.94 BILL PRINTING/MAILING SERVICES520-820-5326-00

PROPERTY & LIABILITY INSURANCE
5,000.00 3,520.30 4,000.00 INSURANCE/BONDING520-820-5330-00

2,000.00 3,500.00 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES520-820-5340-00
500.00 341.36 350.00 MEMBERSHIPS/SUBSCRIPTIONS520-820-5345-00

1,000.00 761.00 1,000.00 STATE OPERATING FEES520-820-5348-00
2,000.00 1,092.61 2,200.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS520-820-5400-00
1,000.00 2,500.00 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE520-820-5410-00
1,300.00 250.00 1,250.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY520-820-5500-00

BAN PRINCIPAL
257,500.00 320,000.00 320,000.00 DEBT PRINCIPAL520-820-5600-00

3,250.00 2016 EQUIPMENT LEASE
3,250.00 10,162.69 10,300.00 LEASE PRINCIPAL520-820-5601-00

BAN INTEREST
9,000.00 7,199.20 7,200.00 DEBT INTEREST520-820-5610-00

150.00 2016 EQUIPMENT LEASE
150.00 319.88 320.00 LEASE INTEREST520-820-5611-00

401,575.00 424,428.90 464,617.67   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

401,575.00 424,428.90 464,617.67 Totals for dept 820-STORM WATER - ADMINISTRATION

Dept 821-STORM WATER - OPERATION
Expenditure

5,000.00 4,590.97 7,499.85 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES520-821-5320-00
20,375.00 25,549.93 31,992.50 OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES520-821-5340-00
5,250.00 GIS520-821-5352-00

STREET SWEEPER PICK UP HEAD
43,000.00 18,154.76 30,000.00 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE520-821-5410-00

25,000.00 37,295.00 56,710.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY520-821-5500-00

98,625.00 85,590.66 126,202.35   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

98,625.00 85,590.66 126,202.35 Totals for dept 821-STORM WATER - OPERATION

(733,347.30)(233,147.30)(313,947.76)ENDING FUND BALANCE
(233,147.30)276,872.26 276,872.26 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

500,200.00 510,019.56 590,820.02 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 520



DRAFT

Calculations as of 10/31/2017
 

10/26/2017 05:21 PM
User: ajackson
DB: Canal Winchester

Page: 28/28BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

2018
FINANCE RECOMMENDED

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/17

2017
AMENDED
BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 900 COURT AGENCY

Dept 510-MAYOR'S COURT
Expenditure

100,000.00 60,086.90 100,000.00 MAYOR'S COURT DISTRIBUTIONS900-510-9999-00

100,000.00 60,086.90 100,000.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURE

100,000.00 60,086.90 100,000.00 Totals for dept 510-MAYOR'S COURT

(159,701.90)(59,701.90)(99,615.00)ENDING FUND BALANCE
(59,701.90)385.00 385.00 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

100,000.00 60,086.90 100,000.00 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 900

(15,966,539.10)2,152,144.90 (2,910,807.43)ENDING FUND BALANCE - ALL FUNDS
2,152,144.90 13,678,541.94 13,678,541.94 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - ALL FUNDS

18,118,684.00 11,526,397.04 16,589,349.37 APPROPRIATIONS - ALL FUNDS
(18,118,684.00)(11,526,397.04)(16,589,349.37)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - ALL FUNDS



Personnel Handbook 

Recap of Recommended Changes to Council 

Section Change 

 

Section 1.3 (B)-Classified/Unclassified 

Add Finance Specialist and Administrative 

Assistant (Finance) to unclassified list 

  

 

 

Section 1.8-Medical Exams/Drug and Alcohol 

Replace Medical Examinations/Drug and 

Alcohol Policy with attorney policy to 

address medical marijuana no tolerance – 

Retain Part A on medical examinations 

  

 

Section 1.10-Discipline 

Paragraph 4 – Change twenty-four (24) hours  

to forty-eight (48) hour  

  

Section 2.1-Performance Evaluations Clarify timeline of evaluations for all 

employees and applicability to probationary 

employees; Clarify merit raise eligibility for 

new hires.  

  

 

Section 2.4(D)-Overtime 

Add Finance Specialist, Remove Events and 

Communications Coordinator  

  

Section 2.6 - Longevity Add “continuous” to service 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Section 3.1 Health Care Plan 

Add “eligible” to first sentence – Each 

eligible employee…; Add second sentence 

“Healthcare plan may include health, 

prescription, dental, vision, and life insurance 

coverage as well as an employee wellness 

program.” 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 3.2 Holidays/Personal Leave 

Change Day following fourth Thursday…to 

Friday after Thanksgiving; add Part-time 

holiday pay; any other day proclaimed as a 

holiday by the Mayor, Governor of Ohio, or 

the President of the United States; last 

sentence – change one-half to one-quarter 

increments 

  

 

Section 3.3 (B) Vacation 

Strike first sentence; shall now read: (strike 

however) Upon written request … 

 

ajackson
Typewritten text
17-252



Page 2 

 

 

Section Change 

 

Section 3.4 – Sick Leave (General) 

On page 20, second paragraph is now (G) and 

then each paragraph is re-lettered  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 3.4 (new J) - Incidences 

Change to first paragraph: Regarding an 

employee’s evaluation, CW will accept up to 

five (5) incidences of sick leave in a calendar 

year. An incident is defined…; Then add 

example: Example: An employee is in the 

hospital for two days. Because of the illness, 

the doctor has recommended physical therapy 

twice a week for the next three weeks.  Each 

physical therapy visit is related to the initial 

hospital stay and the entire period will count 

as one incident.     

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 3.4 (new L) - Discipline 

Change to: Regarding disciplinary action, 

employees that incur more than five (5) 

incidences in a rolling twelve (12) month 

period may continue to use accrued sick time. 

However, more than five incidences of sick 

leave annually will be deemed unacceptable 

by CW. Employees will be disciplined in 

accordance with this handbook for 

unacceptable use of sick leave and will 

receive zero (0) points for attendance on their 

Performance Evaluation.    

  

Section 3.4 (new M) Allotments  Add “up to” two (2) hour allotments 

  

Section 3.4 (new N)  Remove “Section M” 

  

Section 3.4 (new Q) – Sick Leave Transfer  Add – An employee, who transfers from any 

political subdivision to CW and who is 

eligible to earn sick leave with CW shall be 

credited with the unused balance of the 

accumulated sick leave credit up to the 

maximum of 600 hours. (continued on next 

page) 



Page 3 

 

Section Change 

Section 3.4 (new Q) – Sick Leave Transfer The employee must be hired by CW within 

ten years of resignation/separation from the 

prior public employer. New employees whose 

sick leave is transferred must first use sick 

leave with CW prior to using his/her 

transferred balance. Transferred sick cannot 

be applied to Section (N) – Sick Leave 

Conversion. Finally, any transferred sick 

leave shall not be eligible for conversion to a 

cash payment at resignation or retirement.  

  

 

 

Section 3.5 – Sick Leave Donation 

Add to first paragraph before last sentence: 

Employee cannot use transferred sick leave 

under this policy. 

  

 

Section 3.10 – Separation Pay 

Add to (A) – Personal Leave will not be paid 

at separation. 

  

 

Section 3.11 – Family Medical Leave 

Before the last sentence, insert – We require 

reasonable documentation. 

  

 

 

Section 4.1 – Inclement Weather 

On heading, take out “Certain.” Then opening 

sentence replace Road, water and wastewater 

with Public Service Department. 

  

Section 5.1 – Use of Vehicles (D) Take out “Reckless or destructive operation” 

sentence. Last sentence – add “and are subject 

to disciplinary action.” 

  

 

 

 

Section 5.3 – Outside Employment 

Title shall now read, “Outside 

Employment/Volunteer Service; second 

sentence after other employment, add “or 

volunteer service”. 

  

Section 5.5 – Dress Code First sentence after dress, add “or uniform.” 

  

 

Section 5.7 – Contact with News 

Under (A), replace Community Affairs 

Director with designee.  

  

 

Section 6.6 – Resignation/Retirement 

Heading shall now read 

“Resignation/Retirement; ( C ) add retirement 



Page 4 

 

Section Change 

Section 6.6 – Resignation/Retirement ( C ) – Add before last sentence; The 

resignation/retirement letter must state the 

employee’s last day of employment and the 

employee may not use leave time to extend 

the employee’s date of resignation or ate of 

retirement.  

  

Section 6.11 – Concealed Carry Replace with attorney provided policy to 

follow Ohio law 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CANAL WINCHESTER 

 
CODE OF PERSONNEL PRACTICES 

HANDBOOK 
 

Adopted:   

 

12/1/14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Formatted: Highlight

ajackson
Typewritten text
17-252



 ii 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

Section 1.0: Introduction .................................................................................................................... 1 

Section 1.1: Definitions ..................................................................................................................... 1 

Section 1.2: Policy Amendments ....................................................................................................... 2 

Section 1.3: Classified and Unclassified Employment ........................................................................ 2 

Section 1.4: Vacancies: Identification, Announcement and Application.............................................. 3 

Section 1.5: Basis for Selection .......................................................................................................... 3 

Section 1.6: Promotion and Transfer .................................................................................................. 4 

Section 1.7: Employee Status ............................................................................................................. 5 

Section 1.8: Medical Examinations/Drug and Alcohol Policy ............................................................. 5 

Section 1.9: Seniority..................................................................................................................... 810 

Section 1.10: Discipline ................................................................................................................... 810 

Section 2.0: Ethics ....................................................................................................................... 1012 

Section 2.1: Performance Evaluation............................................................................................ 1012 

Section 2.2: Training ................................................................................................................... 1113 

Section 2.3: Pay Period ................................................................................................................ 1113 

Section 2.4: Overtime .................................................................................................................. 1114 

Section 2.5: On-Call Duties ......................................................................................................... 1215 

Section 2.6: Longevity Pay .......................................................................................................... 1315 

Section 2.7: Retirement Plan ........................................................................................................ 1316 

Section 2.8: P.E.R.S. Pick-Up ...................................................................................................... 1416 

Section 2.9: Workers Compensation ............................................................................................ 1416 

Section 3.0: Expense Reimbursement .......................................................................................... 1517 

Section 3.1: Health Care Plan ...................................................................................................... 1719 

Section 3.2: Holidays and Personal Leave .................................................................................... 1719 

Section 3.3: Vacation ................................................................................................................... 1820 

Section 3.4: Sick Leave ............................................................................................................... 1921 

Section 3.5:       Sick Leave Donation ................................................................................................ 2123 

Section 3.6: Bereavement Leave .................................................................................................. 2124 

Section 3.7: Military Leave .......................................................................................................... 2224 

Section 3.8: Jury Duty (Civic Duty Leave) ................................................................................... 2224 

Section 3.9: Leave Without Pay ................................................................................................... 2224 

Section 3.10: Separation Pay.......................................................................................................... 2325 

Section 3.11 Family Medical Leave .............................................................................................. 2325 

Section 3.12      Breastfeeding Mothers ........................................................................................... 23    25 

Section 4.0: Inclement Weather (Non-Public Service Departments) ............................................. 2326 

Section 4.1: Inclement Weather (Certain Public Service Departments) ......................................... 2426 

Section 4.2: Continuing Education and Tuition Reimbursement ................................................... 2426 

Section 4.3: Hours of Work ......................................................................................................... 2427 

Section 4.4: Attendance ............................................................................................................... 2527 

Section 4.5: Starting/Quitting ....................................................................................................... 2527 

Section 4.6: Tardiness .................................................................................................................. 2527 

Section 4.7: Lunch Period/Breaks ................................................................................................ 2527 

Section 4.8: Safety and Health ..................................................................................................... 2527 

Section 4.9: Tools, Supplies, Equipment, Vehicles, and Phones ................................................... 2628 

Section 5.0 Technology Usage and Social Media Policy ............................................................. 2729 

Section 5.1: Use of Vehicles ........................................................................................................ 3234 

Section 5.2: Employee Traffic Accidents ..................................................................................... 3234 

Section 5.3: Outside Employment ................................................................................................ 3335 

Section 5.4: No Solicitation/No Distribution ................................................................................ 3335 



 iii 

Section 5.5: Dress Code ............................................................................................................... 3436 

Section 5.6: Medication  .............................................................................................................. 3436 

Section 5.7: Contact with News Media/Residents ......................................................................... 3436 

Section 5.8: Access to Employees by Telephone .......................................................................... 3536 

Section 5.9: Unauthorized Persons Entering Property or Using Facilities...................................... 3537 

Section 6.0: Returning of CW Property ........................................................................................ 3537 

Section 6.1: Harassment and Discrimination ................................................................................ 3537 

Section 6.2 Americans with Disabilities ...................................................................................... 3739 

Section 6.3: Complaint Policy  ........................................................................................... 3739 

Section 6.4: Complaint Procedure ................................................................................................ 3839 

Section 6.5: Employee Complaint-Misconduct Hearing Procedure ............................................... 3840 

Section 6.6: Resignation/Retirement ............................................................................................ 3941 

Section 6.7: Personnel Files ......................................................................................................... 4041 

Section 6.8: Smoke-free, Tobacco Free Workplace Policy ........................................................... 4042 

Section 6.9: Political Activity ...................................................................................................... 4142 

Section 6.10: Workplace Violence ................................................................................................. 4443 

Section 6.11: Concealed Carry ....................................................................................................... 4244 



 1 

The policies set forth and adopted within this Manual supersede all previous written and unwritten 

personnel policies of Canal Winchester, Ohio (hereinafter “CW”).  Questions regarding the interpretation 

and application of these policies shall be directed to the Mayor, supervisor, or designee.  The policies and 

procedures set forth herein are to provide employees the appropriate guidelines for the efficient, effective 

and equitable management of CW.  This Manual and these policies do not constitute an employment 

contract or agreement between CW and any of its employees, nor a guarantee of minimum benefits between 

CW and any of its employees. 

 

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 

 

If any article or section of this policy manual or any amendments thereto shall be held invalid by operation 

of law or by a tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or compliance with or enforcement of any article or section 

of this policy manual shall be restrained by such tribunal, the remainder of this policy manual and 

amendments thereto shall not be affected and shall remain in force and effect. 

 

SECTION 1.0: INTRODUCTION 

 

This manual contains the policies for CW.  All personnel charged with the responsibility of administering 

any policy must be thoroughly knowledgeable of its contents.  The policies in this manual may be changed 

periodically.  As a result, CW reserves the right to revise, modify, amend or delete any policy, procedure, 

benefit or regulation as deemed necessary. Updated policies will be issued to all manual holders and 

communicated to all affected employees.  Prior to implementation, employees will be required to review 

any updated policies and shall sign an acknowledgement indicating that they have received and had an 

opportunity to review them.   

 

Any references to males contained herein shall apply equally to females. 

 

SECTION 1.1: DEFINITIONS 

 

ABSENT WITHOUT LEAVE - Absence from duty without approval.  Any employee absent from duty 

habitually or for two (2) or more successive duty days, without leave and without notice to the employee’s 

supervisor of the reasons shall be deemed to have voluntarily resigned. 

APPOINTING AUTHORITY—The Mayor of Canal Winchester, Ohio. 

APPOINTMENT - Designation of a person by the Employer to any position within CW. 

CLASSIFICATION - A group of positions that involve similar duties, responsibilities, authority and 

require similar qualifications so that the same title may be used for each, the same pay range assigned, and 

the same examination conducted, if required.  A class may include only one position in some circumstances. 

CLASSIFIED SERVICE – The classified service shall comprise all persons in the employ of CW who 

are not specifically included in the unclassified service. 

CW—The municipality of Canal Winchester, Ohio. 

DAY – A calendar day unless specified otherwise. 

DUTY—The express tasks required by one’s position and those tasks implied by the nature of one’s 

position, including, but not limited to the essential functions listed in the job description for the position. 

EMPLOYEE - Any person holding a position by appointment or employment in a classification 

established by the CW Council. 

  



 2 

PROBATIONARY PERIOD – Either the period of time at the beginning of an original appointment or 

the period of time immediately following a promotion, which constitutes a trial or testing period for the 

employee. The initial probationary period shall be three hundred and sixty –five days, one year. Promotional 

probationary period shall be one hundred and eighty days. 

PROBATIONARY REMOVAL – The termination of an employee’s employment for unsatisfactory 

performance during the employee’s initial probationary period. 

PROMOTION - The movement from one position to a vacant position which is assigned to a different 

classification and a higher pay range, or higher salary where pay ranges do not exist.  For the purposes of 

this definition, a higher pay range is determined by comparing the step one rates of the relevant pay ranges. 

SEASONAL APPOINTMENT - An appointment where an employee works a certain regular season or 

period of each year performing some work or activity limited to that season or period of the year. 

SUPERVISOR - Any individual who has authority, in the interest of the public employer, to hire, transfer, 

suspend, lay off, recall, promote, discharge, assign, reward, or discipline other public employees; to 

responsibly direct them, or to effectively recommend such action, if the exercise of that authority is not of 

a merely routine or clerical nature, but requires the use of independent judgment.   

TEMPORARY APPOINTMENT – An appointment for a limited period of time, fixed by the Employer, 

for a period not to exceed one hundred twenty (120) days, unless for reason of illness, sickness or disability. 

UNCLASSIFIED SERVICE – All offices and positions which are exempt from all examinations and 

which provide no tenure under the law are unclassified. Appointment to a position in the unclassified service 

may be made at the discretion of CW and the incumbent may be removed, suspended or reduced from the 

position at the pleasure of the appointing authority. 

  

SECTION 1.2: POLICY AMENDMENTS 

 

These policies may be amended, revised or deleted by act of the Legislative Authority.  Each employee will 

receive a copy of the amended, revised or deleted policy prior to its effective date.  Such amendments, 

revisions or deletions shall be made after three readings and shall not be passed as emergency legislation.   

 

SECTION 1.3: CLASSIFIED AND UNCLASSIFIED EMPLOYMENT 

 

A. All original appointments within the classified service shall be for a probationary period of one 

year. Promotional probationary period shall be one hundred and eighty days. If the service of the 

probationary employee is unsatisfactory, the employee may be removed or reduced at any time 

during the probationary period.  A probationary employee duly removed or reduced in position for 

unsatisfactory service does not have the right to appeal the removal or reduction. Following 

completion of the probationary period, no classified employees shall be reduced in pay or position, 

fined, suspended, or removed, or have the employee’s longevity reduced or eliminated, except and 

for incompetency, inefficiency, dishonesty, drunkenness, immoral conduct, insubordination, 

discourteous treatment of the public, neglect of duty, violation of any policy or work rule of CW, 

any other failure of good behavior, any other acts of misfeasance, malfeasance, or nonfeasance in 

office, or conviction of a felony. 

 

B. Employees in the unclassified service are exempt from the competitive examination process and 

serve at the pleasure of CW.  The unclassified positions are: Community Affairs Director; 

Construction Services Administrator; Development Director; Finance Director; and Public Service 

Director; Technology Coordinator; Clerk of Council; Planning and Zoning Administrator; Clerk of 

Court; Streets, Lands and Buildings Superintendent; Water Reclamation Superintendent; Water 

Superintendent; Urban Forester; Community Center Coordinator; Utilities Billing Clerk; Events 

and Communications Coordinator; Finance Specialist; Administrative Assistant (Finance 

Department); and Chief Building Official. 
 



 3 

C. Employees authorized to act for and on behalf of CW, or holding a fiduciary or administrative 

relationship to the CW council or mayor and employees whose fitness would be impractical to 

determine by competitive examination shall be in the unclassified service of CW. 

 

SECTION 1.4: VACANCIES:  IDENTIFICATION, ANNOUNCEMENT AND APPLICATION 

 

A. CW shall post, internally for a minimum of seven (7) calendar days, classified position openings it 

intends to fill on a permanent basis, except in those cases where an employee is eligible for 

reinstatement from layoff to the vacant position. 

 

B. During the posting period, any employee wishing to apply for the vacant position shall submit a 

written notice of interest to the Employer or designee.  The Employer or designee shall not be 

obligated to consider any applications submitted after the close of the posting period.  However, 

CW may consider the applications of employees who were on a previously scheduled vacation 

during the posting period. 

 

C. The Employer may consider applicants from internal or external sources at the Employer’s 

discretion.  If the Employer elects to consider applications from both current employees and outside 

applicants, the Employer or designee shall publicly announce by appropriate means all promotional 

vacancies to be filled and shall maintain a list of announced vacancies for public inspection. 

 

SECTION 1.5: BASIS FOR SELECTION 

 

A. All appointments to positions in the classified service shall be made according to merit and fitness, 

which shall be determined, as far as practicable, by competitive examination.  As noted in the Rules 

of the Personnel Board of Review, an examination may include an evaluation of such factors as 

education, training, capacity, knowledge, manual dexterity, and physical or psychological fitness. 

An examination shall consist of one or more tests in any combination.  The Employer shall 

determine the method of competitive examination, whether written, oral, physical, demonstration 

of skill, or an evaluation of training and experiences and shall be designed to fairly test the relative 

capacity of the persons examined to discharge the particular duties of the position for which 

appointment is sought.  

 

B. All qualified employees applying for the position may be interviewed by the Employer or designee, 

or the Employer may limit the number to be interviewed based on applicant responses to the job 

posting and the qualifications listed in the application.  

 

C. No immediate family member (parents, grandparents, grandchildren, children, spouse, siblings and 

any person related by blood or marriage and residing in the same household) shall be the direct or 

indirect supervisor of another immediate family member.  Council rules do not permit an elected 

official of CW to use the authority or influence of his or her position to secure employment of any 

immediate family member.  In addition, Department Heads are prohibited from the same.  CW will 

not hire as full-time, part-time, intermittent or seasonal employee any immediate family member 

of an elected official of CW. Additionally, family members will not be hired if it creates a conflict 

of interest between the employee and the relative or CW.  Similarly, no family member will be 

hired if it could result in a conflict of interest.  Temporary employees are excluded from this 

restriction. 

 

Additionally, an employee is not permitted to work in a position where a supervisor, or any person 

in the chain of organizational command, is a relative.  If such a situation is created through 

promotion, transfer or marriage, one of the affected employees must be transferred or separated.  If 



 4 

two employees marry, they will be subject to the same rules above, unless Ohio law or judicial 

decisions dictate otherwise. 

 

Ohio Rev. Code 102.03 and 2921.42 render it unlawful for a public official to use her influence to 

obtain a benefit, including a job for a family member.  All employees are reminded that a violation 

of either of these statutes could result in criminal prosecution and/or disciplinary action. 

 

SECTION 1.6: PROMOTION AND TRANSFER 

 

A. Promotion and transfer opportunities may be offered to eligible CW employees.  CW may limit a 

selection process to eligible employees, or may allow such employees preference in application 

and/or consideration, to the extent such is permitted by CW’s merit system practice. 

 

B. To be considered for promotion and/or transfer opportunities, employees must meet the minimum 

qualifications of the position as set forth in the Classification Plan established by CW, must have 

completed one year of employment with CW, and must not be under disciplinary action.  Factors 

to be considered for promotions include an employee’s completion of required training courses, 

annual performance evaluation ratings, overall performance, the employee’s attendance record, and 

any job-related testing prescribed by the Employer.  

 

C. Employees of any division who are promoted within the division shall be entitled to have their 

years of service within the division taken into account as a positive factor in determining placement 

in the pay scale established by CW. 

 

Employees who transfer to another division or are promoted to a division other than the one in 

which they currently work shall be placed in the pay scale at the salary which most closely 

corresponds, but is not less than, the employee’s current salary. 

 

D. No employee shall be required to take a cut in pay to secure a promotion or transfer opportunity, 

unless the employee’s salary is higher than the highest salary in the pay scale established for the 

job by CW. In that case, the employee shall be placed at the highest salary established by CW in 

the pay scale for that job. 

 

E. Promoted employees will be required to serve a probationary period in their new position.  

Employees failing their probationary period following appointment may be demoted to their prior 

position, if possible, or removed. 

 

F. An employee who is promoted within a classification series will receive an appropriate salary 

adjustment in the salary range as determined by the appointing authority. 

 

G. When an occasion arises that creates an absence of a senior class employee for an extended period 

of time, a temporary appointment may be made.  The temporary appointment may not continue 

longer than one hundred twenty days, and in no case shall successive temporary appointments be 

made.  A temporary appointment longer than one hundred twenty days may be made if necessary 

by reason of sickness, disability, or other approved leave of absence of regular officers or 

employees, in which case it may continue during the period of sickness, disability, or other 

approved leave of absence, subject to the rules of the employer.  While serving in a temporary 

appointment, employees will be at the bottom of the pay range of the temporary appointment, or 

receive their current rate.  However, CW may make an appropriate salary adjustment in the salary 

range as determined by the appointing authority. 

 



 5 

SECTION 1.7: EMPLOYEE STATUS 

 

A. All employees of CW shall be categorized as full-time, part-time, temporary, seasonal or 

intermittent. 

 

1. Full-time employee - an employee who is regularly scheduled to work 40 hours per week 

or on the standard full-time workweek as designated by the Employer. 

 

2. Part-time employee - an employee who is regularly scheduled to work less than 40 hours 

per week, or less than full-time as designated by the Employer. 

 

3. Temporary employee - an employee who works in a position which is of a non-permanent 

nature (full-time, regular part-time), which has a specified duration of time.  (In most 

situations, the time frame will not exceed one hundred twenty days.) 

 

4. Intermittent employee - an employee who works on an irregular schedule which is 

determined by the fluctuating demands of the work and is generally not predictable.  Such 

employees are in the unclassified service and serve at the pleasure of CW.  (In most 

situations the time frame will not exceed one thousand hours per year.) 

 

5. Seasonal employee - an employee who works a regular season or period of each year 

performing some work or activity limited to that season or period of year. 

 

B. Full-time permanent employees shall be entitled to all benefits as provided by CW.  Part-time, 

temporary, seasonal and intermittent employees shall be entitled to only those benefits which are 

specified in this manual. 

 

SECTION 1.8: MEDICAL EXAMINATIONS/DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY 

 

A. MEDICAL EXAMINATIONS 

 

A. A physical and mental examination by a qualified physician may be required by the 

Employer upon the conditional offer of appointment or promotion, to ensure that selected job 

applicants are physically and mentally able to perform the essential job functions of the position 

for which they are applying.  Such examination will include drug/alcohol testing and any job related 

examinations.  Existing employees may also be required to submit to a physical and/or mental 

examination if needed to verify fitness to perform the essential job functions of the position.  No 

medical examination, except screening for use of illegal drugs, will be conducted until after CW 

has made the applicant a conditional offer of employment.  

 

The Employer shall select the physician to administer the examination and shall pay the cost.  

Applicants may obtain a waiver of the medical examination requirement for religious opinion or 

affiliation.  

 

Any applicant requesting a waiver of the examination requirement shall submit a written affidavit 

from a qualified physician describing his or her state of health at the time of employment. 

 

Current CW employees may be required to submit to a regularly scheduled medical examination 

during their period of employment with CW.  Such an examination is intended to ensure that the 

incumbent continues to be physically and mentally able to perform the essential duties of his or her 

position.  In such instances, the Employer shall inform the incumbent in writing of the examination 

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or numbering



 6 

requirement, the physician who will conduct the examination, and the time and date of the 

examination.  The Employer shall assume the cost of such required examinations.  The employee 

shall be responsible for attending the examination, and shall cooperate with the physician in order 

that the report of examination may be delivered to the Employer.  In the event the employee elects 

to choose a physician other than the Employer's physician to complete the physical examination, cost 

incurred for conducting the physical examination will be at the employee's expense.  Employees who 

refuse examination or fail to cooperate may be subject to disciplinary action, including termination 

for refusal to attend required examinations.  

 

An employee may be disqualified from holding a position with CW if it is determined that the 

individual is unable to perform the essential duties of the position sought or held.  Prior to 

disqualification or termination, the Employer will consider whether a reasonable accommodation 

can be made which would enable the individual to perform the essential duties of the position.  If 

it is determined that an employee must be separated due to a disability, such employee may request 

a hearing before the Personnel Board of Review. 

 

CW will provide or pay for regular medical examinations for employees who may be exposed to 

contagious diseases while performing duties for CW. Upon written request, CW shall reimburse 

insurance costs incurred by an employee for contagious disease testing. 

 

B. DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY. 

 

Alcoholism and drug addiction are treatable diseases.  Therefore, employees who believe that they 

may have an alcohol or drug addiction problem are encouraged to seek professional treatment and 

assistance.  No employee who seeks such treatment or assistance prior to detection will have his 

job security, promotional opportunities, or other job conditions jeopardized by a request for 

treatment.  The individual’s right to confidentiality and privacy will be recognized in such cases.  

The CW will reasonably accommodate a recovering employee’s alcohol or drug addiction in 

accordance with federal and state law.   

 

Treatment pursuant to this accommodation policy will not result in any special regulations, 

privileges, or exemptions from standard administrative procedures, practices, or policies including 

disciplinary action.  The CW may take disciplinary action for any violations of work rules, 

regardless of the effect of alcohol or drug abuse.  Nothing in this policy shall be construed to 

condone or exonerate employees from their misconduct or poor performance resulting from a drug 

or alcohol problem. 

 

The CW maintains a drug and alcohol free workplace1 in order to eliminate the inherent risks and 

liability to the CW, the affected employee, co-workers and the public.  Employees are hereby 

notified that the manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, use or being under the influence 

of alcohol, drugs or other controlled substance is strictly prohibited during working hours at any 

location where employees are conducting CW business.  Also prohibited is the illegal use of legal 

substances.   

                                                           
1 As set forth in detail in paragraph B5 (Zero Tolerance) below medical marijuana use as authorized by state law is 

not exempted from the CW’s drug and alcohol free workplace policy, constitutes a violation of this policy, and 

employees are subject to discipline up to and including discharge for any violation of this policy, including use of 

medical marijuana. 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman



 7 

 

In order to further the CW’s objective of maintaining a safe, healthful, and drug-free workplace, 

the CW may require an employee to submit to a urine and/or blood test if there is reasonable 

suspicion to believe that an employee is under the influence of a controlled substance or alcohol.  

Refusal to submit to a drug or alcohol test and/or to release the results of the same shall be 

considered insubordination and will be construed as a positive test result. 

 

Employees are put on notice that an employee who is under the influence of drugs or alcohol may 

forfeit their right to obtain workers compensation benefits.  The law establishes a rebuttable 

presumption that if an injured worker tests positive for the use of drugs or alcohol, the worker 

will have to prove the use of drugs or alcohol did not cause the accident.  A refusal to test for the 

use of drugs or alcohol will also establish the presumption.  Employees who are involved with a 

workplace accident may be required to undergo drug and/or alcohol testing in accordance with 

this policy. 

 

1. Definitions: 

 

(a) Controlled Substance - means any controlled substance contained in Schedules 1 

through V of Section 202 of the Controlled Substance Act (21 USC 812; or as 

defined in 3719.01 O.R.C.). 

 

(b) Conviction - means any finding of guilt, including a plea of nolo contendere (no 

contest) or the imposition of a sentence, or both, by any judicial body charged with 

the responsibility to determine violations of the federal or state criminal drug 

statutes. 

 

(c) Criminal drug statute – when an employee is convicted of or pleads guilty to a drug 

statute conviction as defined by 3719.01 et seq. O.R.C. 

 

(d) The unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a 

controlled substance by any employee which takes place in whole or in part in the 

employer’s work place is strictly prohibited and will result in criminal prosecution 

and employee discipline which may include termination from employment. 

 

(e) Any employee convicted of any Federal or State criminal drug statute must notify 

the employer of that fact within five (5) calendar days of the conviction. 

 

(f) Any employee who reports for duty in an altered or impaired condition which is 

the result of the illegal use of controlled substances and/or alcohol will be subject 

to disciplinary action.  Any decision to take disciplinary action may be held in 

abeyance pending the completion by the employee of a drug rehabilitation 

program.  

 

(g) Any employee convicted of a drug or alcohol offense, who fails to report the 

conviction as required by the above, will be:  

 

(i) Terminated from employment; 

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Font: Italic



 8 

(ii) held civilly liable for any loss of federal funds resulting from the failure to 

report the conviction.  

 

2. The Drug/Alcohol Testing Policy 

 

 (a) In order to maintain a safe and healthful work environment, CW reserves the right 

to set standards for employment and to require employees to submit to physical 

examinations including blood or urine tests for alcohol, illegal drugs, or the misuse 

of legal drugs where there is reasonable suspicion that an employee’s work 

performance is, or could be, affected by the condition.  

 

 (b) In cases in which an employee is acting in an abnormal manner, and /or wWhere 

CW has a reasonable suspicion to believe that the employee is in violation of this 

policy, it may require the employee to go to a medical clinic, at CW’s under the 

influence of the substances referenced in paragraph (f) (1) above, CW may require 

the employee to go to a medical clinic, at the employer’s expense, to provide blood 

and/or urine specimens.  For purposes of the above, “reasonable suspicion” shall 

generally mean suspicion based on personal observation by a CW representative, 

including descriptions of appearance, behavior, speech, breath, or inexplicable 

behavior. 

 

 (c) If requested, the employee will shall sign a consent form authorizing the clinic to 

withdraw a specimen of blood or urine and release the test results to CW.  

 

 (d) Refusal to sign a consent form or to provide either a specimen will constitute 

insubordination and a presumption of impairment and may result in discharge.  

 

 (e) Any employee tested in accordance with the above procedure may, if the test 

results arewho tests positive, may request retesting at the employee’s expense; or 

may request, in advance of the original test, that a portion of the original specimen 

be delivered to a third party for testing at the employee’s at their own expense.  

 

 (f) The results of any such test will constitute medical information and will remain 

confidential except for their use in official safety investigations, criminal 

prosecution of the employee, or any action necessary to defend the discharge or 

discipline of the employee.  

 

 (g) Employees who test positive for illegal substance abuse or misuse of legal drugs 

and/or alcohol may be offered rehabilitation through CW Employee Assistance 

Program.  Any costs related to the rehabilitation shall be paid by the employee.  

Employees must take any available accumulated, paid, or unpaid leave during their 

absence.  Such rehabilitation may require an unpaid leave of absence.  Failure to 

fully participate in or successfully complete such a rehabilitation program may 

result in disciplinary action. 

 

 (h) Employees who return to work after the successful rehabilitation will be subject to 

random drug tests for a period of two years from the date of their return. 

  

(i) Employees subject to random drug tests who refuse to participate in the 

drug/alcohol testing and/or rehabilitation program or who continue to test positive 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  1.5"



 9 

for substance abuse will face additional disciplinary actions, up to and including 

removal.  

 

 (j) Any employee involved in an accident may be subject to post accident alcohol and 

drug/alcohol testing.  

 

 (k) Employees who are required to hold a commercial driver’s license (CDL) will be 

required to participate in CW’s drug and alcohol testing program as required by 

federal law which includes pre-employment testing, post-accident testing, random 

testing, reasonable suspicion testing, and return-to-work testing.  Policies and 

procedures for these programs will be consistent with federal law and will be made 

available to employees required to hold CDL’s and their supervisors. 

 

3. Discipline 

 

The CW may discipline an employee, for any violation of this policy.  Nothing herein shall be 

construed as a guarantee that the CW will offer an opportunity for rehabilitation.  Failure to 

successfully complete or participate in a prescribed rehabilitation program, if offered,  shall result 

in the employee’s discharge [including a refusal to test or a positive test result on a return to duty 

or follow-up test].  No employee shall be provided more than one opportunity at rehabilitation.  The 

CW’s decision whether to discharge an employee shall be made on the basis of the circumstances 

surrounding the employee’s positive drug or alcohol test and considerations such as any other 

misconduct resulting from the employee’s substance abuse (e.g. injury, property damage, etc) the 

employee’s work record, and other factors traditionally considered when determining whether to 

retain an employee. 

 

4. Refusal to Test 

 

Employees who refuse to submit to the required testing shall be subject to disciplinary action up to 

and including discharge.  A refusal to test for purposes of this policy shall include: 

 

1. Failure to provide a sufficient sample provided there does not exist a valid medical 

explanation as to why the employee was unable to do so; 

 

2. Any conduct that attempts to obstruct the testing process such as unavailability, leaving the 

scene of an accident without proper authorization,  delay in providing a sample, 

adulterating, substituting or attempting to adulterate or substitute a specimen during the 

testing process, regardless of whether such attempt results in a negative or positive diluted 

sample; 

 

3. Failure to execute or release forms required as part of the testing process. 

 

5. Zero Tolerance 

CW has a zero-tolerance policy for employees who are under the influence of illegal drugs or alcohol while 

at work.  Employees who are using marijuana with a valid doctor’s recommendation or authorized by Ohio 

law are not exempt from this policy in any way.  The use of marijuana with or without a valid 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.19"

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.19", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.19"

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.19", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.19"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  1", Space After:  10 pt, Line
spacing:  Multiple 1.15 li, Adjust space between Latin and
Asian text, Adjust space between Asian text and numbers

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman



 10 

recommendation or as authorized by law will be treated the same as the use of all other illegal drugs or the 

abuse of legal drugs and may result in the employee’s termination. 

 

Employees are advised of the following: 

   

1. CW does not permit or accommodate an employee's use, possession, or distribution of medical 

marijuana;   

 

2. CW may refuse to hire or may discharge, discipline or take other action against an individual 

because of that person’s use, possession, or distribution of medical marijuana; 

 

3. An employee who tests positive for or refuses to submit to a drug test may be disqualified for 

compensation and benefits under the Ohio Workers’ Compensation Act; 

 

4. Because use, possession or distribution of marijuana is a violation of the Drug-Free Workplace 

Policy, employees who are discharged for those reasons will be considered to have been 

discharged for just cause for purpose of unemployment compensation or other post-termination 

pay or benefits. 

 

 

SECTION 1.9: SENIORITY 

 

Seniority is defined, for the purposes of this manual, as the full-time, uninterrupted length of continuous 

service with CW.  Part-time service with CW shall not be calculated into a full-time service equivalent, 

unless required by law.  An authorized leave of absence does not constitute a break in service and seniority 

time continues to accumulate during the term of the leave, provided that the employee complies with rules 

and regulations governing his or her leave of absence, and that the employee is reinstated from the leave. 

 

SECTION 1.10:  DISCIPLINE 

 

Employee discipline shall be consistent with the Personnel Board of Review of CW. Specifically, the Board 

of Review states: Every officer or employee in the classified service of the City shall hold their position 

during good behavior and efficient service.  No employee may be reduced in pay or position, suspended 

(paid or unpaid)or removed, except for incompetency, inefficiency, immoral conduct, dishonesty, 

conviction of a felony, drunkenness, insubordination, discourteous treatment of the public, neglect of duty, 

failure of good behavior, violation of a policy or work rule of the City, abuse of authority, repeated failure 

to meet personal financial obligation, acts of misfeasance, malfeasance or nonfeasance, the conviction of a 

felony or for any other just and reasonable cause as determined by the Board. 

 

Employees still serving their probationary period are considered unclassified employees and serve at the 

pleasure of their Appointing Authorities.  As such, persons in their probationary period who are reduced, 

removed, or suspended have no right to appeal to the Board. 

 

Prior to the imposition of discipline which may result in a loss of pay or working suspension, the employee 

shall be afforded a pre-disciplinary conference, except that an employee may be suspended without pay 

pending a hearing where the charges are theft, embezzlement of public funds, being under the influence of, 

or the use of alcoholic beverages or abusive drugs during work hours, or physical violence.  

 

When an employee in the classified service is to be disciplined, the Appointing Authority or designee shall 

have the charges against the employee reduced to writing and served on the employee.  A pre-disciplinary 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", First line:  0", Space After:  0
pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left:  0.81", Numbered
+ Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.06", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.81"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.06", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.81"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.06", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.81"



 11 

conference with the City, or designee, shall be held within twenty-four (24)forty-eight (48) hours of the 

service of charges upon the employee, unless a mutually agreeable extension is made.   

 

The employee shall have the right to be represented at the pre-disciplinary conference by a designated 

representative who shall have the right to attend any hearing held.  The employee shall have the right to 

respond to the allegations of misconduct either verbally or in writing; have another respond to the 

allegations either verbally or in writing; provide no response; or waive the pre-disciplinary conference.  

 

In case of a removal, reduction in pay or position, or suspension of 24 hours or more for employees exempt 

from overtime pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA)  or of 40 hours or more for employees non-

exempt from overtime pursuant to the FLSA, the City shall serve on the employee, personally or by certified 

mail, at the last known address of such employee, a written statement concisely setting forth  the  reasons 

for which the employee is removed, reduced, or suspended and the duration of any such suspension.  The 

employee may appeal to the Board in writing within (10) calendar days from the date such written statement 

is served upon them.   

 

When notified of an employee’s appeal, the City shall transmit to the Board a copy of the written statement 

sent to such employee, together with a statement of the time and manner of service thereof.  The Board 

shall hear the employee’s appeal within thirty (30) days from the filing of the appeal with the Board and 

may affirm, disaffirm, or modify the judgment of the City issuing such order and the Board’s judgment in 

the matter shall be final except as otherwise provided by law. 

 

In an appeal of a removal based upon a “last chance agreement” between the City and the employee, the 

only issue in which the Board may render a decision is whether the employee violated the last chance 

agreement.  The Board may only affirm or disaffirm the judgment of the City.  If it is determined that the 

last chance agreement was violated, the Board may not modify the discipline issued pursuant to the last 

chance agreement.   

 

An employee wishing to leave City service in good standing shall file a written resignation with their 

department and /or division head at least two (2) weeks in advance.  Failure to comply with this requirement 

may result in denial of future employment with the City. 

 

The acceptance by the City of the resignation of a person discharged, before the final action by the Board, 

will be considered a withdrawal of the charges. Notice of the employee’s resignation shall be submitted 

immediately to the Board which shall be entered in the Board’s records.  

 

Principles of Progressive Discipline: 

 

The City practices progressive discipline beginning with informal counseling. Formal discipline with 

notation in the employee’s personnel file includes: 

a) One or more oral reprimand (s) 

b) One or more written reprimand (s) 

c) One or more suspension (s) 

d) Termination 

 

All records relating to oral and/or written reprimands will cease to have any force and effect and will be 

removed from an employee’s personnel file twelve (12) months after the date of the oral and/or written 

reprimand if there has been no other discipline imposed during the past twelve (12) months. Records of 

other disciplinary action will be removed from an employee’s file under the same conditions as oral/written 

reprimands after twenty-four (24) months if there has been no other discipline imposed during the past 

twenty-four months.   



 12 

 

  



 13 

SECTION 2.0: ETHICS 

 

The proper operation of a democratic government requires that actions of public officials and employees 

be impartial, that government decisions and policies be made through the proper channels of governmental 

structure, that public office not be used for personal gain, and that the public have confidence in the integrity 

of its government.  Ohio Revised Code Sections 102.03 and 2921.42 prohibit public employees from using 

their influence to benefit themselves or their family members.  In recognition of the above-listed 

requirements, the following Code of Ethics is established for all CW officials and employees: 

 

1) No employee shall use his official position for personal gain, or shall engage in any business or 

shall have a financial or other interest, direct or indirect, which is in conflict with the proper 

discharge of his official duties. 

 

2) No employee shall, without proper legal authorization, disclose confidential information 

concerning the property, government or affairs of CW, nor shall s/he use such information to 

advance the financial or other private interest of him or herself or others. 

 

3) No employee shall accept any valuable gift, whether in the form of service, loan, item or promise 

from any person, firm or corporation that is interested directly or indirectly in any manner 

whatsoever in business dealings with the City; nor shall an employee accept any gift, favor or item 

of value that may tend to influence the employee in the discharge of his duties or grant, in the 

discharge of the employee’s duties any improper favor, service or item of value. 

 

4) No employee shall represent private interests in any action or proceeding against the interest of the 

City in any matter wherein the City is a party. 

 

5) No employee shall engage in or accept private employment or render services for private interests 

when such employment or service is incompatible with the proper discharge of his official duties 

or would tend to impair his independent judgment or action in the performance of his official duties.  

Neither shall other employment, private or public, interfere in any way with the employee’s regular, 

punctual attendance and faithful performance of his assigned job duties.  

 

Any employee having doubt as to the applicability of these provisions should consult his supervisor or 

Department Head.  Any employee offered a gift or favor, who is not sure if its acceptance is a violation of 

the Code of Ethics, should inform his supervisor of the gift offer.  The supervisor will make a decision or 

will refer the individual to the Prosecutor’s Office.  No employee will accept from any contractor or supplier 

doing business with CW, any material or service for the employee’s private use. 

 

State law prohibits CW employees and officials from having a financial interest in companies that do 

business with public agencies, with minor exceptions.  Employees who have any doubt concerning a 

possible violation of these statutes are advised to consult an attorney. 

 

SECTION 2.1: PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

 

A. Each CW employee normally will receive an annual performance evaluation from the Employer or 

his designee for the period January 1 through December 31. Special evaluations may be made if 

authorized by the Employer or designee.  New or newly promoted employees will be evaluated 

following six months (mid-probation evaluation) of service and one year of service (final probation 

evaluation). 

1. The mid-probation evaluation will be used for the annual evaluation if the employees’ hire 

or promotion date was after April 1. 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt



 14 

2. The final probation evaluation will be used for the annual evaluation if the employees’ hire 

or promotion date was prior to April 1. 

Each CW employee normally shall be evaluated annually.  Special evaluations may be made if authorized 

by the Employer or designee.  New or newly promoted employees will be evaluated following one 

(1) year of service with CW. 

 

B. Each employee shall be provided a copy of his or her performance evaluation.  The supervisor shall 

discuss the report with the employee and shall counsel the employee regarding any improvement 

in performance which appears desirable or necessary.  Employees will be required to sign the 

performance evaluation indicating that they have received the evaluation and are aware of its 

comments. 

 

 Each year and annually thereafter, each employee will receive an annual performance evaluation 

from the Employer or his designee for the period January 1 through December 31.  Salary raises 

will be given in accordance withaccording to a merit pay system.  Percentage of increase for the 

ensuing year will be recommended by the Finance Council Committee prior to the beginning of 

each fiscal year.  Council shall have the authority to differ from these practices.  Both the evaluation 

and the percentage of salary increase for each employee will have the approval of the Employer.  

Salary raises for new employees will be pro-rated based on their hire date. If the date of hire is 

October 1 or after, the employee will not be eligible for an annual salary raise until the next annual 

evaluation period. The employee at the time of his evaluation may request to discuss the findings 

of his performance evaluation with his supervisor first, then the Department Director and the 

Appointing Authority, or both. 

 

C. Each employee shall be provided a copy of his or her performance evaluation.  The supervisor shall 

discuss the report with the employee and shall counsel the employee regarding any improvement 

in performance which appears desirable or necessary.  Employees will be required to sign the 

performance evaluation indicating that they have received the evaluation and are aware of its 

comments. The employee at the time of his evaluation may request to discuss the findings of his 

performance evaluation with his supervisor first, then the Department Director and the Appointing 

Authority, or both. 

D. It may be necessary to administer employee performance evaluations periodically throughout the 

year.  These instances will be handled in the same manner as the annual performance evaluation. 

 

SECTION 2.2: TRAINING 

 

Employees may be required to attend job-related training programs, courses, workshops, and seminars.  If 

such training is required by the Employer or designee, the reasonable expenses for training costs and 

expenses actually incurred by the employee may be paid by CW upon presentation of receipts and other 

related documentation.  A satisfactory certificate of completion for training shall be required before 

reimbursement can take place.  

 

SECTION 2.3: PAY PERIOD 

 

A. All employees will be paid every two (2) weeks.  Adjustments in pay periods may be made for leap 

years. 

 

B. The pay period is two (2) weeks long.  The pay period starts at 12:01 a.m. on Monday and ends at 

12:00 midnight on the second Sunday following.  Records of hours worked and/or edits to such 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.5", Space After: 
10 pt, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.15 li, Adjust space between
Latin and Asian text, Adjust space between Asian text and
numbers

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman



 15 

records must be turned in to the Employer during regular business hours on the designated day so 

that payroll can be prepared by the Finance Director. 

 

SECTION 2.4: OVERTIME 

 

A. Non-exempt employees shall be entitled to overtime compensation at one and one-half (1½) times their 

regular rate of pay for all hours actually worked in excess of 40 hours during any work week.  Employee 

overtime must be authorized by the Mayor or Department Head in advance of the overtime being 

worked, unless emergency circumstances require an employee to be called in without prior approval of 

the Mayor or Department Head. Scheduled overtime will be guaranteed a minimum of thirty (30) 

minutes work time.  Scheduled overtime, which is subsequently canceled for any reason, shall not 

entitle the employee to overtime compensation. 

 

B. For purposes of this section, paid sick leave, vacation, holiday and other approved paid leave time shall 

be considered hours actually worked.  Time spent traveling where overnight stay is not required during 

the workday shall be considered hours actually worked for the purposes of calculating overtime; time 

spent overnight on official CW business shall not be considered hours actually worked for the purposes 

of calculating overtime.  

 

C. Upon the written request of the employee and with the approval and agreement of the employees’ 

department manager, and in lieu of overtime pay, non-exempt employees may request in writing to be 

granted compensatory time for the hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week.  For every one 

(1) hour of time worked on overtime, a non-exempt employee shall be granted one and one-half (1 ½) 

hours of compensatory time. Newly accrued compensatory time is not available for use until it appears 

on the employee’s earnings statement and on the date the funds are made available. 

 

D. The following positions within CW shall be exempt from the overtime provisions of the Fair Labor 

Standards Act (“FLSA”): Community Affairs Director, Construction Services Administrator, 

Development Director, Finance Director, Public Service Director, Planning and Zoning Administrator, 

Technology Coordinator, Streets, Lands and Buildings Superintendent, Urban Forester, Water 

Reclamation Superintendent Water Superintendent, Events and Communications Coordinator, 

Community Center Coordinator, Finance Specialist, and Chief Building Official. Additional positions 

may also be exempt from the overtime provisions of the FLSA due to the job duties of the position. 

 

E. Exempt employees are exempt from the payment of overtime.  While these employees are not eligible 

for overtime, they are eligible for schedule adjustments as authorized by the Department Head. 

Scheduled committee and/or council meetings are paid hour for hour for exempt employees with a 

guaranteed minimum of thirty (30) minutes. 

 

F. At the discretion of the Employer, in lieu of overtime pay, exempt employees may request in writing 

to be granted compensatory time for the hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week.  For 

every one (1) hour of time worked on overtime, an exempt employee shall be granted one hour of 

compensatory time. The compensatory time account for exempt employees will have a maximum 

capacity of eighty (80) hours which must be used by the end of the calendar year. Newly accrued 

compensatory time is not available for use until it appears on the employee’s earnings statement and 

on the date the funds are made available. 

 

G. When an employee is required to work on one of the observed holidays, such employee shall receive 

his or her usual rate of compensation plus additional compensation for each hour actually worked at 

the rate of one and one-half (1½) times his or her usual rate of pay.  The additional compensation shall 

not be considered in determining any employee’s regular rate of pay for purposes of calculating 



 16 

overtime compensation which may accrue in such workweek (i.e. pyramiding of overtime is not 

permitted) 

 

By way of illustration, the appropriate calculation for an employee with a usual rate of pay of 

$10.00 per hour is as follows: 

 

 Worked 5 hours on a holiday 

 Holiday pay 8 hours @ $10.00/hour $ 80.00 

Overtime 5 hours @ $15.00/hour $ 75.00 

     $155.00 

H. Compensatory time for nonexempt employees will be paid at separation.  

 

SECTION 2.5: ON-CALL DUTIES 

 

A. Certain positions as designated by the Employer will be on an on-call status through use of cell 

phones and home phone numbers.  An employee who is on an on-call is required to have his/her 

cell phone on at all times, even when at home, in order to be reached in case of an emergency.  If 

an employee on an on-call status is directed to perform his or her duties, then such employee shall 

report to work promptly, but in no event later than within one (1) hour of being called. 

 

B. Employees assigned to an on-call status are free to pursue their own activities and the only 

stipulation is that they be available for on-call duties, as required.  They will not be compensated 

for any time not spent until actually responding to a call during the on-call status period.  If an 

employee on an on-call status is directed to perform his duties, then he will be compensated for all 

time spent performing his duties from the time he leaves his home or other location to the directed 

area assigned until he returns to his home.  The employee is expected to leave his home or previous 

location and proceed directly to the area assigned and return to his home immediately and without 

stopping. 

 

C. Non-exempt employees who are called in and required to work hours outside of their regularly 

scheduled hours of work shall be paid a minimum of two (2) hours pay at one and one-half (1½) 

times their hourly rate of pay or actual hours worked, whichever is greater, unless such call-in 

occurs on a holiday. All additional hours worked beyond the above two (2) hour call-in minimum 

will be compensated for at the usual overtime rate of pay.  There shall be no pyramiding of on-call 

pay or on-call time.  Additionally, employees called-in to work outside their regularly scheduled 

work hours may be required to work on behalf of the Employer for the duration of their call-out 

pay. 

D. Prescheduled work and meetings are not considered as part of the on-call hours. 

 

SECTION 2.6: LONGEVITY PAY 

 

Longevity pay applies to full-time and part-time employees. Longevity pay is to be paid in an employee’s 

paycheck for the pay period which includes December 1st.  Employees shall be entitled to a longevity 

payment on  as of each December 1st following their fifth anniversary date with CW according to the 

following schedule: 

 

5-9 full years of continuous service with CW ................................................................................. $200.00 

 

10-14 full years of continuous service with CW ............................................................................. $400.00 



 17 

 

15-19 full years of continuous service with CW ............................................................................. $600.00 

 

20-24 full years of continuous service with CW ............................................................................. $800.00 

 

25 or more full years of continuous service with CW .................................................................. $1,000.00 

 

Special Provisions:  If an employee quits or is terminated prior to December 1, he is not eligible to receive 

longevity for that calendar year.  That is to say that the employee must be working with CW during the pay 

period that includes December 1. 

 

SECTION 2.7: RETIREMENT PLAN 

 

All employees of CW are required by law to participate in the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System.  

This plan is entirely independent of the Federal Social Security System.  Information on this retirement 

plan may be obtained by contacting the Finance Director or designee.  If employees should have any further 

questions regarding the benefits available under this plan, they may contact the following: 

 

Public Employees Retirement System 

277 East Town Street 

Columbus, OH  43215 

(614) 466-2085 

SECTION 2.8: P.E.R.S. PICK-UP 

 

A. The total amount of the employees’ statutorily-required pension contribution shall be withheld from 

the gross pay of each full-time employee and shall be assumed and paid by CW.  This payment is 

paid in lieu of contributions by each employee within CW.  No employee subject to this 

contribution shall have the option of choosing to receive the statutorily required contribution 

directly instead of having it “picked-up” by CW or of being excluded from the “pick-up”. 

 

B. The “pick-up” provided herein applies to all full-time employees who are contributing members.  

For the purposes of this section, a full-time employee is a person who performs work for CW in 

accordance with an established working time, but not less than twenty (20) hours per seven (7) 

consecutive calendar days for fifty-two (52) consecutive seven (7) day periods annually. 

 

C. The Finance Director or designee will implement all procedures necessary in the administration of 

the pay of all full-time employees to effectuate the withholding of the statutorily-required 

contributions, so as to enable them to obtain the resulting federal and state tax deferments. 

 

 

SECTION 2.9: WORKERS COMPENSATION 

 

State law provides that every CW employee is eligible for Workers Compensation for injuries arising out 

of or in the course of his or her employment.  Guidelines for administering Workers Compensation are set 

forth below. 

 

A. Should an employee be injured during the course of employment with CW, his or her supervisor 

shall notify the HR Coordinator and shall complete an Incident Report Injury Form and an accident 

report.  Both forms shall be completed, regardless of the apparent seriousness of the injury, and 



 18 

regardless whether medical attention is required.  Such report shall be forwarded to the Employer 

or designee no later than forty-eight (48) hours after the accident. 

 

B. Should an employee’s injury require medical attention, the employee will be provided with the 

First Report of Injury (FROI) which shall be completed by the employee, employer and the 

attending physician.  This completed report should be forwarded to the HR Coordinator at the 

earliest possible date.  CW reserves the right to provide a physician for all work-related injuries.  

 

C. In the event of serious injury, the injured employee’s supervisor shall notify the Employer or 

designee immediately so that, if necessary, an investigation may be initiated. 

 

D. Workers Compensation forms shall be completed by the HR Coordinator for the purpose of 

initiating compensation claims for injured employees.  If possible, the injured employee shall meet 

with HR Coordinator at a mutually agreeable time, to assist in completing the form.  When 

necessary, HR Coordinator shall visit the employee in his home or in the hospital to initiate the 

claim. 

 

E. The Employer or designee must be advised and continually updated if an employee continues to be 

absent due to a work-related injury.  Employees are responsible for keeping the Employer or 

designee updated as to their medical status and their expected date of return. 

  

F. Any documents received from the injured employee, his or her physician, hospital, or the State, 

regarding Workers Compensation claims must be immediately forwarded to the Human Resources 

Coordinator. 

 

G. Employees who are injured in the line of duty and must leave work before completing their work 

period shall be paid at their regular rate of pay for the balance of time left in their scheduled 

workday. 

 

H. An injured employee may elect to use accrued sick leave and vacation leave prior to receiving 

payments from Workers Compensation.  Employees are prohibited, however, from receiving 

payment for injury leave, vacation leave, or sick leave while simultaneously receiving payment 

from Workers Compensation. 

 

SECTION 3.0: EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT 

  

Employees of CW are to receive reimbursement for expenses incurred if required to travel on official CW 

business. Employees are eligible for expense reimbursement only when travel has been authorized in 

writing by the Employer. Expenses shall be reimbursed in the following manner: 

A. Mileage, Parking and Tolls 

 

1. Employees shall attempt to secure a CW vehicle to attend authorized training or to conduct 

CW business. If a CW vehicle is not available, employees shall be reimbursed for actual 

miles, while on official CW business, at the standard rate of allowance permitted by the 

Internal Revenue Service when using a personal vehicle. Such payment is considered to be 

total reimbursement for all vehicle-related expenses (e.g., gas, oil, depreciation, etc.). Mileage 

reimbursement is payable to only the individual whose personal vehicle is used when two or 

more employees travel on the same trip, in the same vehicle. 



 19 

2. Charges incurred for parking at the destination, and any highway tolls are reimbursable at the 

actual amount. Receipts for parking costs and highway tolls are required. 

3. No expense reimbursements are paid for travel between home and office, unless travel 

between home and the official destination is less than between the office and official 

destination. In that case, expense reimbursements are paid between the home and the official 

destination. 

 

B. Overnight Travel 

 

When able, employees shall attempt to put travel expenses (lodging, transportation, meals, etc.) 

on a City credit card. In instances where this is not possible, the following policy shall apply: 

 

1. Meals 

a. An employee shall be entitled to receive reimbursement for meals when travelling 

overnight on CW business. The amount will be paid for meals that are not already 

included in the registration and/or lodging accommodations regardless if the 

employee chooses to attend the meal. 

 

b. Employees can be reimbursed for actual expenses incurred or using per diem 

amounts in accordance with the Federal Continental United States (CONUS) which 

identify per diem rates by geographic location. If the employee’s destination is not 

specifically listed, the standard CONUS rate applies. Employees who chose to 

request reimbursement for actual expenses incurred must submit itemized receipts to 

receive reimbursement. Under no circumstances will reimbursement be given for 

alcohol purchases. No receipts are required when receiving reimbursement under the 

per diem method. 

 

2. Lodging 

 

a. Expenses covering the actual cost of overnight lodging will be reimbursed in full 

when an employee travels out of CW on official CW business and such travel 

requires an overnight stay (75 miles or greater from CW offices). Employees shall 

ensure a government rate is secured when available and state sales tax is not 

included.  

 

b. Lodging expenses will be reimbursed only with the prior written authorization of the 

Employer or designee. In obtaining prior authorization, employees shall provide the 

name of the hotel and expected cost. 

 

3. Transportation 

 

a. Employees traveling within a drivable distance on official CW business shall follow 

Section 3.0(A) for reimbursement requests. 

 

b. When travel by air or other carrier is necessary, employees shall secure the best 

available rate. Employees shall not use personal reward programs, frequent flyer 

memberships, etc. to earn rewards when traveling on official CW business. 



 20 

 

c. In instances where a rental car is necessary, reimbursement will be granted for a car 

type that is reasonable for the location, number of travelers, etc. Reimbursement will 

not be granted for luxury vehicles or rentals deemed unnecessary at the discretion of 

the Employer. 

 

4. Incidental Expenses 

 

a. Employees will be reimbursed for reasonable incidental expenses defined as fees and 

tips given to porters, baggage carriers, hotel staff and staff on ships. 

  



 21 

C.  Daily Travel 

For travel that does not require an overnight stay, reasonable expenses incurred for meals while 

on official CW business will be reimbursed at actual cost with the approval of the Employer. 

D. The Employer may provide, in advance, at its discretion, for the cost of training, meals and travel 

expenses. 

 

E. The Employer shall establish regulations and monthly reimbursement rates for certain exempt 

employees who are regularly required to use private automobiles on CW business. 

SECTION 3.1: HEALTH CARE PLAN 

 

Each eligible full-time employee is granted the opportunity to join the CW health care plan, as provided as 

a fringe benefit by CW from time to time upon such terms and conditions as set forth by the appointing 

authority.  Healthcare plan may include health, prescription, dental, vision, and life insurance coverage as 

well as an employee wellness program. Details of CW current health care plan are available from the Public 

Service Director or the Human Resources Coordinator. 

 

SECTION 3.2: HOLIDAYS AND PERSONAL LEAVE 

 

A. All full-time employees are entitled to the following holidays: 

 

New Year’s Day ............................................. First day of January 

Martin Luther King, Jr. Birthday ..................... Third Monday of January 

President’s Day ............................................... Third Monday of February 

Good Friday .................................................... Friday before Easter 

Memorial Day ................................................. Last Monday in May 

Independence Day .......................................... Fourth day of July 

Labor Day ....................................................... First Monday in September 

Veterans Day .................................................. 11th day of November 

Thanksgiving Day ........................................... Fourth Thursday in November 

Day after Thanksgiving Day ........................... Day following fourth Thursday in NovemberFriday 

after Thanksgiving Day 

Christmas Day ................................................ 25th day of December 

Any other day proclaimed as a holiday by the Mayor, Governor of Ohio, or the President of the 

United States. 

 

B. If the holiday falls on Sunday, it will be observed on the following Monday; if it falls on a Saturday, 

it will be observed on the preceding Friday. 

 

C. In observance of each authorized holiday, full-time employees will normally be granted the day off 

from work with pay.  Employees assigned to a twenty-four (24) hour or seven (7) day per week 

operation will be expected to work holidays when so scheduled. Part-time employees will be 

granted a half day off from work with pay if the holiday falls on their regularly scheduled work 

day. 

 

D. If a holiday occurs while an employee is on vacation, such vacation day will not be charged against 

his or her vacation leave. 

 



 22 

E.  Personal Leave - In addition, each full-time employee is entitled to two (2) personal days off with 

pay per year. Personal days are scheduled in accordance with workload requirements of the 

individual department or office and departmental seniority.  The use of personal days is subject to 

the prior approval of the Department Head, or designee.  Personal day requests must be made in 

writing and submitted at least one (1) day in advance of the proposed starting date for requests of 

16 hours or less.  Employees hired on or after July 1 shall be entitled to one (1) personal day during 

their first year of service with CW.  Personal days may not be carried forward and are forfeited if 

not used in the year in which they were earned. Personal leave shall be taken in one-half (1/2) hour 

increments. 

 

SECTION 3.3: VACATION 

 

A. Full-time, twelve (12) month employees of CW are eligible for paid vacation leave according to 

the following eligibility guidelines: 

 

Years of Service 

Vacation Days 

(max per year) 

Accumulation  

per pay period 

1-6 years 12 days 3.69 hours 

7-14 years 18 days 5.54 hours 

15-24 years 22 days 6.77 hours 

25+ years 27 days 8.31 hours 

 

B. Employees shall accrue vacation leave during their first year of employment with CW; however, 

no employee will be entitled to use accumulated vacation leave under any circumstances until the 

completion of one (1) year of employment with CW.  However, uUpon written request and for 

good cause shown, employees may be permitted to use accrued, but unused vacation after six (6) 

months service.  Such requests will be considered on a case-by-case basis and subject to the 

discretion of CW.   

 

C. Vacations are scheduled in accordance with workload requirements of the individual department 

or office and departmental seniority.  For this reason, it is essential that vacation requests be made 

in writing and submitted (a) at least one (1) week in advance of the proposed starting date for 

vacation requests of more than 16 hours, or (b) at least one (1) day in advance of the proposed 

starting date for vacation requests of 16 hours or less. 

 

D. Vacation leave is earned while in paid status to the maximum amounts outlined above, but 

additional vacation leave is not accrued through the accumulation of paid overtime.  Vacation leave 

is not earned while an employee is in a no-pay status (leave of absence, disciplinary suspension, 

etc.) 

 

E. At the end of the last pay period of the year, an employee can carry over a maximum total of one 

and one-half (1½) times the number of regular vacation days to which he is entitled, as outlined 

above. 

 

F. At the end of the last pay period of the year, an employee can convert up to forty (40) hours of 

vacation to be paid on or around March 1.  In order to be eligible to convert up to one week of 

vacation leave to compensation, the employee must have taken at least one (1) week of vacation to 

be used.  Additionally, the employee must have reduced their vacation carry-over to the maximum 

amount of vacation time that can be accrued.  Once vacation hours are converted to pay, the accrual 

bank is reduced by the number of hours converted. 

 



 23 

G. CW shall not accept any transfer of vacation time accumulated by another agency or political 

subdivision. 

 

H. Vacation time shall be granted taken in minimum units of one-half (1/2) hour. 

 

I. Prior service vacation credit will be granted consistent with Ohio law. Employee shall obtain 

service time on the former employer’s letterhead specifying the dates of employment and whether 

the employee was full-time or part-time.  

 

J. Vacation days are based on forty (40) hour workweek accumulation to the maximum amounts 

outlined above. 

 

K. Newly accrued vacation time is not available for use until it becomes available on the employee’s 

earning statement and on the date the funds are available.  

 

L. Vacation leave accrual will be pro-rated upon resignation. 

 

SECTION 3.4: SICK LEAVE 

 

A. Sick leave is a full-time employee benefit that is to be used solely for the purposes outlined below.  

An employee may request sick leave for absences resulting from illness as described below, 

provided they follow “F” which is outlined below.  Sick leave may be requested for the following 

reasons: 

 

 1. Illness or injury of the employee or a member of his or her immediate family. 

 2. Exposure of employee or member of his or her immediate family to a contagious disease 

which would have a potential of jeopardizing the health of the employee or the health of 

others. 

 3. Bereavement Leave as defined below. 

 4. Medical, dental, or optical examinations or treatment of employee or a member of his or 

her immediate family. 

 5. Pregnancy, childbirth and/or related medical conditions of the employee or the employee’s 

immediate family. 

 

For the purposes of this sick leave policy, the “immediate family” is defined as only: mother, father, brother, 

sister, child, step-child, spouse, grandparent, grandchild, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister-in-law, 

brother-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, legal guardian or other person who stands in the place of a 

parent.   

 

B. The Employer, or designee, maintains the right to investigate any employee’s absence.    Employees 

may be required to furnish satisfactory, signed written statement from a physician verifying the 

proper use of sick leave. The employee will submit to a medical examination, nursing visit or other 

inquiry which the Employer or designee requires. 

 

C. For each completed eighty (80) hours in active pay status, an employee earns 4.6 hours of sick 

leave.  Active pay status may be defined as hours worked, hours on vacation, hours on holiday 

leave, and hours of paid sick leave but additional sick leave is not accrued through the accumulation 

of paid overtime.  Sick leave shall not be advanced.  However, employees that have exhausted all 

their accrued sick leave may request to use other forms of paid leave or an unpaid leave of absence 

at the sole discretion of CW. 

 



 24 

D. There is no limit on the amount of sick leave accrued. However, employees transferring to CW 

from other jurisdictions shall not be permitted to transfer sick leave. 

 

E. Sick leave shall be charged taken in minimum units of one-half (1/2) hour increments. 

 

F. Employees absent on sick leave shall be paid at the same basic hourly, daily or biweekly rate as 

when they are working. 

 

G. An employee requesting sick leave shall personally notify his or her supervisor at least ½ hour prior 

to the start of their scheduled shift. Notification by voice mail, email or text or a third party is not 

acceptable except in cases of emergency or at the discretion of the supervisor. The employee must 

indicate a qualifying reason for his or her absence.  Failure to do so may result in denial of sick 

leave for the period of the absence. In cases where the employee’s supervisor is not available, the 

employee shall notify their supervisor’s immediate supervisor of the absence.  

 

GH. Other leave may be used for sick leave purposes, at the employee’s request and the approval of the 

Employer, after sick leave is exhausted. Other leave will be utilized in the following sequence: 

Compensatory time, personal leave and vacation leave, Employees who have exhausted all sick, 

compensatory, personal, and vacation leave may, at the discretion of the Employer, be granted a 

personal leave of absence without pay for a period not to exceed six (6) months.   

 

HI. An employee fraudulently obtaining sick leave, or found falsifying sick leave records, altering a 

physician’s certificate or falsification of a written, signed statement shall be subject to disciplinary 

action, up to and including termination. 

 

IJ. Regarding an employee’s evaluation, CW will accept up to five (5) incidences of sick leave in any 

twelve (12) month perioda calendar year.  An incident is defined as the uninterrupted number of 

scheduled work days or hours absent as a result of an illness. 

 

Example:  An employee has the flu and is off sick for two successive workdays.  The employee has 

incurred one incident of sick leave, amounting to sixteen (16) hours of sick time used. 

 

Example:  An employee has an operation, and must be in the hospital for one week.  The employee 

has incurred one incident of sick leave amounting to forty (40) hours of sick time used. 

 

Example:  An employee is sick for one day.  A week later, the employee is sick again.  The 

employee has incurred two (2) incidences of sick leave amounting to sixteen (16) hours of sick 

time used. 

 

Example:  An employee is in the hospital for two days. Because of the illness, the doctor has 

recommended physical therapy twice a week for the next three weeks. Each physical therapy visit 

is related to the initial hospital stay and the entire period will count as one incident. 

 

JK. A return to work slip from a physician will be required to return to work after each sick leave 

incident that lasts for more than two (2) working days.  For extended illnesses, a doctor’s excuse is 

required every two (2) weeks, unless a specific release date is provided by the physician at the onset 

of the illness or injury.   

 

K.L. Regarding disciplinary action, Eemployees that incur more than five (5) incidences of sick leave in 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.5", Space After:  10 pt, Line
spacing:  Multiple 1.15 li, Adjust space between Latin and
Asian text, Adjust space between Asian text and numbers

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.5", Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 12 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.06" + Tab after:  0.31" +
Indent at:  0.31", Tab stops:  0.5", List tab



 25 

any a rolling twelve (12) month period may continue to use accrued sick time; however, more than 

five incidences of sick leave annually will be deemed unacceptable by CW.  Employees will be 

disciplined in accordance with this Manual for unacceptable use of sick leave and will receive an 

“unacceptable” rating for that portion of thezero (0) points for attendance on their Performance 

Evaluation that deals with use of sick leave. 

 

L.M. Employees will be permitted four (4) non-concurrent up to two (2) hour allotments of sick time per 

year to be used for pre-approved medical, dental or optical examinations.  The use of these four (4) 

occurrences shall not be counted as a sick leave incident.  
 

 

M.N. Section M – Sick Leave Conversion – At the end of the pay period that includes December 31, an   

employee may convert to cash any part of their sick leave accrued not to exceed eighty (80) hours 

provided they maintain a minimum of six hundred (600) hours of sick leave after conversion. 

Payout will be 2 for 1 (e.g. ½ of their hourly rate) and will be paid on or around March 1. 

 

N.O. Newly accrued sick time is not available for use until it appears on the employee’s earnings 

statement and on the date the funds are available. 

 

O.P.        Sick leave accrual will be pro-rated upon resignation. 
 

Q. Sick Leave Transfer - An employee, who transfers from any political subdivision to CW and who 

is eligible to earn sick leave with CW shall be credited with the unused balance of the previously 

accumulated sick leave bank up to a maximum of 600 hours. The employee must be hired by CW 

within ten years of resignation/separation from the prior employer to be eligible under this 

section. New employees whose sick leave is transferred must first use sick leave earned while 

employed with CW prior to using his/her transferred balance. Transferred sick leave cannot be 

applied to Section N – Sick Leave Conversion. Any transferred sick leave shall not be eligible for 

conversion to a cash payment at resignation or retirement. 
 

SECTION 3.5: SICK LEAVE DONATION 

 

CW shall maintain an equitable sick leave donation policy which allows employees to voluntarily provide 

assistance to any full-time employee of CW who needs leave due to injury or illness to the employee or the 

employee’s immediate family. For purposes of this sick leave donation policy, employees may only receive 

a sick leave donation if all other forms of their paid leave have been exhausted.  Employees cannot use 

transferred sick leave under this policy. For purposes of this sick leave donation policy, immediate family 

shall include the employee’s spouse or children. 

 

Employees’ may donate/receive sick leave up to the amount hours regularly worked by the employee during 

pay period.  For example, if the employee is regularly scheduled to work eighty (80) hours, the employee 

may receive up to 80 hours in a pay period.  Employees receiving a sick leave donation shall be deemed to 

be in active pay status eligible to accrue any other benefits to which they would otherwise be entitled. 

 

An employee requesting to donate leave to an employee may do so by submitting a Sick Leave Donation 

Form to the Human Resources Coordinator.  In order to donate sick leave, the employee must satisfy the 

following which is captured on the Sick Leave Donation form: 

 

1. Indicate to whom the leave is donated. 

2. Submit a written request/statement that the donation is voluntary; 

3. Understand that the leave will not be returned once donated; 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.5", Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 12 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.06" + Tab after:  0.31" +
Indent at:  0.31"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.5", Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 12 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.06" + Tab after:  0.31" +
Indent at:  0.31", Tab stops: Not at  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.5", Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 12 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.06" + Tab after:  0.31" +
Indent at:  0.31", Tab stops:  0.5", List tab + Not at  0.31"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A, B,
C, … + Start at: 12 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.06" +
Tab after:  0.31" + Indent at:  0.31"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.5", Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 12 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.06" + Tab after:  0.31" +
Indent at:  0.31", Tab stops:  0.5", List tab + Not at  0.31"

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt



 26 

4. No less than four (4) and no more than forty (40) hours may be donated to any employee. 

5. The employee must have a remaining sick leave balance of four hundred eighty (480) hours after a 

donation. 

 

The Human Resources Coordinator will determine whether the donation is voluntary and if the necessary 

terms of the donation are satisfied.  If the leave donation is approved, the employees will be notified in 

writing of the leave donation, as well as, the terms of the donation. 

 

If multiple employees offer to donate leave, the leave will be distributed in an equitable manner. For 

example, if an employee needs ten (10) days and five (5) employees volunteer, then each employee would 

have two days deducted from their sick leave. 

 

SECTION 3.6: BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 

 

Any eligible employee may be granted use of accumulated sick leave, upon approval of the Employer or 

designee, for a maximum of three (3) consecutive working days in the event of a death of an immediate 

family member.  For the purposes of this policy, the “immediate family” is defined as only:  mother, father, 

brother, sister, child, step-child, spouse, grandparent, grandchild, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister-in-

law, brother-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, legal guardian or other person who stands in the place of 

a parent.   

 

The use of sick time for bereavement leave shall not be counted as a sick leave incident. 

 

SECTION 3.7: MILITARY LEAVE 

 

CW will comply with all applicable State and Federal law concerning military leave.   

 

SECTION 3.8: JURY DUTY (CIVIC DUTY LEAVE) 

 

A. If a full-time employee of CW is called for jury duty, he will be paid his regular salary or wage in 

full for the period of time that the employee serves in jury duty. 

 

B. All monies received as compensation for jury duty shall be turned over to the CW Clerk, unless 

jury duty was served outside of regular working hours. 

 

C. The employee will be expected to report for work following jury duty, if a reasonable amount of 

time remains during his scheduled workday.  For example, if more than half the employee’s shift 

remains, the employee is to return to work.  If otherwise required, an employee must serve on-call 

duties during hours that attendance at the courthouse is not required, unless the employee is 

sequestered.     

 

D. Employees shall also be entitled to leave without loss of pay to appear in court in matters related 

to their employment.  However, employees shall not be entitled to paid court leave when appearing 

in court for criminal or civil cases, when the case is being heard in connection with the employee’s 

personal matters, or other non-work related matters.  If employees are required to appear in court 

for a personal or non-work matter, employees may request a leave without pay, the use of vacation 

leave or other form of paid leave.  Paid leave may be used upon the prior request to and approval 

of the Department Head. 

 



 27 

E. Time served by an employee for court leave or jury duty shall not be considered hours worked for 

purposes of calculating overtime, unless such court service is directly related or is an integral part 

of the employee’s work duties. 

 

SECTION 3.9: LEAVE WITHOUT PAY 

 

A. At the sole discretion of CW, the Employer may grant a leave of absence to any employee for a 

maximum duration of six months upon the written request of the employee.  Leave without pay 

may be granted for personal reasons, educational opportunities of the employee or due to an illness, 

injury or temporary disability. Such a leave may not be renewed or extended beyond six months.  

A failure of the employee to return at the conclusion of a leave of absence without pay will result 

in the employee being deemed to have voluntarily resigned their position. 

 

B. The authorization of a leave of absence without pay is a matter of administrative discretion.  The 

Employer will decide in each individual case if a leave of absence is to be granted. 

 

C. Except for emergencies, employees will advise the Employer sixty days prior to commencement 

of the desired leave so that the various functions may proceed properly. 

 

D. Upon completion of a leave of absence, the employee shall be returned to the position formerly 

occupied, or to a similar position if the employee’s former position no longer exists, unless the 

employee would otherwise have been separated from service. 

 

E. An employee may return to work before the scheduled expiration of leave if requested by the 

employee and agreed to by the Employer. 

 

SECTION 3.10: SEPARATION PAY 

 

A. Upon separation from employment for any reason, an eligible employee shall be paid any credited 

unused vacation as of the date of such separation. Compensatory time will be paid out to nonexempt 

employees only. Personal leave will not be paid out at separation. 

 

B. Upon separation from employment due to retirement of the employee and/or death of the employee, 

an eligible employee or beneficiary shall be paid for one-fourth (¼) of their accumulated sick leave 

to a maximum of sixty (60) days or 480 hours.  However, to be eligible for sick leave pay-off, the 

employee must have ten (10) years of public service, be eligible to retire and actually retire.  In the 

event the employee converts any unused sick leave at retirement, such conversion will empty the 

employee’s sick leave bank. 

 

C. Such payments will be made within thirty (30) days of the separation. 

 

SECTION 3.11: FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE  

 

The Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) allows eligible employees to take up to 12 weeks of leave time 

in a rolling 12 month period for family and/or medical leave of absence or for childbirth, adoption and 

foster care.  An employee who has been employed by CW for at least twelve months and has been in 

“active pay status” at least 1250 hours during the past 12 months is eligible for FMLA leave.  CW will 

comply with all applicable State and Federal laws concerning FMLA. For employees not eligible for 

FMLA, CW will review business considerations and the individual circumstances involved. CW requires 

reasonable documentation. For further information, please contact Human Resources. 



 28 

 

SECTION 3.12: BREASTFEEDING MOTHERS 

 

All employees that have recently given birth shall be allowed reasonable break time in order to express 

milk for her feeding child each time the employee has a need to express milk, up to one year after the child’s 

birth.  The employee will be provided an appropriate space, other than a bathroom, that is shielded from 

view and free from intrusion from co-workers and members of the public, for the purpose of expressing 

milk.  Breaks for the purpose of expressing milk in accordance with this policy shall be unpaid. 

  

SECTION 4.0: INCLEMENT WEATHER (NON-PUBLIC SERVICE DEPARTMENTS) 

 

A. Weather conditions normally should not prevent employees from reporting for work.  When 

weather conditions are extremely severe, and when all other options have been exhausted, the 

Employer or designee shall be contacted.   

 

B. CW recognizes that on certain days it may be difficult for a scheduled employee to come into work, 

due to excessive snow, ice or other inclement weather.  Caution and care should be exercised upon 

attempting to report to work under such conditions. 

 

C. Scheduled employees who are able to come into work on such inclement days shall be paid their 

regular wage for actual time worked.  Those employees who are not able to come into work due to 

inclement weather shall have the option of receiving an excused day off without pay or using time 

from vacation hours. 

 

D. Exceptions to A, B and C will occur when a state of emergency is properly declared.  The only 

authorities allowed to make such a declaration are the President of the United States, the Governor 

of the State of Ohio, the Franklin or Fairfield County Sheriff or Mayor.  Employees will receive 

full pay in the event that a state of emergency is properly declared. 

 

E. In extreme weather conditions the Employer may institute a closing or change in arrival and closing 

times without approval or institution of (D) of this section. 

 

SECTION 4.1: INCLEMENT WEATHER (CERTAIN PUBLIC SERVICE DEPARTMENTS) 

 

Road, water, and wastewaterPublic Service department personnel are required to come into work regardless 

of the weather conditions.  When weather conditions are extremely severe, and when all other options have 

been exhausted, the Employer or designee shall be contacted.  Arrangements may be made to pick up the 

employee at home.  Employees shall exercise caution and care upon attempting to report to work in severe 

weather conditions. 

 

SECTION 4.2: CONTINUING EDUCATION AND TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 

 

A.  Continuing Education 

 

A full-time employee of CW may be permitted to attend a continuing education event when directly 

related to the employee’s field of work. For purposes of this section, continuing education is defined 

as a single or multi-day professional seminar, conference, workshop, meeting or class. All requests 

to attend such an event must have prior approval from the appropriate supervisor and/or Department 

Head. The employee may be permitted to attend the event with full pay and without the use of paid 



 29 

time off. In certain instances, an employee may be required to use paid time off. Such instances 

shall be discussed prior to the event. 

B. Tuition Reimbursement 

 

Contingent on budget allocations, City employees may be eligible to receive financial assistance to 

attend educational courses at fully-accredited educational institutions in order to foster personal 

development in job-related areas as well as career development. The city will require the employee 

to sign an agreement which will outline the specific criteria prior to receiving reimbursement. 

 

SECTION 4.3: HOURS OF WORK 

 

The typical workweek for CW employees is forty (40) hours per week.  Due to the nature of their operations, 

many departments have different schedules, shifts or special arrangements.  Work schedules for these 

operations are determined by the respective department heads and approved by the Employer; provided, 

however, that an employee shall work no more than a maximum of sixteen continuous hours. In the event 

an employee works sixteen hours, an eight-hour break shall be required before such employee may return 

to work. 

 

SECTION 4.4: ATTENDANCE 

 

The Employer or designee shall establish daily work schedules and maintain daily employee attendance 

records.  Attendance is an essential function of all positions.  Good attendance is expected and tardiness is 

not tolerated.  Employees are required to be at work during regularly scheduled hours unless otherwise 

excused.  Absences without proper authorization and approval will result in disciplinary action, up to and 

including termination. 

 

SECTION 4.5: STARTING/QUITTING 

 

A. Employees will report to work no earlier than fifteen (15) minutes prior to their scheduled starting 

time, and conclude their workday no later than fifteen (15) minutes after their scheduled quitting 

time unless authorized by the Employer or designee. 

 

B. Employees are required to record their hours worked in the manner provide by the Employer.  At 

the conclusion of the pay period, employees are required to verify the accuracy of the hours worked. 

 

C. Employees are expected to promptly report to work at their scheduled starting time and perform 

the functions of their position.  Employees who fail to comply with this work requirement will be 

subject to disciplinary action.  

 

SECTION 4.6: TARDINESS 

 

Tardiness on a regular basis is inexcusable and will subject an employee to disciplinary action.  Tardiness 

is defined as any situation where an employee reports to work after his scheduled starting time.  Whenever 

an employee is tardy, that employee may be subject to a reduction in pay corresponding to the amount of 

time he was late, unless the employee’s tardiness is excused by the employee’s supervisor.  

 

SECTION 4.7: LUNCH PERIOD/BREAKS 

 



 30 

A. Breaks may be provided by the Department Head so long as the breaks do not interfere with the 

employee’s work.  Employees may be provided one-half (½) hour unpaid time off for lunch, 

generally to be taken in the middle of the workday unless unusual or emergency conditions exist. 

 

B. Breaks shall be considered a privilege and not a right and shall not interfere with the proper 

performance of the employee’s work responsibilities. 

 

SECTION 4.8: SAFETY AND HEALTH 

 

Work safety and health is a primary concern.  The safe and healthful performance of all work assignments 

is the responsibility of both supervisory and non-supervisory personnel.  It is the responsibility of each 

employee to ensure that all equipment is used safely and all safety procedure/practices are observed. 

 

A. Any employee found to be negligent in equipment operation, resulting either in damage to the 

equipment or an accident, shall be disciplined according to these policies. 

 

B. Any employee found to be willfully or deliberately negligent in equipment operation, resulting in 

either damage to the equipment or an accident, shall be subject to discipline, up to and including 

termination.         

 

C. All employees, particularly supervisors, are charged with the responsibility of reporting the 

existence of any hazardous condition or practice in the workplace.  In the event an employee 

believes they are subject to an unsafe working condition, the employee shall immediately notify 

the supervisor who shall investigate and make a determination. 

 

D. Employees are required to wear the prescribed safety equipment.  A failure to wear safety 

equipment as required will result in discipline, up to and including termination. 

 

E. Supervisors found to be negligent in requiring and/or controlling the use of prescribed safety 

equipment are subject to disciplinary action, including termination. 

 

SECTION 4.9: TOOLS, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, VEHICLES, PHONES AND OFF-DUTY 

COMMUNICATION 

 

A. Tools, supplies, vehicles and equipment needed to perform job duties are provided by the Employer 

or designee.  It is the responsibility of employees to see that they are properly used, maintained, 

and returned to the proper department in good working order. 

 

B. Misuse, neglect, theft and abuse of tools, supplies, vehicles, equipment or telephones is prohibited.  

Excessive use of telephones and/or long distance telephone calls for purposes other than business 

without prior supervisory approval shall result in disciplinary action.   

 

C. The personal use of any tools, supplies, vehicles or equipment is strictly forbidden and such use 

may subject the employee to discipline up to and including termination, any provision of this 

Manual regarding progressive discipline to the contrary notwithstanding. 

 

D. Non-employee passengers shall not be permitted in CW vehicles without the approval of the 

Employer or designee. 

 

E. Employees who are granted cell phones and have cell phone privileges are required to adhere to 

the provisions set forth below: 



 31 

 

Cell phones are not only capable of making and receiving phone calls, they may also be capable of 

email, text messaging, internet browsing, running third party applications, GPS, and entertainment 

(e.g.  games, music, videos). Features other than phone use must not be used or activated without 

direct authorization from your department head. 

 

Employees should have no reasonable expectation of privacy in the use of City-issued cell phones.   

 

Personal cell-phones may be permitted upon the prior approval of your direct-supervisor.  Any 

permitted usage of personal cell-phones, however, must be kept to a minimum and in no way shall 

their usage negatively impact the performance of your job duties.  

 

Employees involved in motor vehicle accidents attributed to cell phone usage while operating said 

vehicle will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination.   

 

F. Employee Off-Duty Electronic Communication - The City supports the free exchange of information 

and camaraderie among employees on the internet off-duty.  However, when internet blogging, 

chat room discussions, email, text messages or other forms of electronic communication extend to 

employees revealing confidential information about the City, or engaging in posting inappropriate 

material about the City or its employees, the employee who posts such information or assists in 

posting such material may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including 

termination.   Confidential information includes any information that would otherwise not be 

available pursuant to a public records request.  Inappropriate material includes but is not limited to 

false or defamatory material, evidence of an employee’s violation of the law, or evidence of the 

misuse of the City authority, insignia or equipment.  Employees may also be subject to discipline, 

up to and including termination, for engaging in conduct which reflects negatively on the City or 

impacts the employees' ability to perform their job duties.  Employees communicating on personal 

sites shall not claim or imply that they are communicating on behalf of the City. Employees with 

questions about this policy should contact their supervisor for guidance. 

 

G. Employees who improperly use CW computers, internet and other equipment will be subject to  

discipline including termination. 

    

SECTION 5.0: TECHNOLOGY USAGE AND SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY 

 

The use of the City of Canal Winchester automation systems, including computers, fax machines, and all 

forms of Internet/intranet access, is for City of Canal Winchester business and for authorized purposes 

only. Brief and occasional personal use of the electronic mail system or the Internet is acceptable as long 

as it is not excessive or inappropriate, occurs during personal time (lunch or other breaks), and does not 

result in expense or harm to the City of Canal Winchester or otherwise violate this policy. 

  

Use is defined as "excessive" if it interferes with normal job functions, responsiveness, or the ability to 

perform daily job activities. Electronic communication should not be used to solicit or sell products or 

services that are unrelated to the City of Canal Winchester's business; distract, intimidate, or harass 

coworkers or third parties; or disrupt the workplace. 

  

Use of City of Canal Winchester computers, networks, and Internet access is a privilege granted by 

management and may be revoked at any time for inappropriate conduct carried out on such systems, 

including, but not limited to: 

 



 32 

 Sending chain letters or participating in any way in the creation or transmission of unsolicited 

commercial e-mail ("spam") that is unrelated to legitimate City of Canal Winchester purposes; 

 Engaging in private or personal business activities, including excessive use of instant messaging 

and chat rooms (see below); 

 Accessing networks, servers, drives, folders, or files to which the employee has not been granted 

access or authorization from someone with the right to make such a grant; 

 Making unauthorized copies of City of Canal Winchester files or other City of Canal Winchester 

data; 

 Destroying, deleting, erasing, or concealing City of Canal Winchester files or other City of Canal 

Winchester data, or otherwise making such files or data unavailable or inaccessible to the City 

of Canal Winchester or to other authorized users of City of Canal Winchester systems; 

 Misrepresenting oneself or the City of Canal Winchester; 

 Violating the laws and regulations of the United States or any other nation or any state, city, 

province, or other local jurisdiction in any way; 

 Engaging in unlawful or malicious activities; 

 Deliberately propagating any virus, worm, Trojan horse, trap-door program code, or other code 

or file designed to disrupt, disable, impair, or otherwise harm either the City of Canal 

Winchester's networks or systems or those of any other individual or entity; 

 Using abusive, profane, threatening, racist, sexist, or otherwise objectionable language in either 

public or private messages; 

 Sending, receiving, or accessing pornographic materials; 

 Becoming involved in partisan politics; 

 Causing congestion, disruption, disablement, alteration, or impairment of City of Canal 

Winchester networks or systems; 

 Maintaining, organizing, or participating in non-work-related Web logs ("blogs"), Web journals, 

"chat rooms", or private/personal/instant messaging; 

 Failing to log off any secure, controlled-access computer or other form of electronic data system 

to which you are assigned, if you leave such computer or system unattended; 

 Using recreational games; and/or 

 Defeating or attempting to defeat security restrictions on City of Canal Winchester systems and 

applications. 

  

Using City of Canal Winchester automation systems to access, create, view, transmit, or receive racist, 

sexist, threatening, or otherwise objectionable or illegal material, defined as any visual, textual, or auditory 

entity, file, or data, is strictly prohibited. Such material violates the City of Canal Winchester anti-

harassment policies and subjects the responsible employee to disciplinary action. The City of Canal 

Winchester's electronic mail system, Internet access, and computer systems must not be used to harm 

others or to violate the laws and regulations of the United States or any other nation or any state, city, 

province, or other local jurisdiction in any way. Use of City of Canal Winchester resources for illegal 

activity can lead to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal and criminal prosecution. The City 

of Canal Winchester will comply with reasonable requests from law enforcement and regulatory agencies 

for logs, diaries, archives, or files on individual Internet activities, e-mail use, and/or computer use. 

  

Unless specifically granted in this policy, any non-business use of the City of Canal Winchester's 

automation systems is expressly forbidden. 

  

If you violate these policies, you could be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. 

  

Ownership and Access of Electronic Mail, Internet Access, and Computer Files; No Expectation of 

Privacy 

  



 33 

The City of Canal Winchester owns the rights to all data and files in any computer, network, or other 

information system used in the City of Canal Winchester and to all data and files sent or received using 

any City of Canal Winchester system or using the City of Canal Winchester's access to any computer 

network, to the extent that such rights are not superseded by applicable laws relating to intellectual 

property. The City of Canal Winchester also reserves the right to monitor electronic mail messages 

(including personal/private/instant messaging systems) and their content, as well as any and all use by 

employees of the Internet and of computer equipment used to create, view, or access e-mail and Internet 

content. Employees must be aware that the electronic mail messages sent and received using City of Canal 

Winchester equipment or City of Canal Winchester-provided Internet access, including web-based 

messaging systems used with such systems or access, are not private and are subject to viewing, 

downloading, inspection, release, and archiving by City of Canal Winchester officials at all times. The 

City of Canal Winchester has the right to inspect any and all files stored in private areas of the network or 

on individual computers or storage media in order to assure compliance with City of Canal Winchester 

policies and state and federal laws. No employee may access another employee's computer, computer 

files, or electronic mail messages without prior authorization from either the employee or an appropriate 

City of Canal Winchester official. 

  

The City of Canal Winchester uses software in its electronic information systems that allows monitoring 

by authorized personnel and that creates and stores copies of any messages, files, or other information that 

is entered into, received by, sent, or viewed on such systems. There is no expectation of privacy in any 

information or activity conducted, sent, performed, or viewed on or with City of Canal Winchester 

equipment or Internet access. Accordingly, employees should assume that whatever they do, type, enter, 

send, receive, and view on City of Canal Winchester electronic information systems is electronically 

stored and subject to inspection, monitoring, evaluation, and City of Canal Winchester use at any time. 

Further, employees who use City of Canal Winchester systems and Internet access to send or receive files 

or other data that would otherwise be subject to any kind of confidentiality or disclosure privilege thereby 

waive whatever right they may have to assert such confidentiality or privilege from disclosure. Employees 

who wish to maintain their right to confidentiality or a disclosure privilege must send or receive such 

information using some means other than City of Canal Winchester systems or the City of Canal 

Winchester-provided Internet access. 

  

The City of Canal Winchester has licensed the use of certain commercial software application programs 

for business purposes. Third parties retain the ownership and distribution rights to such software. No 

employee may create, use, or distribute copies of such software that are not in compliance with the license 

agreements for the software. Violation of this policy can lead to disciplinary action, up to and including 

dismissal. 

  

Confidentiality of Electronic Mail 

  

As noted above, electronic mail is subject at all times to monitoring, and the release of specific information 

is subject to applicable state and federal laws and City of Canal Winchester rules, policies, and procedures 

on confidentiality. Existing rules, policies, and procedures governing the sharing of confidential 

information also apply to the sharing of information via commercial software. Since there is the possibility 

that any message could be shared with or without your permission or knowledge, the best rule to follow 

in the use of electronic mail for non-work-related information is to decide if you would post the 

information on the office bulletin board with your signature. 

  

It is a violation of City of Canal Winchester policy for any employee, including system administrators and 

supervisors, to access electronic mail and computer systems files to satisfy curiosity about the affairs of 

others, unless such access is directly related to that employee's job duties. Employees found to have 

engaged in such activities will be subject to disciplinary action. 



 34 

  

Electronic Mail Tampering 

  

Electronic mail messages received should not be altered without the sender's permission; nor should 

electronic mail be altered and forwarded to another user and/or unauthorized attachments be placed on 

another's electronic mail message. 

  

Policy Statement for Internet/Intranet Browser(s) 

  

The Internet is to be used to further the City of Canal Winchester's mission, to provide effective service 

of the highest quality to the City of Canal Winchester's customers and staff, and to support other direct 

job-related purposes. Supervisors should work with employees to determine the appropriateness of using 

the Internet for professional activities and career development. The various modes of Internet/Intranet 

access are City of Canal Winchester resources and are provided as business tools to employees who may 

use them for research, professional development, and work-related communications. Limited personal use 

of Internet resources is a special exception to the general prohibition against the personal use of computer 

equipment and software. 

  

Employees are individually liable for any and all damages incurred as a result of violating City of Canal 

Winchester security policy, copyright, and licensing agreements. 

  

All City of Canal Winchester policies and procedures apply to employees' conduct on the Internet, 

especially, but not exclusively, relating to: intellectual property, confidentiality, City of Canal Winchester 

information dissemination, standards of conduct, misuse of City of Canal Winchester resources, anti-

harassment, and information and data security. 

  

Personal Electronic Equipment 

  

The City of Canal Winchester prohibits the use or possession in the workplace of any type of camera 

phone, cell phone camera, digital camera, video camera, or other form of image- or voice-recording device 

without the express permission of the City of Canal Winchester and of each person whose image and/or 

voice is/are recorded. Employees with such devices should leave them at home unless expressly permitted 

by the City of Canal Winchester to do otherwise. This provision does not apply to designated City of 

Canal Winchester personnel who must use such devices in connection with their positions of employment. 

  

Employees should not bring personal computers or data storage devices (such as floppy disks, CDs/DVDs, 

external hard drives, flash drives, "smart" phones, iPods/iPads/iTouch or similar devices, mobile 

computing devices, or other data storage media) to the workplace or connect them to City of Canal 

Winchester electronic systems unless expressly permitted to do so by the City of Canal Winchester. Any 

employee bringing a personal computing device, data storage device, or image-recording device onto City 

of Canal Winchester premises thereby gives permission to the City of Canal Winchester to inspect the 

personal computer, data storage device, or image-recording device at any time with personnel of the City 

of Canal Winchester's choosing and to analyze any files, other data, or data storage devices or media that 

may be within or connectable to the personal computer or image-recording device in question. Employees 

who do not wish such inspections to be done on their personal computers, data storage devices, or imaging 

devices should not bring such items to work at all. 

  

Violation of this policy, or failure to permit an inspection of any device covered by this policy, shall result 

in disciplinary action, up to and possibly including immediate termination of employment, depending 

upon the severity and repeat nature of the offense. In addition, the employee may face both civil and 



 35 

criminal liability from the City of Canal Winchester, from law enforcement officials, or from individuals 

whose rights are harmed by the violation. 

 

As the use of social media such as Facebook becomes more popular, it is important that employees 

understand their responsibilities and limitations on the use of social media both during and off work.  While 

on duty, employees shall not access or use social networking sites such as MySpace, Facebook, Linked-in, 

Twitter and blogs or chat rooms unless their position requires the updating of the City social media site. 

Employees shall not divulge any confidential information on any social media site under any circumstances.  

Employees accessing these or similar sites are responsible for the information that comes up on these sites.  

Employees who are accessing pages on these sites displaying information of a discriminatory, sexual or 

other inappropriate content shall be subject to disciplinary action. 

 

While off duty, employees are reminded to be careful of the information they disclose on the internet, 

including social media sites.  Employees may not disclose any confidential information they become aware 

of through their employment even while off duty.  Employees shall not claim or imply that they are speaking 

on behalf of their employer.  Employees may not engage in conduct that reflects negatively on their 

employer or impacts their ability to perform their job duties. 

 

If the appointing authority has a Facebook page or other social media site, employees may only post 

information on the site with permission from the appointing authority. 

 

Employees may be subject to disciplinary action for inappropriate use of the internet, including social media 

sites while on or off duty.  

 

Social Media – Employee’s Comments 

 

The City hosts social media sites which allow members of the public to post comments and 

questions. The purpose of this site is for the City to disseminate relevant information to the public, 

as well as to receive relevant feedback from the public. 

 

As a member of the public, you have the opportunity to post on our Facebook site.  Your posts are 

subject to the same restrictions imposed on other members of the public.  The City routinely 

monitors its social media pages.  We reserve the right to delete posts which contain any of the 

following: 

 

1. Profane or obscene material; 

2. Any vulgar or abusive language, personal attacks of any kind, or offensive terms targeting 

individuals or groups; 

3. Spam or posts which include links to other non-city sites; 

4. Posts which are clearly off-topic; 

5. An encouragement to engage in illegal activity; 

6. Infringement on copyright or trademarks; 

7. Confidential or non-public information; 

8. Solicitation of services or products;  

9. Any illegal or inappropriate material; 

10. Endorsements of political parties, candidates or groups; 

11. Any other information or language which is deemed inappropriate. 

 



 36 

In addition, as an employee, you may have confidential information or knowledge as a result of 

your employment.  This information or knowledge may not be proper for disclosure.  Employees 

shall not disseminate confidential information or other information that is not of public concern, 

which includes but is not limited to information related to personnel decisions.  Employees with 

questions about whether information is of public concern shall contact their supervisor for 

guidance.   

 

Remember that, as with most forms of social media, comments posted on Facebook and other 

social media sites are not private.  All posts may constitute a public record and may be disclosed 

pursuant to a public records request.   

 

Employees who violate this policy by posting inappropriate material or assisting others in posting 

inappropriate material may be subject to discipline, up to and including termination.   
 

SECTION 5.1: USE OF VEHICLES 

 

A. Use of CW motor vehicles shall be strictly controlled by the Employer or designee and shall be 

restricted to CW purposes only. Only government employees and persons with whom the operator 

is actually transacting city business are to be transported.  

 

B. Employees operating a motor vehicle are required to have the proper, valid motor vehicle operator’s 

license or CDL’s or other appropriate license where required by law and job description.  New 

employees shall have the appropriate license at the time they commence employment, however, 

the Employer may authorize an extension of the time period up to 120 days from employment with 

CW to obtain an appropriate licensure if warranted by the circumstances. 

 

C. Employees are required to use their own vehicles to get to and from work.  CW vehicles are not to 

be used for this purpose unless explicitly authorized by the Employer, who shall maintain the 

authority to refuse such permission.   

 

D. Any employee who operates a CW vehicle shall exercise caution and responsibility and shall adhere 

to all safety regulations.  Reckless or destructive operation of vehicles is grounds for disciplinary 

action as outlined in these policies.  All violations and accidents shall be reported in accordance 

with these policies and the Ohio Revised Code and are subject to disciplinary action. 

 

E. Any equipment or vehicular accident, even those involving any property, must be reported to the 

immediate supervisor immediately; the Supervisor shall notify the Employer or designee.  An 

incident report must be completed. 

 

F. Employees are required to notify their Department Head, or designee, of any incidents or 

infractions that may render the employee uninsurable pursuant to CW’s policy.  Similarly, it is the 

employee’s responsibility to notify/inform their Department Head of any restriction or prohibition 

placed upon their driving privileges if driving is required. 

 

G. All employees that are required to drive shall remain insurable under CW’s insurance policy.  A 

failure to remain insurable will render the employee unqualified for the position. 

 

SECTION 5.2: EMPLOYEE TRAFFIC ACCIDENTS 

 



 37 

A. If any CW employee is involved in a traffic accident driving CW equipment, whether the employee 

is full-time, part-time, volunteer, on duty or off duty, the accident shall be reported to the proper 

jurisdiction to perform the proper accident reporting procedure.  An “accident” shall be defined as 

physical contact with another moving or stationary motor vehicle or with a fixed object. 

 

B. If an employee of any department is involved in a traffic accident, they will notify the dispatcher 

to contact the proper agency and a supervisor. Each vehicle has instructions in the glove 

compartment concerning the proper actions to take after an accident. All employees who are 

operating city vehicles should become familiar with these procedures prior to operating the city 

vehicles.  

 

C. Under no circumstances will an employee fail to report any damage to a CW vehicle to the 

supervisor at the time the accident occurs.  Failure to do so will result in disciplinary action. 

 

D. Employees who are involved in traffic accidents must comply with any requirement regarding 

submission of the Department of Transportation (DOT) post-accident drug and alcohol testing. 

 

SECTION 5.3: OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT/VOLUNTEER SERVICE 

 

A. Prior to engaging in any outside employment or volunteer service, CW employees shall obtain the 

approval of the Department Head.  Under no circumstances shall an employee have other 

employment or volunteer service which conflicts with the policies, objectives and operations of the 

several departments of CW.  In addition, an employee shall not become indebted to a second 

Employer whose interests might be in conflict with those of CW.  Due to potential conflicts, 

employees maintaining outside employment or volunteer service are required to review CW’s 

Ethics Policy and Ohio’s Ethics Law before undertaking such outside employment. 

 

B. Employment “conflicts” as set forth in this policy, are when a second job impairs the employee’s 

ability to perform the duties of his position.  In the event an employee’s outside employment 

conflicts with their primary employment with CW, the employee will be disciplined, up to and 

including termination. 

 

C. Full-time employment with CW shall be considered the employee’s primary occupation, taking 

precedence over all other occupations. 

 

D. “Outside” employment, volunteer service, or “moonlighting” shall be a concern to the Employer 

or designee only if it adversely affects the employee’s job performance.  Two common employment 

conflicts which may arise are:  

 

 1. Time Conflict - Defined as when the working hours required of a “secondary job” directly 

conflict with the scheduled working hours of an employee’s job with CW, or when 

demands of a “secondary job” prohibit adequate rest, thereby adversely affecting the 

quality standard of the employee’s job performance with CW.  A conflict also exists if a 

second job causes the employee to regularly refuse overtime. 

 

 2. Interest Conflict - Defined as when an employee engages in “outside employment” which 

tends to compromise his judgment, actions and/or job performance with CW. 

 

SECTION 5.4: NO SOLICITATION/NO DISTRIBUTION 

 

Solicitation, distribution of materials, selling and/or collections of any nature on CW property or during 



 38 

employee working hours by an employee or any other individual shall be prohibited without prior approval 

of the Employer and/or Department Head.  CW limits solicitation and distribution on its premises as those 

activities can interfere with the CW’s operations, reduce employee efficiency, annoy customers, and pose 

a threat to security. 

 

Individuals not employed by the CW are prohibited from soliciting funds or signatures, conducting 

membership drives, distributing literature or gifts, offering to sell merchandise or services (except by 

representatives of suppliers or vendors given prior authority), or engaging in any other solicitation, 

distribution, or similar activity on the premises or at a worksite. 

 

CW may authorize a limited number of fund drives by employees on behalf of charitable organizations or 

for employee gifts.  Employees are encouraged to volunteer to assist these drives; however, participation is 

entirely voluntary. 

 

The following restrictions apply when employees engage in permitted solicitation or distribution of 

literature for any group or organization, including charitable organizations: 

 

1. The distribution of literature, solicitation and the sale of merchandise or services is prohibited in 

public areas. 

  

2. Soliciting and distributing literature during the working time of either the employee making the 

solicitation or distribution, or the targeted employee, is prohibited.  The term “working time” does 

not include an employee’s authorized lunch or breaks or other times when the employee is not 

required to be working. 

 

3. Distributing literature in a way that causes litter on CW property is prohibited. 

   

CW maintains various communications systems to communicate CW-related information to employees and 

to disseminate or post notices required by law.  The unauthorized use of the communications systems or 

the distribution or posting of notices, photographs, or other materials on any CW property is prohibited. 

 

Employees who violate this provision are subject to discipline.  All violations of this policy will be 

addressed on a case-by-case basis.  Disciplinary measures will be determined by the severity of the 

violation, not the content of the solicitation or literature involved. 

 

SECTION 5.5: DRESS CODE 

 

CW reserves the right to prescribe appropriate dress or uniform for each department.  CW requires that an 

employee’s clothing, grooming and overall appearance be appropriate, in good taste and present a favorable 

public image.  Clothing should be conducive to the safe and effective performance of required job duties.  

Employees who are issued uniforms are required to wear uniforms that are provided.   

 

SECTION 5.6: MEDICATION 

 

Any employee on medication that may impair his mental or physical functions must notify his supervisor 

before starting work.   

 

SECTION 5.7: CONTACT WITH NEWS MEDIA/RESIDENTS 

 



 39 

A. Any employee contacted by the news media (radio, television, newspaper) or resident on a story 

related to CW operations should request the caller to contact the Employer or Community Affairs 

Directordesignee. 

 

B. This policy is designed to avoid duplication, assure accuracy and to protect employees who might 

be accused of violation of confidentiality mandates.  The intent of this policy is to be helpful to 

both employees and the media. 

  



 40 

 

SECTION 5.8: ACCESS TO EMPLOYEES BY TELEPHONE 

 

As a condition of continued Employment, each CW employee must provide his supervisor with a telephone 

number where said employee may be reached directly.  It shall be the employee’s responsibility to update 

the Employer with any new or changed contact information.  All communications with employees will be 

through the most recent contact information provided.  A failure to update the Employer with the most 

recent contact information may not only result in the employee not receiving up-to-date information, but 

also may result in disciplinary action. 

 

SECTION 5.9: UNAUTHORIZED PERSONS ENTERING CW PROPERTY OR USING FACILITIES  

 

A. No unauthorized employee shall be permitted to enter or remain on CW property or in CW facilities 

that are restricted, i.e. that are not accessible by the general public. 

 

B. All CW employees shall report to the designated supervisor to obtain permission to remain on CW 

property or use CW facilities after working hours. 

 

C. Any CW employee who violates this policy will be subject to disciplinary action. 

 

SECTION 6.0: RETURNING OF CW PROPERTY 

 

An employee leaving CW service through resignation, lay off or dismissal is responsible for return of 

reusable CW property in his possession.   

 

SECTION 6.1:  HARASSMENT AND DISCRIMINATION 

 

CW’s policy is to provide its employees an environment free of employee discrimination, including 

harassment based on an employee’s race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, ancestry, disability or 

military status.  Sexual harassment, as well as, other forms of unlawful harassment, is inappropriate, illegal 

and will not be tolerated.  Unlawful harassment interferes with the well-being and productivity of 

employees and the efficiency of the organization, negatively affecting morale, motivation and job 

performance.   

 

Sexual harassment is generally defined as unwelcome sexual advances, comments or requests.  Sexual 

harassment is a form of sex discrimination that is an "unlawful employment practice" prohibited by state 

and federal law.  Sexual harassment exists when employment decisions are based on sexual conduct or 

when the work place is so permeated with conduct of a sexual nature that the conduct alters the terms and 

conditions of employment and creates an abusive and hostile working environment. Harassment based on 

race, national origin, religion, disability, pregnancy, age, or military status exists when employment 

decisions are based on those characteristics or when the workplace is so permeated with conduct relating 

to that characteristic that it alters the terms and conditions of employment and creates a hostile work 

environment.  This policy refers to “sexual” harassment solely for ease of reference.  When this policy 

references “sexual” harassment, all other forms of prohibited harassment as set forth herein are equally 

applicable. 

 

Sexual or other unlawful harassment does not generally encompass conduct of a socially acceptable nature; 

however, some conduct which is appropriate in a social setting may be inappropriate in the work place.  

Formatted: Left, None, Space After:  10 pt, Line spacing: 
Multiple 1.15 li, Adjust space between Latin and Asian text,
Adjust space between Asian text and numbers



 41 

Sexual harassment occurs either when behavior of a sexual nature is directed toward an employee who finds 

the behavior unwelcome and offensive or when behavior of a sexual nature fails to respect rights of others, 

is demeaning or lowers morale.  Acquiescence in the behavior does not negate the existence of sexual 

harassment.  "Unwelcome" does not mean involuntary.   

 

Prohibited conduct includes, but is not limited to, sexual comments, suggestions, jokes, leering, pats, 

squeezes or other similar contact, posting of sexual pictures, cartoons, photos or other graphics.  In addition, 

comments, suggestions, jokes, and other similar activities relating to race, national origin, religion, 

disability, pregnancy, age, and military status are prohibited.   This type of conduct constitutes unlawful 

harassment when: 

 

1. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of 

employment; 

  

2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as a basis for employment 

decisions affecting the individual; or 

  

3. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with work performance or 

creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment. 

 

Sexual and other unlawful harassment may also extend beyond the confines of this organization.  Conduct 

that occurs off duty and off premises, including online, against a CW employee may also be subject to 

this policy.   

 

Employees who feel they have been subject to sexual or other unlawful harassment by a fellow employee, 

supervisor, or other individual otherwise affiliated with CW shall immediately submit a written report of 

harassment to their Department Head.  Employees who feel that they have witnessed discrimination or 

harassment, or who have questions or concerns regarding possible harassment, should immediately contact 

their Department Head. Employees may also use the Complaint Procedure outlined in this Manual.  Late 

reporting of complaints will not, in and of itself, preclude the Employer from taking remedial action.  

However, so that a thorough and accurate investigation may be conducted, employees are encouraged to 

report complaints in an expedient manner following the harassing or offensive incident. 

 

Although employees are encouraged to confront the alleged harasser, they are also required to submit a 

written report of any incident to their Department Head.  When the Department Head is notified of the 

alleged harassment, he shall immediately investigate the complaint.  The investigation may include private 

interviews of the employee allegedly harassed, the employee committing the alleged harassment and any 

and all witnesses.  Information will be kept as confidential as practicable, although confidentiality cannot 

be guaranteed.  All employees are required to cooperate in any investigation of a harassment complaint.  

Determinations of harassment shall be made on a case-by-case basis.  If the investigation reveals the 

complaint is valid, prompt attention and disciplinary action designed to stop the harassment and prevent its 

recurrence will be taken. 

 

Neither CW nor any of its supervisors and employees shall in any way retaliate against an individual for 

filing a complaint, reporting harassment or participating in an investigation.  Any employee who feels that 

he is subjected to retaliatory conduct as a result of actions taken under this policy shall report such conduct 

to the department head or Appointing Authority immediately. Any person found to have retaliated against 

an individual for engaging in activity protected by this policy will be subject to the same disciplinary action 



 42 

provided for offenders of the sexual harassment policy.  Disciplinary action for the filing of a false 

complaint shall not be considered a retaliatory act. 

 

Although legitimate complaints made in good faith are strongly encouraged, false complaints or complaints 

made in bad faith will not be tolerated.  Failure to prove sexual harassment will not constitute a false 

complaint without further evidence of bad faith.  False complaints are considered a violation of this policy 

and an employee who makes a false complaint may be subject to discipline. 

 

Sexual harassment is considered to be a failure of good behavior and will not be tolerated. Disciplinary 

action will follow a violation of this policy and will reflect the seriousness of the violation.  If the 

investigation establishes that the accused employee engaged in sexual harassment, discipline, up to and 

including removal, will be administered.  Offenders will be disciplined without regard to their position or 

job performance.  Any individual exhibiting retaliatory or harassing behavior towards an employee 

exercising a right under this policy will also be subject to discipline.  Any employee who has knowledge of 

sexually harassing conduct and who allows that conduct to go unaddressed may also be subject to discipline. 

 

SECTION 6.2: AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES 

 

CW prohibits discrimination in hiring, promotions, transfers or any other benefits or privileges of 

employment, of any qualified individual with a disability.  To be considered a qualified individual, the 

employee must be otherwise qualified to perform the essential functions of the position with or without 

reasonable accommodation.   

 

CW will provide reasonable accommodation(s) to an otherwise qualified employee with a disability, unless 

the accommodation would pose an undue hardship to CW or create a direct threat of harm to the employee 

or others.  Accommodations will be made on a case-by-case basis.  Any employee who wishes to request a 

reasonable accommodation should submit a written request to the Department Head, or Human Resources 

Coordinator.  Following the request, CW and the employee will discuss whether an accommodation is 

appropriate, as well as, the type of accommodation to be given. 

 

Any employee who feels that their rights have been violated should submit a written complaint consistent 

with the Harassment Policy. 

  

SECTION 6.3: COMPLAINT POLICY 

 

Employees may have questions and complaints that develop in the day to day activities of employment, of 

which may be caused by misunderstandings and the application of policies, procedures and work rules.  It 

is the policy of CW that these should be heard promptly, and action taken to resolve or clarify the particular 

situation. 

 

All employees, including probationary, shall have the right to file a complaint without fear of retaliation.  

No employee shall be disciplined, harassed or treated unfairly in any manner as a result of filing a complaint 

or testifying in a grievance hearing. 

 

A. Complaint: 

A complaint is defined as a disagreement between an employee and CW as to the interpretation or 

application of official policies, departmental rules and regulations, or other disagreements 

perceived to be unfair or inequitable relating to treatment or other conditions of employment. 

 



 43 

B. Health and Safety Grievances: 

 

Complaints relating to issues of health and/or safety shall be expedited through the steps of the 

procedure. 

 

SECTION 6.4: COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 

 

Step 1 - Immediate Supervisor: 

An employee having a complaint shall file it in writing with his Immediate Supervisor, as outlined 

in the procedure for his work unit.  The employee’s Immediate Supervisor will review the 

complaint and attempt to resolve the complaint within seven (7) calendar days.  Step 1 may be 

bypassed by either the employee or Immediate Supervisor if the Immediate Supervisor lacks the 

authority to make a change.   

 

Step 2 –Department Head:   

Where the employee is not satisfied with Step 1 Response of the Immediate Supervisor, the 

employee may submit the original complaint to the Department Head within seven (7) calendar 

days.  The Department Head will review all material provided and submit to the employee a 

response in a timely manner.    

 

Step 3-Employer (Mayor): 

Where the employee is not satisfied with the Step 2 response, the employee may submit the original 

complaint to the Mayor within seven (7) calendar days.  The Mayor will review all material 

provided and submit to the employee a response in a timely manner.  The Mayor’s response shall 

be final, unless both parties mutually agree to submit the matter to the Personnel Board of Review 

for resolution.   

 

SECTION 6.5: EMPLOYEE COMPLAINT-MISCONDUCT HEARING PROCEDURE 

 

A. It is the policy of the CW to fairly and impartially investigates all complaints of any employee’s 

alleged misconduct and when necessary, take disciplinary measures. 

 

 1. Complaints from any citizen or from any employee cannot be refused to be taken. 

  

 2. The supervisor will brief the Department Head and Employer in writing that a complaint 

was received, that it is being investigated and of an estimated time period to complete the 

investigation. 

 

 3. If the complainant is an identified citizen or employee, the complaint will be directed to 

the proper Department Head.  The supervisor will document the name, address, and phone 

number of the complainant, the date and time the complaint was received and the exact 

specifics of the allegation(s).  If the complaining person is an employee, he will write the 

information required by this section and provide a written and signed report to their 

immediate supervisor. 

 

B. The Department Head will thoroughly investigate each complaint, including but not limited to the 

following: 

 

 1. Interview the accused employee. The accused employee is required to answer all questions 

truthfully, including writing a signed statement if ordered by the Department Head. 

 



 44 

 2. Interview any witnesses or other persons involved and write a supplement concerning their 

statements or observations. 

 

 3. Gather all documents and evidence pertaining to the investigation. 

 

 4. After completion of the investigation, the Department Head will: 

 

 (a) Write a report to the Employer clearing the employee of any misconduct and 

include copies of all documents and evidence gathered; OR 

 

 (b) Read applicable Ohio Revised Codes, CW policies and procedures and internal 

standard operating procedures and recommend what charge(s) should be filed 

against the employee.  Include copies of all documents and evidence gathered to 

date. 

 

C. The Employer will:  

 

 1. Notify any employee that he is cleared of any wrongdoing and advise him that nothing will 

be placed in their personnel file; OR 

 

 2. File a written charge(s) against the employee specifying the violation(s) and specifics of 

each violation(s); 

  

 3. If the violation(s) does not appear to be serious enough to ultimately warrant a suspension 

or more serious punishment, the Employer will meet with the employee and the employee’s 

Department Head and provides written notification to the employee of what discipline will 

be administered. 

 

SECTION 6.6: RESIGNATION/RETIREMENT 

 

A. Employees who plan to voluntarily resign shall notify their Department Head in writing at least 

two (2) weeks in advance of the effective date of resignation. 

 

B. Any employee who resigns is encouraged to give his reasons for resigning and to discuss with his 

Department Head any working conditions which he feels are unsatisfactory. 

 

C. A formal letter of resignation/retirement shall be required by the Employer.  The letter of 

resignation/retirement will be deemed accepted upon receipt by the appointing authority and must 

state the employee’s last day of employment. The employee may not use leave time to extend the 

date of resignation/retirement.  However, tThe appointing authority shall sign and date the 

resignation letter evidencing the receipt and acceptance of the resignation. 

 

D. Failure to give proper notification shall result in ineligibility for reinstatement. 

 

E. A person who resigned in good standing may be reinstated, at the discretion of the Employer, in 

his former type of position within one (1) year following resignation, provided the person remains 

qualified to perform the duties of the position, if the old position or a similar position is vacant. 

 

F. Employees resigning from their positions are required to conduct an inventory of all CW property 

for which they are responsible.  Such inventory shall be conducted in the presence of the Employer 

or designee.  The completed inventory documentation shall be certified and signed.  The certified 



 45 

document shall be given to the Employer certifying that all property has been accounted for.  This 

certification shall be required before final salary payment and benefits will be given to the resigning 

employee. 

 

SECTION 6.7: PERSONNEL FILES 

 

A. The Finance Director shall maintain official personnel files on all employees of CW.  Such files 

with appropriate redaction shall be subject to release under the Ohio Public Records Act:  Payroll 

Records, Timesheets, Salary Information, Employment Application, Resumes, Training Course 

Certificates, Forms documenting receipt of office policies and procedures, Forms documenting 

hiring and personnel action changes, position descriptions, background checks, leave conversions 

forms, letters of support or complaint and disciplinary action records, unless exempt from 

disclosure by law. Personnel files and information shall be available in accordance with the law. 

 

B. An employee shall have a right of reasonable inspection of his official personnel file consistent 

with CW’s public records policy or at a mutually agreeable time. 

 

C. Employees must advise the Finance Director of any change in:  name, address, marital status, 

telephone number, number of exemptions claimed for tax purposes, citizenship, selective service 

classification, or association with any government military service organization.  Employees are 

still responsible for maintaining appropriate and accurate notices of life changing events for 

insurance purposes and for the appropriate pension plans.  CW will use the most recent information 

provided to it. 

 

SECTION 6.8: SMOKE-FREE, TOBACCO- FREE WORKPLACE POLICY 

 

A.  The City of Canal Winchester strives to maintain a safe and healthy work environment in 

conjunction with the City’s wellness initiative. The purpose of Ohio’s Smoke-free Workplace Act 

and the City’s Smoke-free, Tobacco-free policy is to comply with Ohio’s Smoking Ban (ORC 

3794). Although the use of smokeless tobacco in the workplace is not unlawful, it is inconsistent 

with the City’s philosophy to build and reinforce our wellness initiative. CW can be fined for an 

employee’s failure to adhere to the Smoke-free Workplace Act. Employees are expected to 

comply with the policy. 

 

B. In the interest of maintaining a healthy and professional environment, the use of all types of 

tobacco products and non-tobacco substitutes will be prohibited in all City-owned or leased 

facilities, vehicles, or equipment and on all City-owned or leased property and grounds. 

 

Definition: Tobacco is defined as all tobacco-derived or containing products, including and not 

limited to cigarettes, electronic cigarettes, cigars and cigarillos, hookah smoked products, pipes and 

oral tobacco (e.g. spit and spitless tobacco, smokeless, chew, snuff) and nasal tobacco. It also includes 

any product intended to mimic tobacco products, contain tobacco flavoring or deliver nicotine other 

than for the purpose of cessation.)  The definition is adapted from the Ohio State University Tobacco 

Free policy. 

 

No employee shall smoke in any of these protected areas at any time.  The success of this policy will depend 

on the consideration and cooperation of all employees.  Consistent enforcement of this policy is expected 

at all times by all Department Heads, Managers and Supervisors in order to maintain a smoke-free, tobacco-

free workplace.  



 46 

 

SECTION 6.9:  POLITICAL ACTIVITY 

 

Although CW encourages all employees to exercise their constitutional rights to vote, certain political 

activities are legally prohibited for classified employees of CW whether in active pay status or on Leave of 

Absence.  Violation of these prohibitions may result in possible disciplinary action up to and including 

removal.  The following activities are examples of conduct permitted by classified Employees: 

A. Registration and voting. 

B. Expressing opinions, either orally or in writing. 

C. Voluntary financial contributions to political candidates or organizations. 

D. Circulating non-partisan petitions or petitions stating on legislation. 

E. Attendance at political rallies.   

F. Nominating petitions. Employees may sign nominating petitions in support of individuals. 

G. Displaying political materials in the employee’s home or on the employee’s property. 

H. Wearing political badges or buttons, or the display of political stickers on private vehicles. 

 

The following activities are examples of conduct prohibited by classified Employees: 

A. Participating in a partisan election as a candidate for office. 

B. Declaring candidacy for an elected office that is filled by partisan election if the nomination to 

candidacy was obtained in a primary partisan election or through the circulation of a nominating 

petition identified with a political party. 

C. Circulating official nominating petitions for any candidate. 

D. Holding an elected or appointed office in any political organization. 

E. Accepting appointment to any office normally filled by partisan election. 

F. Filing of petitions meeting statutory requirements for partisan candidacy for elected office. 

G. Campaigning by writing in publications, by distributing political material, or by writing or making 

speeches on behalf of a candidate for partisan elective office, when such activities are directed 

toward party success; 

H. Solicitation, either directly or indirectly, of any assessment, contribution or subscription, either 

monetary or in-kind, for any political party or political candidate; 

I. Solicitation for the sale, or actual sale, of political party tickets; 

J. Partisan activities at the election polls, such as solicitation of votes for other than nonpartisan 

candidates and nonpartisan issues; 

K. Service as a witness or challenger for any party or partisan committee; 

L. Participation in political caucuses of a partisan nature; and 

M. Participation in a political action committee that supports partisan activity. 

 

SECTION 6.10: WORKPLACE VIOLENCE – Zero Tolerance 

 

CW is committed to providing a work environment that is safe, secure and free of harassment, threats, 

intimidation and violence.  In furtherance of this commitment, CW enforces a zero tolerance policy for 

workplace violence.  Consistent with this policy, threats or acts of physical violence, including intimidation, 

harassment, and/or coercion which involve or affect employees, or which occur on CW property or at a 

worksite, will not be tolerated.  Employees who are found to have committed acts of workplace violence 

will receive discipline and possible criminal prosecution, depending on the nature of the offense. 

 

Prohibited Acts of Violence 

 

Prohibited acts of workplace violence include, but are not limited to, the following: 



 47 

 

1. Hitting or shoving an individual. 

 2. Threatening to harm an individual or her family, friends, associates, or property.  

3. The intentional destruction or threat of destruction of property. 

4. Making harassing or threatening telephone calls, or sending harassing or threatening letters 

or other forms of written or electronic communications, including e-mail and website 

postings.   

5. Intimidating or attempting to coerce an employee to do wrongful acts, as defined by 

applicable law, administrative rule, policy, or work rule. 

6. The willful, malicious and repeated following of another person, also known as “stalking” 

and/or making threats with the intent to place another person in reasonable fear for her/his 

own safety. 

7. Suggesting or otherwise intimating that an act to injure persons or property is 

“appropriate”, without regard to the location where the suggestion or intimation occurs. 

8. Unauthorized possession or inappropriate use of firearms, weapons, or any other dangerous 

devices on CW property. 

 

Warning Signs and Risk Factors  The following are examples of warning signs, symptoms and risk factors 

that may indicate an employee’s potential for violence.  Employees should be aware of these indicators.  In 

all situations, if violence appears imminent, employees should take the precautions necessary to assure their 

own safety and the safety of others.  An employee should immediately notify his/ her supervisor if she/he 

witnesses any of the following behaviors: 

 

 1. Dropping hints about a knowledge of firearms. 

2. Making intimidating statements such as: “I’ll get even,” or “You haven’t heard the last 

from me.” 

3. Keeping records of other employees the individual believes to have violated departmental 

policy. 

4. Physical signs of anger, such as, hard breathing, reddening of complexion, menacing stares, 

loudness, and profane speech. 

5. Acting out violently either verbally or physically. 

6. Excessive bitterness by a disgruntled employee or an ex-employee. 

7. Being a loner, avoiding all social contact with co-workers. 

8. Having a romantic obsession with a co-worker who does not share that interest. 

9. History of interpersonal conflict. 

10. Domestic problems, unstable/dysfunctional family. 

11. Brooding, depressed, strange behavior, a “time bomb ready to go off.” 

 

SECTION 6.11: CONCEALED CARRY 

 

Consistent with the Ohio Revised Code, no employee, contractor, client or other individual may carry, 

possess, convey or attempt to convey a deadly weapon or ordinance onto the property of CW.  A valid 

concealed carry license does not authorize an individual to carry such a weapon onto these premises. Law 

enforcement officers specifically authorized to carry a firearm are exempted from this provision and may 

be permitted to carry a concealed weapon. 

 

CW employees are prohibited from carrying firearms any time they are working for CW or acting within 

the course and scope of employment.  These situations include, but are not limited to attending training 

sessions or seminars, wearing a CW identification badge and working in resident’s homes or other sites off 

CW premises.  In addition, but for law enforcement officers, no employee or member of the public may 



 48 

carry a concealed weapon in a CW-owned vehicle.   

 

Employees who possess a valid license to carry a concealed weapon are discouraged from storing a weapon 

in their personal vehicle while at work.  An employee possessing a valid license to carry a concealed weapon 

may bring their weapon with them onto a CW parking lot.  However, the employee must leave the weapon 

in his/her vehicle.  Employees are neither permitted to remove their weapon from their vehicles while in 

the CW parking lot nor are they permitted to bring a concealed weapon into a CW-owned building.  The 

employee’s weapon must be stored in the vehicle in accordance with the storage provisions of the Concealed 

Carry statute.  The weapon must be in a locked vehicle either in the glove compartment, a lock box or the 

trunk. 

 

Employees shall immediately contact a supervisor if they suspect an employee or member of the public is 

carrying a concealed weapon on CW premises.  Employees are required to immediately contact a supervisor 

if they suspect an employee to be carrying a concealed weapon at any time while they are working for CW, 

acting within in the course and scope of employment, or acting as a representative of the CW. 

 

CW reserves the right to inspect CW owned property at any time. Any violation of this policy may result 

in disciplinary action, up to an including termination. 

Consistent with the Ohio Revised Code, no employee, contractor, client or other individual may carry, 

possess, convey or attempt to convey a deadly weapon or ordinance onto the property of CW. A valid 

concealed carry license does not authorize an individual to carry such a weapon onto these premises. Law 

enforcement officers specifically authorized to carry a firearm are exempted from this provision and may 

be permitted to carry a concealed weapon. 

CW employees are prohibited from carrying firearms any time they are working for CW or acting within 

the course and scope of employment. These situations include, but are not limited to attending training 

sessions or seminars, wearing CW identification/uniform, and working in resident’s homes or other sites 

off CW premises. No employee or member of the public may carry, transport, or store a concealed 

weapon, firearm, or ammunition in a CW owned vehicle. 

This policy does not prohibit employees possessing a valid license to carry a concealed handgun from 

transporting and/or storing a firearm or ammunition in their personal vehicle at work locations where their 

personal vehicle is otherwise permitted (e.g. CW parking lots). However, the employee must leave the 

firearm and ammunition in their personal vehicle stored in accordance with the storage provisions of the 

Concealed Carry statute. Employees are neither permitted to remove their firearm and ammunition in 

their personal vehicle while at work locations nor are they permitted to bring a concealed firearm or 

ammunition into a CW owned building. 

Employees shall immediately contact a supervisor if they suspect an employee, member of the public is 

carrying a concealed weapon, firearm, or ammunition on CW premises, or at any time an employee is 

working for CW, acting within in the course and scope of employment, or acting as a representative of 

CW. Any violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action.    

 

 

 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt



 

4 

 

B. Organizational Meeting: The Council shall be a continuing body, but shall meet in the Council 

Chamber at its first meeting in January of each year for the purpose of organization.  Council shall 

adopt, by majority vote of its members, its own Rules which shall not conflict with the Charter of the 

City of Canal Winchester and which shall remain in effect until amended, changed or repealed by a 

majority vote of the members of Council.  The Rules shall go into immediate effect unless a later date 

is specified, and shall not be subject to initiative or referendum.  The Rules of Council shall provide 

for the number, composition and manner of appointment of committees of Council, and such other 

matters as Council shall determine to be necessary for the proper functioning and government of 

Council. Council may appoint members to various city organizations such as CWJRD, Human 

Services, CWICC and Destination Canal Winchester, etc. as provided by each organization’s bylaws.  

However, no more than two members of Council shall be appointed to the same organization. All 

official appointments shall be made in the form of a Resolution.  

C. Special Meetings:  Special meetings may be called, for any purpose, by the Mayor or any three 

members of the Council upon at least twenty-four (24) hours notice to the Mayor and each member of 

Council, which notice may be served personally or left at the usual place of residence.  Members of the 

Council and the Mayor who attend special meetings of the Council or who are present at another 

regular or special meeting where a special meeting is announced by the presiding officer need not 

receive notice of the special meeting.  Members of the Council and the Mayor may waive receipt of 

notice of a special meeting either prior or subsequent to the meeting. 

D. Schedule of Council Affairs:  The Clerk of Council shall maintain a schedule of Council affairs 

including therein the times, dates and places of all regularly scheduled meetings of Council, special 

meetings as they become necessary, regular meetings and public hearings of standing committees, and 

whenever practicable, meetings of special committees.  The schedule shall also list the number and 

title of ordinances and resolutions set down for committee action and the date scheduled for the 

committee report. 

E. Recess:  Council will take a recess on the third Monday in July.   

 

Rule 8 - Committees.   

A. Committees. 

(1) The Council may choose each year to establish Work Sessions or Standing Committees.  Such 

choice should be made by the last meeting in November each year to avoid any delay in 

committee activity.  If Council chooses to hold Work Sessions, a Rules Committee and 

Committee of the Whole shall be formed and composed as set forth in subsections (A) (2) (c) 

and (d) and (B)(2) herein.   

(2) If the Council chooses to establish individual committees, they should form the following 

Standing Committees by December 31, to avoid any delay in committee activity with the 

responsibilities as shown.  (It is to be noted that this Section 1 is directory in nature and not 

mandatory and is subject to the discretion of Council.)   

a. Finance/ Economic Development Committee 

 i. Review, investigate and recommend Council action in all fiscal matters before 

Council; including budgets, appropriations, taxes, assessments, employee 

wages and relations, insurance, expenditures and general monetary policy, 

including municipal insurance,  and professional services as detailed in 

ordinance 40-11and other special assignments.   

ajackson
Typewritten text
17-253



 

5 

 

 ii. Review, investigate and recommend council action in all matters of economic 

development, annexation, zoning and subdivision regulations, Landmarks 

Commission, historical features and in all matters of downtown issues, 

building codes and inspection, Convention and Visitors Bureau and other 

special assignments. 

b. Service/Safety Committee 

 i. Review, investigate and recommend Council action in all matters of city 

infrastructure including public service, streets, storm sewers, sanitary sewers, 

water, and other special assignments. 

 ii. Review, investigate and recommend Council action in all matters of public 

buildings and grounds, traffic safety, police protection, fire protection, health, 

civil defense, building codes and inspection, beautification and public park 

lands, recreational facilities, street trees, information technology, act as liaison 

for the Canal Winchester Joint Recreation Board and other special 

assignments. 

c. Rules Committee:  Any resolution to amend the Rules of Council shall be referred to 

the Rules Committee where it shall be considered immediately, taking precedence over 

any other business before the committee, and the committee shall make a report on the 

resolution to amend at the next regular session of Council following its introduction.  

The Rules Committee shall meet at least once a year to review the standing rules of 

Council.  The Rules Committee's authority shall include, but is not limited to, 

reviewing, investigating and recommending council action in areas involving 

eligibility for office and conflicts of interest.  The Rules Committee shall also review, 

investigate and recommend council approval or disapproval of all candidates to fill 

vacancies for positions on City Council. 

d. Committee of the Whole:  Review, investigate and recommend Council action in all 

long range planning, potential capital improvement projects and any special topic as 

determined by Council.  Committee of the Whole will be held as needed but no less 

than quarterly.   

(3) If the Council chooses to establish individual committees, the newly elected President shall 

appoint, with approval by the majority vote of Council, standing committees.  The appointment should 

be done no later than the organizational meeting prior to the first regular scheduled meeting in January 

of each year.   

B. Composition of Committees. 

(1) Work Sessions.  

a. If the Council chooses to establish Work Sessions, the Work Sessions shall consist of 

all members of the Council.  The Mayor shall be an ex-officio member of this 

committee. 

b. The Vice President of Council shall serve as Chair of Work Sessions. 

c. The Work Sessions will be divided into two areas of focus.  One Work Session will 

focus on Finance/Economic Development and the second Work Session will focus on 

Service/Safety.  While the Work Sessions will include an area of focus, other items 

may be brought before Council as needed. 

 

 



 

6 

 

(2) Standing Committees 

a. If the Council chooses to establish individual Standing Committees, the newly elected 

President shall appoint, with the approval by the majority vote of Council, standing 

committees.  

b. Every effort shall be made by the President of Council to provide even representation 

on the standing committees.  Each council person shall be asked to serve on two 

committees before allowing another council person to participate on a third committee 

or more.   

c. The standing committees shall consist of a minimum of three members of Council, 

with the exception of the Economic/Finance Committee which will include four 

members of council. 

d. Each standing committee shall select its own Chair; however, no member of Council 

shall serve as chairman of more than one committee.  The Chair shall preside over all 

committee meetings and appoint a vice-chairman to serve in chairperson's absence.  

The Chair shall communicate with the Clerk of Council and staff in the preparation of 

the committee agenda and packet of information. 

e. If desired, the Chair may appoint as many citizen advisory members as may be 

necessary, however, no citizen advisory members shall vote on the recommendations 

of the committee but may concur in either the majority or minority reports. 

 

 

 C. Committee Meetings. 

(1) Meetings of all committees of Council shall be public meetings and whenever possible shall be 

held in public buildings, however, each committee by a majority of its voting members may 

elect to hold meetings wherever it deems necessary to properly further its assigned purposes.  

All committee meetings will be called by the Chair of the committee or two voting members 

giving notice of the date, time and place to all members of the committee and Clerk of 

Council.  The Clerk of Council shall notify all members of Council of all committee meetings. 

Any member of Council shall have the right to sit with any committee; however, members of 

Council shall have a vote only when regularly assigned to such committee.  Any committee 

meeting may be canceled or continued by majority vote of members of the committee.  Each 

committee may adopt its own rules of order; however, in the absence of such rules the 

parliamentary procedure set forth in Robert's Rules of Order, newly revised, shall prevail. 

(2) Each committee, excluding the Rules Committee, shall have at least one monthly meeting; not 

held at the same time as another committee meeting.  No regular committee meeting may be 

held on regularly scheduled Council meeting times. This prohibition may be temporarily 

suspended by an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of Council.  The Chair of each 

committee, except the Rules Committee, shall establish regular monthly meeting times at the 

first committee meeting of each year, so as to not have any conflicting times and dates. The 

committee meetings are regularly scheduled meetings of Council members. 

D. Special Committees of Council/Special Assignments. 

 (1) The President of Council may from time to time appoint special committees for limited 

purposes, subject to the approval of the majority of Council.  The statement of purpose for all 

special committees shall contain a section setting forth the length of time required to complete 



 

7 

 

their special purpose.  Special Committees shall not duplicate the function or purpose of the 

Committee of the Whole, Work Sessions or other Standing Committees.   

 (2) Special Assignments:  Temporary, special committees may be appointed by the President, with 

the approval of the majority of Council, to undertake some special task. 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Rule 9 - Order of Business. 

The business of regular Council meetings shall be transacted in the following order: 

(1) Roll Call to determine if quorum is present 

(2) Reading and approval of prior meeting minutes 

(3) Communications/Petitions 

(4)  Public Comments 

(5) Ordinances and Resolutions  (Each is to be labeled as Ordinance or Resolution,  assigned with 

an appropriate number and name of the Council person who is sponsoring it. All proposed 

legislation is to be listed in groups of third readings, second readings and first readings.) 

(6)  Mayor’s Report 

(7)  Sheriff’s Report 

(8) Law Director’s Report 

(9) Finance Director’s Report 

(10) Public Service Director’s Report 

(11) Development Director’s Report 

(12) Staff Reports as needed 

(13) Council Reports 

(14) Old Business 

(15) New Business 

(16) Adjournment to Executive Session 

(17) Adjournment 

 

Rule 10 - Attendance. 

Attendance at regular Council meetings shall ordinarily include the Finance Director, Director of Public 

Service, Development Director, Law Director, Sherriff Representative and such other staff and department 

heads as may be requested. 

 

Meetings of Council are open to the public (RC 731.46). 

 

Rule 11 - Record of Proceedings; Meeting Agenda. 

A. Council shall adjourn its regular meetings at the time indicated in Rule 7 and, in the event that 

business has not been completed, Council shall adjourn on a day to day basis until the same is 

completed.  The regular Council meeting agenda will be published on the Friday before the next 

meeting.  Any member of the public wishing to discuss matters of public importance with Council 

shall be allowed five (5) minutes. 


	1_October 30, 2017 Committee of the Whole Agenda.pdf (p.1-2)
	2_17-178_Chap 1181.06 Amendment Ordinance.pdf (p.3-8)
	3_17-251_2017 CIP Forms 10-25-17.pdf (p.9-12)
	4_17-251_10002 Gender IV 10-17.pdf (p.13)
	5_17-251_10014 High St II 10-17.pdf (p.14)
	6_17-247_2018 Budget-Draft.pdf (p.15-42)
	7_17-252_Personnel Handbook Recap of Changes.pdf (p.43-46)
	8_17-252_Personnel Handbook Updated 10.17.pdf (p.47-94)
	9_17-253_Council Rules_Pages 4-7.pdf (p.95-98)

